
 
 

City of Apopka 
Planning Commission 

Meeting Agenda 
February 12, 2019 

5:30 PM @ City Council Chambers 
 
I.     CALL TO ORDER 

 
If you wish to appear before the Planning Commission, please submit a “Notice of Intent to Speak” card to 
the Recording Secretary. 
 
II.    OPENING AND INVOCATION 
 
III.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

 
1 Approve minutes of the Planning Commission meeting held January 8, 2019. 

 

IV.    PUBLIC HEARING: 

 
1. Legislative – Comprehensive Plan – Small Scale – Future Land Use Amendment                           Phil Martinez 

From “County” Rural (FLU-IP) to “City” Mixed Use 
Project:  CHS Management Corp. 
Location:  East of Plymouth Sorrento Road, north of Ponkan Pines Drive 

 
2. Legislative – Comprehensive Plan – Large Scale – Future Land Use Amendment                           Phil Martinez 

From Commercial (Max. FAR 0.25) & Residential Medium (0-10 DU/AC) to Mixed Use 
Project:  Emerson Point Phase II, LLC, c/o Mike Wright 
Location:  North of S.R. 414 & East of Marden Road 

 
3. Quasi-Judicial - Change of Zoning – Springs Ridge Gardens Subdivision                                      Bobby Howell 

From “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” KPI-MU 
Project:  Landco Development Group, LLC 
Location:  2309 and 2405 West Kelly Park Road.   

 
4. Quasi-Judicial – Variance – Reduction of Rear Yard Setback                                                         Jean Sanchez 

Project:  Jose Guadalupe Perez-Reyes and Lisa Rose Mozzillo 
Location:  2437 Dodge Court (Piedmont Lakes Estates Subdivision) 

 
5. Quasi-Judicial – Special Exception – Re•New•Al Church - To allow a church in AG-E zoning district Phil Martinez 

Project:  Donald J. Sabiston 
Location:  2335 Appy Lane 

 



Planning Commission 
February 12, 2019 
Page 2 

 

 
6. Quasi-Judicial – Special Exception – Wash City - To allow a car wash in C-1 zoning district  Phil Martinez 

Project:  Felice Ladesernia Revocable Trust, c/o S. Brent Spain, Esquire 
Location:  1860 & 1880 East Semoran Boulevard 

 
V.     SITE PLANS: 

 
1. Quasi-Judicial – Plat - Bridle Path Residential Subdivision                                                            Bobby Howell  

Project:  BB Bridle Path, LLC 
Location: West of Plymouth-Sorrento Road and east of SR 429, approximately one-half mile 

 north of the intersection of Kelly Park Road and Plymouth-Sorrento Road 

  
2. Quasi-Judicial – Plat - Mid-Florida Logistics Park                                                                                     Bobby Howell 

Project:   Mid-Florida Freezer Warehouses LTD, Florida Express Trucking, Inc., and 
       Eagles Landing at Ocoee, LLC 

Location:  West side of SR 429, south of General Electric Road, east of Hermit Smith Road  
 
3. Quasi-Judicial – Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan – Gateway Plaza                                Jean Sanchez  

Project:  VBRO Enterprises LLC c/o Ashish Kapadia 
Location:  2006, 2014, 2022, 2030 and 2038 Rock Springs Road; 41 East Lester Road 

 
4. Quasi-Judicial – Preliminary Development Plan – Legacy Hills Subdivision                                    Phil Martinez  

Project:  JEL Land Development, LLC c/o Dustin Lucas 
Location:  South of Schopke Road and West of Schopke Lester Road 

 
5. Quasi-Judicial – Preliminary Development Plan – Ponkan Reserve Residential Subdivision            Jean Sanchez  

Project:  Ponkan Reserve South, LLC, c/o Chuck Hiott, P.E. 
Location:  318 and 326 West Ponkan Road 

 
6. Quasi-Judicial – Final Development Plan/Plat – Oak Pointe South                                                 Bobby Howell  

Project:  Thompson Hills Estates, LLC 
Location:  East of SR 429, north of McCormick Road 

 
7. Quasi-Judicial – Final Development Plan – Ramirez Car Sales                                                       Jean Sanchez  

Project:  Francisco Ramirez & Juana Nuesi, c/o Ken Ehlers 
Location:  124 West Main Street 

 
8. Quasi-Judicial – Final Development Plan – Zaxby’s Restaurant                                                     Jean Sanchez  

Project:  Fletcher MCO, LLC, c/o Kevin Pomet 
Location:  920, 928, and 936 East Semoran Boulevard 

 
VI.     OLD BUSINESS: 
 
VII.    NEW BUSINESS: 
 
VIII.  ADJOURNMENT: 
 

***************************************************************************************************************** 
All interested parties may appear and be heard with respect to this agenda.  Please be advised that, under state law, if you decide to appeal any 
decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, you will need a record of the proceedings, and 
that, for such purpose, you may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes a testimony and evidence 
upon which the appeal is to be based.   The City of Apopka does not provide a verbatim record.    
 
In accordance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), persons with disabilities needing a special accommodation to participate in any of these 
proceedings should contact the City Clerk's Office at 120 East Main Street, Apopka, FL  32703, telephone (407) 703-1704, no less than 48 hours 
prior to the proceeding. 
  



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON 
JANUARY 8, 2019, AT 5:30 P.M. IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, APOPKA, 
FLORIDA. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: James Greene, Linda Laurendeau, William Gusler, Robert Ryan, John 
Sprinkle, and Butch Stanley 
 
ABSENT: Mary Norwood, Orange County Public Schools (Non-voting) 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  James Hitt, FRA-RA – Community Development Director, David Moon, AICP - 
Planning Manager, Joseph Byrd – City Attorney, Patrick Brackins – City Attorney, Bobby Howell, 
AICP – Senior Planner, Pamela Richmond, AICP – Senior Planner, Jean Sanchez – Planner II, Phil 
Martinez – Planner I, and Jeanne Green – Recording Secretary. 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:   
 
OPENING AND INVOCATION:  Mr. Greene called the meeting to order and asked for a moment of 
silent prayer.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 
ELECTION OF OFFICERS: 
 
Chairperson: 
 
MOTION: Robert Ryan nominated James Greene as Chairperson of the Planning 

Commission and seconded by Butch Stanley. Aye votes were cast by James 
Greene, Linda Laurendeau, William Gusler, Robert Ryan, John Sprinkle, and 
Butch Stanley (6-0). 

 
Vice - Chairperson: 
 
MOTION: James Greene nominated Linda Laurendeau as Vice-Chairperson of the Planning 

Commission and seconded by Robert Ryan. Aye votes were cast by James Greene, 
Linda Laurendeau, William Gusler, Robert Ryan, John Sprinkle, and Butch 
Stanley (6-0). 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Chairperson Greene asked if there were any corrections or additions to 
the regular meeting minutes of December 11, 2018, at 5:30 p.m.   
 
Motion: Butch Stanley made a motion to approve the Planning Commission minutes from 

the regular meeting held on December 11, 2018, at 5:30 p.m. and seconded by 
Robert Ryan.  Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Linda Laurendeau, William 
Gusler, Robert Ryan, John Sprinkle, and Butch Stanley (6-0).  

 
QUASI-JUDICIAL – VARIANCE – ADVENT HEALTH – Chairperson Greene stated this is a 
request to approve a variance from Section 8.04.03(A)(1), Land Development Code, to allow two wall 
signs with 336 square feet of copy area for each sign for the property owned by Adventist Health 
System/Sunbelt, Inc., and located at 2100 Ocoee Apopka Road. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak.  No 
one spoke.  
 
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 
regarding this item.  No one spoke. 
 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 8, 2019, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
2 of 22 

 

Staff Presentation:  Jean Sanchez, Planner II, stated this is a request to approve a variance from Section 
8.04.03(A)(1), Land Development Code, to allow two wall signs with 336 square feet of copy area for 
each sign for the property owned by Adventist Health System/Sunbelt, Inc., and located at 2100 Ocoee 
Apopka Road.  The applicant is Advent Health/Florida Hospital Apopka.  The future land use is 
Commercial and the zoning is PUD (Planned Unit Development).  The existing use is a hospital.  The 
tract size is 33.71 +/- acres. 
 
The applicant is requesting a variance from Section 8.04.03(A)(1) –A wall sign shall not exceed two square 
feet in area for each foot of frontage of building displaying sign, provided no single building shall display 
more than four wall signs. But in no case shall there be more than two signs affixed on each building wall. 
Further, the total square footage of wall signs allowed shall not exceed 200 square feet, and any individual 
wall sign shall not exceed 100 square feet. 
 

 Applicant Request - Allow two wall signs to each have 336 square feet of copy area. 
 
On November 13, 2018, Planning Commission reviewed and approved an amendment to the Advent Health 
Sign Master Plan. The Master Plan allows a maximum wall sign of 100 square feet.  Approval of the 
variance will increase the maximum wall sign area of 336 square feet for each wall sign.  If the additional 
472 square feet wall signage area is approved by the Planning Commission, this additional area cannot be 
transferred at a later time to other signage types within the Advent Health site (i.e., monument signs, wall 
signs). 
 
VARIANCE PROCESS:  Per Land Development Code Section 10.02.00, the Planning Commission must 
follow two steps to approve a variance: 
 

Step 1: Section 10.02.02.A, Limitations on Granting Variances. The Planning Commission “shall 
first determine whether the need for the proposed variance arises out of the physical 
surroundings, shape topographical conditions, or other physical or environment conditions 
that are unique to the specific property involved.” This is known as a physical hardship. If the 
Planning Commission makes this determination, then it must take action on the seven 
variance criteria set forth in Section 10.02.02.B. 

 
Step 2: Section 10.02.02.B, Required Findings.  Once a “physical hardship” has been determined, the 

Planning Commission shall not vary from the requirements of any provision of the LDC 
unless it makes a positive finding, based on substantial competent evidence, on the seven 
variance criteria.  

 
APPLICABLE CITY CODE:   
 

1. Section 8.04.03(A)(1) – For all single-occupancy development except for that addressed in 
subsection 2 below, the aggregate area for a wall sign shall not exceed two square feet in area for 
each foot of frontage of building displaying sign, provided no single building shall display more 
than four wall signs. But in no case shall there be more than two signs affixed on each building 
wall. Further, the total square footage of wall signs allowed shall not exceed 200 square feet, and 
any individual wall sign shall not exceed 100 square feet. 

Variance Hardship Determination (Step 1):  The first step of the variance determination process is to 
determine if a hardship occurs pursuant to Section 10.02.02.A, “whether the need for the proposed variance 
arises out of the physical surroundings, shape topographical conditions, or other physical or environment 
conditions that are unique to the specific property involved.”  
 
Staff’s Response:  In December 2018, Florida Hospital Apopka moved from Downtown Apopka to the city 
limits at Ocoee Apopka Road. Residential and neighbors are still getting use to the new location, further 
increasing the need for visit, directional signage.  Furthermore, the hospital, along with its parent company 
Adventist Health System, is rebranding to AdventHealth effective January 2, 2019.  A variance is being 
requested to increase the size of the two existing wall signs are the top of the building to make them more 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 8, 2019, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
3 of 22 

 

visible.  The current signs that are within code are illegible during the day and are difficult to see at night at 
their current size and color.    
 
Seven Variance Criteria Findings (Step 2): If the Planning Commission accepts the hardship in Paragraph 
A. above, the second step is to make a finding on the seven criteria below.  The Planning Commission must 
make a positive finding, based on substantial competent evidence, on each of the following seven criteria: 

1. There are practical difficulties in carrying out the strict letter of the regulation [in] that the 
requested variance relates to a hardship due to characteristics of the land and not solely on the needs 
of the owner.  

Applicant’s Response:  The new wall signs are in harmony with various aspects of 
Apopka's city sign code and intent: 

 Since the hospital was first built, employees and locals alike noted that the 
building wall signage was difficult to see during both day and night. 
 

 Over the last several years, emergency room visits at Florida Hospital Apopka 
have increased significantly - with nearly 30,000 visits expected this year.  
Good visibility signage will aid all visitors to the hospital including patients and 
EMS employees. 

 
 The hospital fronts Interstate 439, a major artery in Apopka with traffic moving 

at very high speeds.  New, larger signs will increase visibility at a key decision 
point for emergency situations and hospital access, and for those unfamiliar 
with the area. 

Staff’s Response:  No objection. 

2. The variance request is not based exclusively upon a desire to reduce the cost of developing the 
site. 

Applicant’s Response: The request for this variance is based on better, larger, more 
directional signage with the intent of bettering the hospital service for the entire 
community.  This request is not based upon any desire to reduce costs or spare any 
expense on the hospital 

Staff’s Response:  No objection.  

3. The proposed variance will not substantially increase congestion on surrounding public streets. 

Applicant’s Response:  The variance includes two wall signs that will not increase 
congestion on any surrounding public streets.  The goal of the variance is to give 
patients more visibility in order to make quicker decisions while driving. 

Staff’s Response:  No objection. 

4. The proposed variance will not substantially diminish property values in, nor alter the essential 
character of, the area surrounding the site.  

Applicant’s Response:  There are no privately owned properties within 300 feet of the 
hospital.  Furthermore, these wall signs will not diminish any surrounding property 
values.  These two wall signs will be uniform in design, font and color, in order to 
achieve a holistic, coordinated set of signage on campus. 

Staff’s Response:  City staff does not hold professional expertise to address property 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 8, 2019, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
4 of 22 

 

values.   

5. The effect of the proposed variance is in harmony with the general intent of this code and the 
specific intent of the relevant subject area(s) of the code.  

Applicant’s Response:  The new wall signs are in harmony with various aspects of 
Apopka's city sign code and intent: 

 They will enhance the economy and industry of the City of Apopka by 
promoting the reasonable, orderly and effective display of signs and 
encouraging better community with the public.  Better visibility of signage will 
allow for traffic to move more smoothly when people know exactly where to go 
in an emergency situation. 
 

o Purpose B, Code of Ordinances - Part III - Land Development Code 
 
 

 They will reduce the number of signs and advertising distractions; by increasing 
the size of these two wall signs, less overall signs are needed for the hospital. 
 

o Purpose E, Code of Ordinances - Part III - Land Development Code 
 

 They will help to achieve a uniform aesthetic across the hospital campus and the 
Adventist Health System as a whole, providing recognizable signage and a 
better visual environment, while also preserving the value of surrounding 
properties. 

Staff Response:  No objection. 

6. Special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant.   

Applicant’s Response:  No special conditions or circumstances would result from the 
approval of this variance.  The goal is to provide the community with better visibility 
and identification of the hospital. 

Staff Response:  No objection. 

7. That the variance granted is the minimum variance which will make possible the reasonable use of 
the land, building or structure. The proposed variance will not create safety hazards and other 
detriments to the public.  

Applicant’s Response:  This variances will not create any safety hazards or other 
detriments to the public.  All signs will be installed according to International Sign 
Association standards.  Additionally, with the lack of surrounding private property, 
these two illuminated signs will not affect any private citizens while illuminated at 
night. 

Conclusion:  The new signage on the hospital will be uniform in appearance at this 
campus and across the nation.  This variance is being sought to help individuals best 
navigate while driving by making the signage more visibility and legible.  The emphasis 
on providing high visibility to each hospital is of utmost importance as it is felt that 
clear and legible signage is essential for the health and safety of the community.  
Additionally, this will make the signs more visible given the distance from the 
surrounding streets.  These new building signs will serve as a beacon not only to EMS 
and other emergency services personnel, but for the community as a whole. 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 8, 2019, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
5 of 22 

 

Staff Response:  No objection. 
 

The role of the Planning Commission is to first determine that sufficient information indicates “whether a 
need for the proposed variance arises out of the physical surroundings, shape topographical conditions, or 
other physical or environment conditions that are unique to the specific property involved.”  If so, then the 
Planning Commission must find that sufficient information occurs to accept each of the seven variance 
criteria. 

Planning Commission has the authority to approve, deny, or approve with conditions the requested 
variance. 

If Planning Commission approves the Variance, staff recommended the following language: 
 
Approve a variance from Section 8.04.03(A)(1), Land Development Code, to allow two wall signs with 336 
square feet of copy area for each sign. 
 
This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
In response to a question by Chairperson Greene, James Hitt, Community Development Director, stated 
that this is a very unique situation due to the building being the only seven story structure is this particular 
area and the lack of visability of smaller signs from the adjacent roadways. 
 
In response to a question by Mr. Ryan, Mr. Hitt stated that while the requested signs do not have the word 
“hospital” on them, it will be obvious this is a hospital from the directional signs and the ground signs 
being updated and the intense national ad campaign taking place announcing the new name. 
 
The petitioner did not have a presentation but was available to answer questions. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.  With no one wishing to speak, 
Chairperson Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Butch Stanley made a motion that the Planning Commission has determined that 

sufficient information indicates a need for the proposed variance arising out of the 
physical surroundings, shape topographical conditions, or other physical or 
environment conditions that are unique to the property owned by Adventist Health 
System/Sunbelt, Inc., and located at 2100 Ocoee Apopka Road.  Motion seconded 
by Linda Laurendeau.  Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Linda Laurendeau, 
William Gusler, Robert Ryan, John Sprinkle, and Butch Stanley (6-0).  (Vote 
taken by poll.) 

 
Motion:   Butch Stanley made a motion to find the proposed amendment consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, 
and to approve a variance from Section 8.04.03(A)(1), Land Development Code, to 
allow two wall signs with 336 square feet of copy area for each sign for the 
property owned by Adventist Health System/Sunbelt, Inc., and located at 2100 
Ocoee Apopka Road.  Motion seconded by William Gusler.  Aye votes were cast by 
James Greene, Linda Laurendeau, William Gusler, Robert Ryan, John Sprinkle, 
and Butch Stanley (6-0).  (Vote taken by poll.) 

 
QUASI-JUDICIAL – SPECIAL EXCEPTION – WEST APOPKA SELF STORAGE FACILITY 
– Chairperson Greene stated this is a request to approve a Special Exception and Special Exception 
Site Plan to allow a self-storage facility, West Apopka Self Storage Facility, subject to the Special 
Exception Conditions of Use, for the property owned by Dafflyn Property 2 LLC and located at 2106 
Plymouth Sorrento Road. 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 8, 2019, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
6 of 22 

 

 
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak.  No 
one spoke.  
 
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 
regarding this item.   
 
Mr. Ryan stated that he had e-mailed staff and the City Attorney regarding the proposed project 
complying with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) regulations. 
No other Planning Commission members had ex parte communications. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Phil Martinez, Planner I, stated this is a request to approve a Special Exception and Special 
Exception Site Plan to allow a self-storage facility, West Apopka Self Storage Facility, subject to the Special 
Exception Conditions of Use, for the property owned by Dafflyn Property 2 LLC and located at 2106 Plymouth 
Sorrento Road.  The future land use is Commercial and the zoning is C-1 (Retail Commercial).  The existing use 
is two single family homes and the proposed use is a self-storage facility.  The total tract size is 8.95 +/- acres of 
which 6.53 +/- acres will be used for a self-storage area. 
 
The property is presently assigned a Future Land Use Designation of “Commercial”. Within the C-1 (Retail 
Commercial District) zoning category, a self-storage facility is a use that requires an approved Special 
Exception. The proposed self-storage facility is comprised of 70,935 sq. ft. of building space, amounting to a 
floor area ratio (FAR) of .2499. Portable storage pods and a covered RV area are located in the middle of the 
complex and are not counted for in the FAR. 1,200 sq. ft. is dedicated for an office area, 55,475 sq. ft. is 
proposed for hybrid, climate control storage, and 14,260 sq. ft. is used for self-storage. The development is 
planned to be gated, and is part of a planned commercial subdivision. The self-storage area (Special Exception 
Area) is depicted on Lot 1 in the attached Site Plan. Lots 2-4 are for C-1 Commercial use. 
 
The Special Exception only applies to a western portion of the parcel.  To screen areas east of Plymouth 
Sorrento Road from the min-storage use, the eastern portion of the parcel is not incorporated into the Special 
Exception.    

 
A. Relationship to Adjacent Properties:    Zoning and existing land use assigned to adjacent and nearby 

properties appears in the attached exhibits.  The character of the area surrounding the subject property is 
described as follows:   

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Low Suburban R-1AA &  
RT-2 (ZIP) 

Single Family Houses 

East (City) Residential Low Suburban & 
Commercial 

PUD &  
R-1AAA 

Nurseries & Single Family Homes 

South (City) Agriculture  AG Woodlands 

West (City & 
County) 

Residential Low Suburban & 
Rural 

A-1 (ZIP) & 
A-1 

Single Family Houses& Woodlands 

 
B. Special Exception Distance Separation Standard. “All special exception uses shall be located a 

minimum of 1,000 feet from any other existing like use in non-residential districts, and 1,500 feet 
in residential districts.” (Article II, Section 2.00.00, 5. Special Exceptions. B1). The proposed self-
storage area is more than 1,500 feet from any other self-storage area.  

 
C. Special Exception Development Standards.  Article II of the Land Development Code establishes 

development standards specific to special exceptions.  These standards are intended to reduce any 
impacts from the proposed special exception use on adjacent properties. After review of the 
Development Plan for the Special Exception, staff finds that the applicant has met the intent of the 
regulations stated in Article II, Section 2.02.01 General, (5), Special Exceptions.  



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 8, 2019, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
7 of 22 

 

 
The parking requirement for this use is one space for each 2 employees on largest shift plus 1 space for 
each company vehicle operating from the premises. 
 
 A 15 feet wide buffer yard areas have been provided on the southern, western, and northern 

boundary lines, with a 6 feet tall masonry wall in the northern buffer yard. The north adjacent lands 
are currently used, or zoned for, residential development. While a buffer yard and wall were not 
provided on the eastern boundary, the proposed conditions of this development, as well as the 
existing conditions of the east-adjacent lots 2-4, counter the need for a buffer yard and wall. 

 
 A lighting plan, landscape plan, and sign plan, will be provided during the Site Plan Approval 

Process (i.e. Preliminary Development Plan and/or Final Development Plan). 
 
C. Special Exception Conditions of Use.   
 

1. Portable storage containers can only be grouped together in increments of 6 with a ten foot 
separation between every 6 pods.  
 

2. Four additional hydrants must be located inside the complex at all four corners surrounding the 
containers. 
 

3. The entrance gate shall have an opticom visual type activation for emergency vehicles, one 
mounted high, and one mounted low, with a yelp siren activation, and a key code mandated by 
city staff for emergency access.  
 

4. An acceptable location of the dumpster shall be shown on the preliminary development plan.  
 

5. The project’s landscape and irrigation plans shall be designed in accordance with City Ord. No. 
2069. 
 

6. A lighting plan shall be required with the Preliminary Development Plan. 
 

7. A landscape plan shall be required with the Preliminary Development Plan. 
 

8. No outside storage of parts, supplies, materials, equipment, shall be allowed, unless approved 
by a special exception in accordance with this code. 
 

9. Portable storage pods shall be permitted under the following conditions: (10-13) 
 

10. Must be in accordance with the City of Apopka’s Fire Department Guidelines, and all other 
departments 
 

11. Must be screened from public view (by buildings or an 8’ wall) 
 

12. Maximum height of storage pods is 8’ 
 

13. Must demonstrate that pods are used on a temporary basis and capable of being transported 
offsite. 
 

14. Only operable vehicles may be permitted in the covered RV area. Vehicle may not be 
inhabited. 
 

15. Storage is only permitted for inanimate objects. 
 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 8, 2019, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
8 of 22 

 

16. The Special Exception for s mini-storage facility applies only to the western portion of the 
existing parcel as delineated within the Special Exception Site Plan.  The Special Exception 
Area is limited to a maximum of 5.8 acres. 

 
17. A Preliminary and Final Development Plan for the parcel shall be consistent with the Special 

Exception Site Plan if a self-storage use is proposed within the approved Special Exception 
area. 

 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval for a Special Exception and Special 
Exception Site Plan to allow a self-storage facility within the C-1 zoning district, subject to the Special 
Exception conditions within the staff report and the site plan. 
 
Staff recommended the Planning Commission approve a Special Exception and Special Exception Site 
Plan to allow a self-storage facility, subject to the Special Exception Conditions of Use, at 2106 
Plymouth Sorrento Road. 
 
The role of the Planning, pursuant to the City of Apopka Code of Ordinances, Part III, Land 
Development, Article XI, Section 11.05.D.1, is to take final action on a special exception application.  
Therefore, the Planning Commission may approve, deny or approve with conditions this application.  
An applicant may appeal the Planning Commission action to the City Council. 
 
This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
John Herbert, American Civil Engineering Company, 207 North Moss Road # 211, Winter Springs, 
stated he is the engineer for the project.  He said they appreciated staff’s assistance and agreed with the 
staff report.  He said the owners, applicant, and himself were available to answer any questions. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.  With no one wishing to speak, 
Chairperson Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Linda Laurendeau made a motion to approve a Special Exception and Special 

Exception Site Plan to allow a self-storage facility, West Apopka Self Storage 
Facility, subject to the Special Exception Conditions of Use, for the property 
owned by Dafflyn Property 2 LLC and located at 2106 Plymouth Sorrento Road.  
Motion seconded by Butch Stanley. Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Linda 
Laurendeau, William Gusler, Robert Ryan, John Sprinkle, and Butch Stanley (6-
0).  (Vote taken by poll.) 

 
LEGISLATIVE – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE 
AMENDMENT – CONSTRUESSE USA, INC. - Chairperson Greene stated this is a request to find 
the proposed Future Land Use amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible 
with the character of the surrounding area, and recommend approval of the change of Future Land Use 
Designation from “County” Low Density Residential to “City” Residential Low Suburban, subject to 
the findings of the staff report for the property owned by Construesse USA, Inc. and located at 2600 
Rock Springs Road. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Mr. Martinez stated this is a request to find the proposed Future Land Use 
amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the 
surrounding area, and recommend approval of the change of Future Land Use Designation from 
“County” Low Density Residential to “City” Residential Low Suburban, subject to the findings of the 
staff report for the property owned by Construesse USA, Inc. and located at 2600 Rock Springs Road.  
The current zoning is “County” A-1 and A-R.  A change of zoning to “City” PUD (Planned Unit 
Development) will be processed at a later date when the applicant submits a master plan.  The existing 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 8, 2019, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
9 of 22 

 

use is two single family homes.  The existing maximum allowable development is 38 single family 
homes and the proposed maximum allowable development is 33 single family homes.  The tract size is 
9.59 +/- acres.  
 
The subject parcel was annexed in the city on October 17, 2018 by Ordinance No. 2681. The applicant 
has applied for Residential Low Suburban Future Land Use and Planned Unit Development Zoning. 
The intent, at this time, is to develop a single-family, infill subdivision. Future Land Use designations 
to the north, south, and west are also Residential Low Suburban. 
 
The proposed use of the property is consistent with the Residential Low Suburban Future Land Use 
designation.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies.   
Planning & Zoning staff determines that the below policies support a Residential Low Suburban 
FLUM designation at the subject site:  
 
Future Land Use Element 
 

1. Policy 3.1.d 
 
Low Density Suburban Residential 
 
The primary use shall be residential dwelling units up to 3.5 dwelling units per acre, elementary 
schools; middle schools; supporting infrastructure of less than two acres, neighborhood parks. 

 
The proposed future land use change will result in an insignificant increase (less than 9) in the number 
of residential units which could be developed at the subject property.  Therefore, the property is 
exempt from school capacity enhancement per the School Interlocal Planning Agreement.  School 
concurrency will apply at the time of the final development plan\plat application. 
 
The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board.  
The City properly notified Orange County on October 9, 2018. 
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending 
approval of the proposed Future Land Use Designation of Residential Low Suburban for the property 
owned by Construesse USA, Inc. and located at 2600 Rock Springs Road.  
 
Staff recommended the Planning Commission find the proposed Future Land Use amendment 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, 
and recommend approval of the change of Future Land Use Designation from “County” Low Density 
Residential to “City” Residential Low Suburban, subject to the findings of the Staff Report. 
 
This item is considered legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
In response to a question by Mr. Gusler, David Moon, Planning Manager, stated that once the zoning 
application is received staff will look at the zoning compatibility with the surrounding properties.  
Under  PUD (Planned Unit Development) zoning the proposed lot size and width much be compatible 
with the adjacent properties.  The density and lot yield will be determined at the time the change of 
zoning application is received. 
 
Momtaz Barq, Terra-Max Engineering Inc., 1507 South Hiawassee Road, Orlando, stated that he 
agreed with the staff report and was available to answer any questions. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.  With no one wishing to speak, 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 8, 2019, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
10 of 22 

 

Chairperson Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Linda Laurendeau made a motion to find the proposed Future Land Use 

amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the 
character of the surrounding area, and recommend approval of the change of 
Future Land Use Designation from “County” Low Density Residential to “City” 
Residential Low Suburban, subject to the findings of the staff report for the 
property owned by Construesse USA, Inc. and located at 2600 Rock Springs Road.  
Motion seconded by John Sprinkle.  Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Linda 
Laurendeau, William Gusler, Robert Ryan, John Sprinkle, and Butch Stanley (6-
0).  

 
LEGISLATIVE –  COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE 
AMENDMENT – WILLIAM & CECILIA UEBEL AND JOSE & IRIS ACEVEDO - Chairperson 
Greene stated this is a request to find the proposed Future Land Use amendment consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommend 
approval of the change of Future Land Use Designation from Commercial to Residential Very Low 
Suburban, subject to the findings of the staff report for the properties owned by William & Cecelia 
Uebel; and Jose & Iris Acevedo and located at 355, 363, and 371 West Kelly Park Road. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Phil Martinez, Planner, stated this is a request to find the proposed Future Land 
Use amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the 
surrounding area, and recommend approval of the change of Future Land Use Designation from 
Commercial to Residential Very Low Suburban, subject to the findings of the staff report for the 
properties owned by William & Cecelia Uebel; and Jose & Iris Acevedo and located at 355, 363, and 
371 West Kelly Park Road.  The existing use is three single family homes.  The current zoning is C-1 
(Retail Commercial).  The proposed zoning of “City” R-1 is being processed along with the future land 
use amendment. The maximum allowable development is 14,810 sq. ft. commercial space and the 
proposed is three single family dwelling units.  The tract size is 1.36 +/- acres.  
 
The subject parcels were annexed in the city on May 19, 2010 by Ordinance Nos. 2160 and 2161. 
Commercial Future Land Use was designated to the properties on September 1, 2010 via Ordinance 
Nos. 2187 and 2189, Commercial Zoning was assigned on the same day, via Ordinance Nos. 2188 and 
2190. The three existing single-family homes have been legal, non-conforming structures since the 
Commercial Future Land Use and Commercial Zoning were assigned.  
 
The applicants propose R-1 zoning and Residential Very Low Suburban Future Land Use to attain a 
legal, conforming status to the three existing single family homes.  
  
The proposed use of the property is consistent with the Residential Very Low Suburban Future Land 
Use designation.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use 
policies.   Planning & Zoning staff determines that the below policies support a Residential Very Low 
Suburban FLUM designation at the subject site:  
 
Future Land Use Element 
 

1. Policy 3.1.c 

Very Low Density Suburban Residential 
 

The primary use shall be residential dwelling units up to 2 dwelling units per acre, elementary 
schools; middle schools; supporting infrastructure of less than two acres, neighborhood parks. 

 
The proposed future land use change will result in an insignificant increase (less than 9) in the number 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 8, 2019, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
11 of 22 

 

of residential units which could be developed at the subject property.  Therefore, the property is 
exempt from school capacity enhancement per the School Interlocal Planning Agreement. 
 
The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board.  
The City properly notified Orange County on November 14, 2018. 
 
The Development Review Committee found the proposed amendment consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending 
approval of the proposed Future Land Use Designation of Residential Very Low Suburban for the 
properties owned by William & Cecilia Uebel & Jose & Iris Acevedo, and located at 355, 363, and 371 
West Kelly Park Road. 
 
Staff recommended the Planning Commission find the proposed Future Land Use amendment 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, 
and recommend approval of the change of Future Land Use Designation from Commercial to 
Residential Very Low Suburban, subject to the findings of the Staff Report. 
 
This item is considered legislative and establishes general policy.  The staff report and its findings are 
to be incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
Ms. Laurendeau stated it was refreshing to see property go from Commercial to Residential. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.  With no one wishing to speak, 
Chairperson Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Butch Stanley made a motion to find the proposed Future Land Use amendment 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the 
surrounding area, and recommend approval of the change of Future Land Use 
Designation from Commercial to Residential Very Low Suburban, subject to the 
findings of the staff report for the properties owned by William & Cecelia Uebel; 
and Jose & Iris Acevedo and located at 355, 363, and 371 West Kelly Park Road. 
Motion seconded by Robert Ryan.  Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Linda 
Laurendeau, William Gusler, Robert Ryan, John Sprinkle, and Butch Stanley (6-
0).  

 
QUASI-JUDICIAL – CHANGE OF ZONING - WILLIAM & CECILIA UEBEL AND JOSE & 
IRIS ACEVEDO – Chairperson Greene stated this is a request to find the proposed amendment 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, 
and recommend approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from C-1 to R-1 subject to the findings of 
the staff report for the properties owned by William & Cecelia Uebel; and Jose & Iris Acevedo and 
located at 355, 363, and 371 West Kelly Park Road. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak.  No 
one spoke.  
 
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 
regarding this item.  No one spoke. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Mr. Martinez stated this is a request to find the proposed amendment consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, and 
recommend approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from C-1 to R-1 subject to the findings of the 
staff report for the properties owned by William & Cecelia Uebel; and Jose & Iris Acevedo and located 
at 355, 363, and 371 West Kelly Park Road.  The existing use is three single family homes.  The 
current future land use is Commercial and the proposed future land use is Residential Very Low 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 8, 2019, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
12 of 22 

 

Suburban that is being processed along with the change of zoning. The maximum allowable 
development is 14,810 sq. ft. commercial space and the proposed is three single family dwelling units.  
The tract size is 1.36 +/- acres.  
 
The subject parcels were annexed in the city on May 19, 2010 by Ordinance Nos. 2160 and 2161. 
Commercial Future Land Use was designated to the properties on September 1, 2010 via Ordinance 
Nos. 2187 and 2189, Commercial Zoning was assigned on the same day, via Ordinance Nos. 2188 and 
2190. The three existing single-family homes have been legal, non-conforming structures since the 
Commercial Future Land Use and Commercial Zoning were assigned. 
 
The applicants propose R-1 zoning and Residential Very Low Suburban Future Land Use to attain a 
legal, conforming status to the three existing single family homes.  
 
The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent with the proposed Residential Very Low 
Suburban (0-2 DU/Acre) Future Land Use designation and the City’s R-1 Zoning classification. Site 
development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies.  
 
The proposed future land use change will result in an insignificant increase (less than 9) in the number 
of residential units which could be developed at the subject property.  Therefore, the property is 
exempt from school capacity enhancement per the School Interlocal Planning Agreement. 
  
The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board.  
The City properly notified Orange County on November 14, 2018.  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending 
approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from C-1 to R-1 for the properties owned by William & 
Cecilia Uebel & Jose & Iris Acevedo. 
 
Staff recommended the Planning Commission find the proposed amendment consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, and recommend 
approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from C-1 to R-1 for the properties owned by William & 
Cecilia Uebel & Jose & Iris Acevedo. 
 
This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.  With no one wishing to speak, 
Chairperson Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Butch Stanley made a motion to find the proposed amendment consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, 
and recommend approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from C-1 to R-1, 
subject to the findings of the staff report, for the properties owned by William & 
Cecelia Uebel; and Jose & Iris Acevedo and located at 355, 363, and 371 West 
Kelly Park Road.  Motion seconded by Robert Ryan.  Aye votes were cast by 
James Greene, Linda Laurendeau, William Gusler, Robert Ryan, John Sprinkle, 
and Butch Stanley (6-0).  

 
QUASI-JUDICIAL – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – CJS HOLDING (LAKE GEM LOT 1) 
- Chairperson Greene stated this is a request to find the CJS Holding (Lake Gem Lot 1) Final 
Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code, and 
recommend approval of the Final Development Plan, subject to the findings of the staff report for the 
property owned by Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC c/o Michael R. Cooper, and located at 701 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 8, 2019, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
13 of 22 

 

Marshall Lake Road. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak. No one 
spoke.  
 
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 
regarding this item.  
 
Mr. Ryan stated that he had e-mailed staff and the City Attorney regarding the proposed project 
complying with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) regulations. 
 
No other Planning Commission members had ex parte communications. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Jean Sanchez, Planner II, stated this is a request to find the CJS Holding (Lake 
Gem Lot 1) Final Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development 
Code, and recommend approval of the Final Development Plan, subject to the findings of the staff 
report for the property owned by Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC c/o Michael R. Cooper, and 
located at 701 Marshall Lake Road.  The engineer is Ken Ehlers, P.E.  The future land use is Industrial 
and the zoning is PUD/I-1 (Planned Unit Development/Industrial).  The existing use is vacant land and 
the proposed use is Industrial on Lot 1 of the Lake Gem Commerce Center.  The proposed building 
size is 13,600 square feet and the proposed Flood Area Ratio is 0.19 with a maximum of 0.60.  The 
tract size is 1.57 +/- acres or 68,432 square feet. 
 
The CJS Holding (Lake Gem Commerce Center Lot 1) Final Development Plan is a site plan 
proposing a 13,600 square feet, one-story building for warehousing use for door and frame installation. 
Located within the PUD/I-1 zoning district, Lot 1 contains 1.57 acres.  Lake Gem Commerce complies 
with the development standards for I-1 zoning district but allowed for a building height of up 50 feet 
and subject to the all other standards within PUD Ordinance No. 2447. 
 
The minimum setbacks applicable to this project are: 
 

Setback 
Min. 

Standard 
Front* 25’ 
Side 10’ 
Rear 10’* 
Corner 25’ 

*30 feet setback from residential uses or zoning districts. 
 
Ingress/egress access points for the development will be via the spine road, Gem Commerce Court 
with full access onto Marshall Lake Road.  Thirty-five parking spaces, including two ADA-compliant 
parking spaces, are provided as required by Code. 
 
A transportation impact analysis (TIA) was conducted for the Lake Gem Industrial Park to assess the 
impacts of the total project on the surrounding roadway segments and intersections within a one-mile 
radius of the project per the City’s adopted TIA methodology. Marshall Lake Building Lot 10 is one of 
12 lots located in the 90,000 square feet Lake Gem Industrial Park project, representing about 8% of 
the total project. Included in the analysis were segments of Bradshaw Road, Marshall Lake Road, and 
W 1

st
 Street. The intersection of Bradshaw Road and Lake Marshall Road along with the site entrance 

were also analyzed.  
 
The Lake Gem Industrial Park project will generate 627 daily trips and 87 P.M. Peak Hour trips. 
Marshall Lake Building Lot 10 will generate 52 daily trips and 7 P.M. Peak Hour Trips. The addition 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 8, 2019, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
14 of 22 

 

of the project trips for the entire Lake Gem Industrial Park to the study roadways will not cause the 
Level of Service (LOS) to fall below the City’s adopted LOS. The intersection of Bradshaw Road and 
Marshall Lake Road and the site entrance will operate at acceptable Levels of Service with the addition 
of project generated traffic. 
 
The stormwater management system includes an on-site retention area on the western portion of the 
Lake Gem Commerce Park.  The stormwater pond design has been previously reviewed under the 
Lake Gem Commerce Park and meets the City’s Land Development Code requirements. 
 
A mixture of loblolly pines and magnolias are planted within the 25-foot wide landscaped buffer 
provided along Marshall Lake Road.  A Japanese Blueberry tree is provided for each parking 
landscape island, which is a minimum of 8-feet in width and matches the length of the adjacent parking 
spaces. 
 
The County was notified at the time of the subdivision plan and plat for this property through the DRC 
agenda distribution.  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the CJS Holding Final Development 
Plan subject to the findings of this staff report. 
 
Staff recommended the Planning Commission find the CJS Holding Final Development Plan consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code, and recommend approval of the CJS 
Holding Final Development, subject to the findings of this staff report. 
 
The role of the Planning Commission is to advise the City Council to approve, deny, or approve with 
conditions based on consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code.     
 
This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
In response to a question by Mr. Ryan, Mr. Hitt stated that the City complies with the Florida Building 
Code which is ADA compliant and based on that code van accessible signs are not required. 
 
Mr. Ryan disagreed with Mr. Hitt stating that ADA was a Federal law and van accessible signs are 
required. 
 
Joseph Byrd, City Attorney, said that the City is compliant with the Florida Building Code and that 
code is ADA compliant.  He added that there are ongoing discussions to include more restrictive codes.    
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.  With no one wishing to speak, 
Chairperson Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Butch Stanley made a motion to find the CJS Holding (Lake Gem Lot 1) Final 

Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development 
Code, and recommend approval of the Final Development Plan, subject to the 
findings of the staff report for the property owned by Property Industrial 
Enterprises, LLC c/o Michael R. Cooper, and located at 701 Marshall Lake Road.  
Motion seconded by Linda Laurendeau. Aye votes were cast by James Greene, 
Linda Laurendeau, William Gusler, Robert Ryan, John Sprinkle, and Butch 
Stanley (6-0).  

 

In response to a question by Mr. Cooper, Mr. Ryan stated that he would like there to be a “Van 

Accessible” sign placed at the handicap parking spaces. 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 8, 2019, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
15 of 22 

 

 
QUASI-JUDICIAL – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – FAIRFIELD INN & SELF-STORAGE 
- Chairperson Greene stated this is a request to find the Fairfield Inn & Self-Storage Final 
Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code, and 
recommend approval of the Final Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report for the 
property owned by Farish Enterprises, LLC and located at 1616 East Semoran Boulevard. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak. No one 
spoke.  
 
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 
regarding this item.   
 
Mr. Ryan stated that he had e-mailed staff and the City Attorney regarding the proposed project 
complying with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) regulations. 
 
No other Planning Commission members had ex parte communications. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Ms. Sanchez stated this is a request to find the Fairfield Inn & Self-Storage Final 
Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code, and 
recommend approval of the Final Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report for the 
property owned by Farish Enterprises, LLC and located at 1616 East Semoran Boulevard. The 
engineer is Interplan, LLC, c/o Stuart Anderson, P.E.  The future land use is Commercial and the 
zoning is C-2 (General Commercial).  The existing use is vacant land and the proposed uses are a 
hotel, self-storage facility and RV parking.  The proposed building sizes for the hotel with 91 rooms is 
51,588 square feet and the storage facility is 60,732 square feet for a total of 112,320 square feet.  The 
building  height for the hotel is 53 feet and 35 feet for the self-storage facility.  The proposed Floor 
Area Ratio is 0.2499 with a 0.25 maximum allowed.  The tract size is 12.12 +/- Acres or 527,937 
square feet. 
 
City Council approved a preliminary development plan for the Fairfield Inn and Self-Storage project 
on August 1, 2018, and Planning Commission recommended approval of these preliminary 
development plans at its meeting held on July 10, 2018. 
 
Further, Planning Commission approved a Special Exception Permit and an associated Special 
Exception Site Plan on December 13, 2016.  The Special Exception allowed for an increase in the 
maximum building height from 35 feet to 55 for the hotel building. 
 
Farish Enterprises proposes to replat the McVilla Commerce Park Plat from three lots to four lots. Lot 
3 of the McVilla Commerce Center Plat will be subdivided into Lots 3A and 3B.  Lot 3B, is the 
proposed location of a hotel and a storage facility.  Lot 3A will function as an outparcel and is situated 
to Semoran Blvd.   A site plan for Lot 3B is included in this Final Development Plan.  At a future date, 
a site plan will be submitted for the vacant outparcel, Lot 3A.   
 
The site plan for Lot 3B includes the hotel and self-storage facility.  A service driveway\road connects 
McVilla Avenue to the western end of Lot 3B and to the eastern property line of outparcel in Lot 3A.  
A multi-tenant monument sign will be placed in a sign easement at the northeast corner of Lot 3A, and 
dedicated to the property owner association.  
 
At four stories, the hotel includes 91-lodging units and an outdoor pool.  At three stories, the 60,732 
square feet self-storage facility will include outdoor storage for recreational vehicles, trucks and other 
equipment.  Located behind the Aldi Grocery Store and the RaceTrac on East Semoran Boulevard, the 
hotel and self-storage facility have a proposed connection to Semoran from the private driveway, 
McVilla Avenue. 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 8, 2019, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
16 of 22 

 

 
Section 2.02.01(A) of the City’s Land Development Code, mandates a maximum building height of 
35’ for all districts. On December 13, 2016, the Planning Commission approved a special exception to 
allow a maximum building height of fifty-five (55) feet for the hotel. The self-storage facility is in 
accordance with the previously mentioned building height rule of 35’.  The hotel is proposed to have a 
height of 53 feet.  
 
The hotel site contains 106 parking spaces of which five are handicapped spaces.   And the self-storage 
facility contains 67 parking spaces of which two are handicapped spaces. In total, the applicant 
proposes 69 more parking spaces than what is required by the Land Development Code.  The ancillary 
spaces on Fairfield shall be moved closer to the doors on the sides at time of construction since it is 
simply a re-striping issue.  The side accessible parking spaces shall be shifted nearer to the exit 
doorways. The applicant has not declared whether joint parking will be allowed between the hotel and 
self-storage sites, but that capability exists as Lot 3B will occur under one ownership. 
 
Access to the site is via a single full access points on US 441/Semoran Boulevard at McVilla Avenue, 
a signalized intersection. McVilla Avenue dead ends into this project and provides access to US 
441/Semoran Boulevard for Aldi on the west and RaceTrac on the right. 

A. Road Jurisdiction. 

1. US 441/Semoran Boulevard – State Road. 

2. McVilla Avenue – Private. 

3. A cross-access easement provides connection between Lot 3A and the Aldi lot, 
connecting to Semoran Blvd.  

B. The project is anticipated to generate 71 PM Peak Hour trips. All project generated traffic is 
anticipated to exit the site to US 441/Semoran Boulevard, half heading east and half heading 
west. Sufficient capacity exists to accommodate the addition of trips generated by this project. 

C. Road/Intersection Improvements. No roadway or intersection improvements are required. 

D. The Plat shall be revised to indicate the access easement is granted to the owner of Parcel 3A, 
and shall state who has the maintenance responsibility of the cross access easement. 

 
Stormwater run-off and drainage will be accommodated by an on-site retention pond located on the 
south portion of the project site abutting residential uses/districts and surrounded by a 6-foot tall 
aluminum fence.  The on-site stormwater management system is designed according to standards set 
forth in the Land Development Code.   
  
The site plan shows that parking lots and buildings are proposed to be lined with predominantly Live 
Oaks and Slash Pines.  Live oaks are shown, in addition to a 6-foot tall masonry, concrete or brick wall 
on the southern boundary and in the 35-foot wide landscaped buffer in the southeastern portion 
boundary abutting residential zoning districts. The planting materials are consistent with the standards 
set forth in Ordinance No. 2069.   
 
Four hundred (400) square feet of area within the proposed outparcel on the northeastern portion that 
abuts Semoran Boulevard is designated as an area for multitenant monument signage.  The Lot 3A 
outparcel will be created by plat at the time of Final Development Plan.  Signage for this development 
will be permitted separately and must comply with Article VIII of the City’s Land Development Code.  
 
The Plat shall be revised to show the commercial plaza sign tract to be dedicated to the owner of lot 3a 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 8, 2019, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
17 of 22 

 

and 3b. 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Fairfield Inn and Self-Storage Final 
Development Plan and Plat, subject to the findings of this staff report. 
 
Staff recommended the Planning Commission find the Fairfield Inn and Self-Storage Final 
Development Plan and Plat consistent with the Land Development Code and Comprehensive Plan; and 
recommend approval of Final Development Plan and Plat, subject to the findings of this staff report for 
the property owned by Farish Enterprises, LLC, and located at 1616 East Semoran Boulevard. 
 
The role of the Planning Commission for this development application is to advise the City Council to 
approve or deny based on consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code. 
 
This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
Chris Blurton, Interplan LLC, 604 Courtland St., Suite 100, Orlando, agreed with the staff report and 

was available to answer any questions.  He told Mr. Ryan that they would install “Van Accessiable” 

signs at the handicap parking spaces. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.  With no one wishing to speak, 
Chairperson Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Linda Laurendeau made a motion to find the Fairfield Inn & Self-Storage Final 

Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development 
Code, and recommend approval of the Final Development Plan, subject to the 
findings of this staff report for the property owned by Farish Enterprises, LLC 
and located at 1616 East Semoran Boulevard.  Motion seconded by William 
Gusler. Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Linda Laurendeau, William Gusler, 
Robert Ryan, John Sprinkle, and Butch Stanley (6-0).  

 
QUASI-JUDICIAL – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PLAT – VISTA RESERVE - 
Chairperson Greene stated this is a request to find the Vista Reserve Final Development Plan 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code, and recommend approval of the 
Vista Reserve Final Development Plan and Plat amendment, subject to final review by the City 
surveyor and City Engineer prior to recording the plat for the property owned by Pulte Home 
Company, LLC, and located on the east side of Rogers Road, approximately ½ mile north of the 
intersection of Rogers Road and Lester Road. 
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak. No one 
spoke.  
 
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 
regarding this item.  No one spoke. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Ms. Sanchez stated this is a request to find the Vista Reserve Final Development 
Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code, and recommend approval 
of the Vista Reserve Final Development Plan and Plat amendment, subject to final review by the City 
surveyor and City Engineer prior to recording the plat for the property owned by Pulte Home 
Company, LLC, and located on the east side of Rogers Road, approximately ½ mile north of the 
intersection of Rogers Road and Lester Road.  The applicant is Pulte Home Corporation.  The existing 
use is vacant land and the proposed use is a 153 single family home subdivision.  The amendment 
changes the phasing one phase to two phases (Phase 1 – 52 units; Phase 2 –101 units). The future land 
use is Low Density Suburban Residential and the zoning is PUD (Planned Unit Development).  The 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 8, 2019, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
18 of 22 

 

tract size is 61.1 +/- acres. 
 
On October 3, 2018, the City Council approved a Final Development Plan and Plat for the Vista 
Reserve subdivision, which is located on the east side of Rogers Road, approximately one half mile 
north of the intersection of Rogers Road and Lester Road. The approved Vista Reserve Final 
Development Plan and Plat detailed the development of 153 single family residential lots in one phase. 
Following City Council approval, the applicant submitted a revised Final Development Plan and Plat 
proposing construction of the subdivision in two phase instead on one phase. The amended Final 
Development Plan and Plat are consistent with the Final Development Plan and Plat that were 
approved by the City Council on October 3, 2018 with the exception that the subdivision will be 
divided into two phases. Phase 1 will consist of 52 units, and Phase 2 will consist of 101 units. Each 
phase has been designed to function on its own. Consistent with the approved PUD Master 
Plan/Preliminary Development Plan, lot widths of 65-feet and 90-feet are provided. The minimum 
living area is proposed at 2,190 square feet. 
 
Ingress/egress access points for the development are located via Rogers Road. Rogers Road will 
terminate at the main entrance of the development. The developer will be dedicating a 0.68 acre 
portion of right-of-way along Rogers Road to the City. The subdivision will consist of public roads and 
infrastructure that is owned and maintained by the City. Vehicular and pedestrian connections are 
provided to the property to the north and to the Carriage Hills subdivision located to the south. 
 
Two tracts located on the northwestern and northeastern corners of the site are reserved for stormwater 
retention. The stormwater retention areas will be owned and maintained by the homeowners 
association. 
 
Consistent with the approved PUD Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan, a 1.67 acre tract is 
reserved for the community recreation facility that will be owned and maintained by the homeowners 
association. Included within the recreation facility is a picnic area, pool, pool cabana building, play 
structure, open play area, bicycle parking, and a parking area for 8 cars.    
 
Consistent with the approved PUD Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan, a continuous open 
space tract with is provided around the perimeter of the subdivision to buffer the homes from the 
surrounding existing subdivisions. Thirty percent of the site, or 18.13 acres of open space is provided, 
and will be owned and maintained by the homeowners association. Landscaping and a 6-foot high 
brick wall is provided along Rogers Road. Trees are located within the open space tract provided 
around the perimeter of the subdivision.  
 
The developer has obtained a school concurrency mitigation agreement with Orange County Public Schools 
to address school impacts generated by this residential development. The schools zoned to receive students 
from this community are the following: Wolf Lake Elementary School, Wolf Lake Middle School and 
Apopka High School. 
 
The County was notified at the time of the subdivision plan and plat for this property through the DRC 
agenda distribution. 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Vista Reserve Final Development 
Plan and Plat amendment, subject to final review by the City surveyor and City Engineer prior to 
recording the plat.  
 
Staff recommended the Planning Commission recommend approval of the amendment to the Vista 
Reserve Final Development Plan and Plat, subject to final review by the City surveyor and City 
Engineer prior to recording the plat.   
 
The role of the Planning Commission for this development application is to advise the City Council to 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 8, 2019, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
19 of 22 

 

approve or deny based on consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code and 
Final Development Plan and Master Plan.    
 
This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.  With no one wishing to speak, 
Chairperson Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Butch Stanley made a motion to find the Vista Reserve Final Development Plan 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code, and 
recommend approval of the Vista Reserve Final Development Plan and Plat 
amendment, subject to final review by the City surveyor and City Engineer prior 
to recording the plat for the property owned by Pulte Home Company, LLC, and 
located on the east side of Rogers Road, approximately ½ mile north of the 
intersection of Rogers Road and Lester Road.  Motion seconded by Linda 
Laurendeau.  Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Linda Laurendeau, William 
Gusler, Robert Ryan, John Sprinkle, and Butch Stanley (6-0).  

 
QUASI-JUDICIAL – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT 
AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - Chairperson Greene stated this is a request to 
find the Mid-Florida Logistics PUD Master Plan and Preliminary Development Plan consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code, and recommend approval of the amendment to 
the Mid-Florida Logistics Park Planned Unit Development (PUD) Master Plan based on the findings 
and facts presented in the staff report and exhibits, and subject to City Council approving a revised 
development agreement for the property owned by Mid-Florida Freezer Warehouses, Ltd; Florida 
Express Trucking, Inc.; and Eagles Landing At Ocoee, LLC and located on the west side of SR 429, 
south of General Electric Road, and east of Hermit Smith Road. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak. No one 
spoke.  
 
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 
regarding this item.  No one spoke. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Ms. Sanchez stated this is a request to find the Mid-Florida Logistics PUD Master 
Plan and Preliminary Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land 
Development Code, and recommend approval of the amendment to the Mid-Florida Logistics Park 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) Master Plan based on the findings and facts presented in the staff 
report and exhibits, and subject to City Council approving a revised development agreement for the 
property owned by Mid-Florida Freezer Warehouses, Ltd; Florida Express Trucking, Inc.; and Eagles 
Landing At Ocoee, LLC and located on the west side of SR 429, south of General Electric Road, and 
east of Hermit Smith Road.  The applicant is Dave Schmitt Engineering, Inc. c/o Bryan Gaines, AICP.  
The future land use is Industrial and the zoning is PUD (Planned Unit Development).  The existing use 
is vacant land and the proposed uses are 2,342,566 square feet industrial buildings; developed in 
multiple phases.  The tract size is 189.00 +/- acres. 
 
On October 18, 2018, the City Commission approved a PUD Master Plan for Mid-Florida Logistics 
Park, which detailed the construct a subdivision consisting of five industrial warehouse buildings 
totaling 2,406,095 on property located west of SR 429, south of General Electric Road and east of 
Hermit Smith Road. The applicant has submitted an amendment to the PUD Master Plan for approval, 
and is requesting to amend the PUD Master Plan to accomplish the following: 1) reduce the overall 
permitted square footage from 2,406,095 square feet to 2,342,566 square feet, 2) relocate Building 2 
into an east-west configuration from a north-south configuration, and extend Building 5 further to the 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 8, 2019, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
20 of 22 

 

east and rename Building 5 to Building 5A and 5B, 3) reconfigure two public rights-of-ways proposed 
for construction on the property; and 4) allow extension of the rail spur to connect to the southern-most 
lot. 
 
The amended PUD Master Plan proposes an industrial subdivision consisting of five industrial 
warehouse buildings totaling 2,342,566 square feet. Consistent with the PUD Master Plan that was 
approved on October 18, 2018, access to the site is proposed via an ingress/egress point on Hermit 
Smith Road, two ingress/egress points on General Electric Road, and a yet to be constructed road that 
is dedicated to the public that is referred to as Shelby Industrial Drive, which is proposed to be 
constructed in a north-south configuration. Shelby Industrial Drive will terminate at Building 5A and 
5B, and will intersect with Peterson Road, which is proposed to run in an east-west direction. Peterson 
Road will extend to the east and will cross under SR 429, which will facilitate roadway connections to 
properties located on the east side of SR 429. The PUD Master Plan details the dedication of 25-feet of 
public right-of-way to the east of Building 5A to allow future access to the properties to the south. In 
addition, three railroad spurs are proposed to lead into buildings 1A and 1B, 2, and 3. The railroad 
spurs will be located along the right-of-way of Shelby Industrial Drive. An unimproved platted right-
of-way known as Peterson Road bisects the property from east to west. This right-of-way is proposed 
to be vacated when the property is platted, and the right-of-way of Peterson Road will be relocated to 
the south to allow access to the property owners located to the south of the PUD. The proposed 
relocation of the Peterson Road right-of-way is shown on the amended PUD Master Plan. The new 
right-of-way of Peterson Road is proposed at 80-feet in width. Consistent with the approved PUD 
Master Plan, parking will be provided on each lot, and will be owned and maintained by each property 
owner.  
 
Four Storm water retention areas are proposed on site. Pond A (dry retention) is proposed south of 
Building 3, Pond B is proposed east of Buildings 1A and 1B and adjacent to the west of SR 429, and 
Ponds C1 (dry retention) and C2 (wet detention) are proposed south and west of Buildings 5A and 5B.  
 
No new deviations are proposed.   The applicant is carrying over five (5) deviations to the City’s 
required development standards that were approved with the Master Plan on October 18 2018. For a 
PUD Master Plan, a deviation from the City’s Land Development Code (LDC) does not represent a 
variance but a development standard or zoning condition unique to and approved as part of the Planned 
Unit Development zoning. PUD’s are required to satisfy the requirements of the Land Development 
Code unless the City Council finds that, based on substantial evidence, a proposed alternative 
development guideline is adequate to protect to the public health safety, and welfare.  Any deviations 
must be consistent with the policies of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

1. LDC, Section 6.03.02.A. Number of parking spaces required (Wholesale, industrial, 
manufacture, processing or assembly uses) - 2 spaces per 1,000 square feet of gross floor area 
up to 150,000 square feet, plus 1 space per vehicle operating from premises or 1 space per 2 
employees. 1 space per 1,000 square feet over 150,000 square feet of gross floor area.  
 
The applicant is proposing 0.89 parking spaces per 1,000 square feet of gross floor area.  
 
The following justification has been provided: “The ITE Parking Generation Manual, 4

th
 

Edition, 85
th

 percentile parking requirement for warehouse use is 0.81 spaces per 1,000 
square feet of gross floor area.”   

 
2. LDC, Section 2.02.01.A. - Maximum building height for all zoning districts is 35-feet.  

 
The applicant is proposing a maximum building height of 55-feet within the PUD.  

 
The following justification has been provided: “The modern warehouses require 36-feet to 
45-feet of clear space under roof to accommodate automated materials handling equipment 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 8, 2019, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
21 of 22 

 

and maximize storage.”  
 

3. LDC, Section 2.02.15.F. Yard requirements - Front yard – 25-feet, side yard – 10-feet, Yards 
adjacent to road right-of-ways shall be a minimum of 25-feet, Rear Yard – 10-feet (30-feet 
adjacent to residential)  
 
The applicant is proposing 15-foot setback on General Electric Road, Hermit Smith Road to 
main entrance, 0-feet to 10-feet adjacent to SR 429, 10-feet to 25-feet adjacent to Peterson 
Road, 10-feet adjacent to Fern Industrial Drive.  

 
The following justification has been provided: “The northwestern portion of the site is 
constrained by the encroachment of General Electric Road. SR 429 has 300-feet of right-of-
way, 6 lanes, and provides a 20-foot high barrier to adjacent property to the east.”  

 
4. LDC, Section 2.02.01.b(8a) – Roof top equipment shall be completely screened from 

adjacent properties and rights-of-way to the maximum extent possible.  
 

The applicant is proposing roof top equipment shall be screened from view from adjacent 
property lines and public right-of-way, with the exception of SR 429 due to the large 
elevation change of the roadway and the finished floor elevation of the building. SR 429 is at 
an elevation of 135-feet, approximately 20-feet above the finished floor height of Building 2. 
Screening shall be reviewed to be in conformance by the subdivision president and the City 
of Apopka. Screening shall be reviewed through a sight line document from the nearest 
adjacent property line and/or from the center line of the public right-of-way. The eye line 
shall be from the typical height of a person driving an automobile.  
 
The following justification has been provided: “All buildings will have a site line evaluation 
to confirm that rooftop equipment will not be visible from adjacent properties and right-of-
way.”   
 

5. LDC, Section 6.02.08.B.2 – All subdivisions are required to have four-foot wide concrete 
sidewalks on both sides of all local and minor collector streets.  

 
The applicant is proposing to construct an 8-foot wide sidewalk along only one side of Fern 
Industrial Drive.  
 
The following justification has been provided: “We are requesting that we do not place a 
sidewalk on the east side of the right-of-way proximate to the rail spurs. The pedestrian 
access plan provided on Sheet 6 of the PUD Master Plan shows a network of pedestrian 
facilities serving the entire site. The sidewalk on the west side of Fern Industrial is the spine 
connecting the southern end of the site with General Electric Road. All buildings are 
connected to this north/south spine and the appropriate crosswalks are provided when needed. 
We [BlueScope)remain concerned that placement of a sidewalk will not increase the 
pedestrian connectivity over the current plan but will put pedestrians in close proximity to the 
rail spurs to the east of Fern Industrial serving the site. The benefit of the additional sidewalk 
does not, in our opinion, warrant the risk of inadvertent interaction of pedestrians and rail 
vehicles.”  

 
Access to the site is provided from General Electric Road and Hermit Smit Road.  Peterson Road is 
also a future access point for this project as well as for properties to the south of the Mid-Florida 
Logistics Park site.   Peterson Road and Fromm Road are both proposed to be vacated at the request of 
the applicant and property owner. The vacated road right-of-way will become part of the development 
site, making it more compact and contiguous.  Peterson Road access will serve as a future secondary 
access for emergency response.  The proposed Peterson Road alignment will also create connection to 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 8, 2019, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
22 of 22 

 

Peterson Road east of SR 429, allowing any residents of Avian Pointe to reach the Logistics Park.  The 
Peterson Road connection between the east and west side of SR 429 also allows another road 
connection besides using West Orange Avenue and Binion Road, thus allowing traffic to distribute 
over more routes. 
 
A transportation impact analysis (TIA) was conducted for this project to assess its impacts on the 
surrounding roadway segments and intersections within a one-mile radius of the project per the City’s 
adopted TIA methodology. Included in the analysis were segments of US 441, General Electric Road, 
Binion Road, Hermit Smith Road and Hogshead Road. Intersections analyzed were General Electric 
Road & Orange Avenue, Hermit Smith Road & General Electric Road, Hermit Smith Road & US 441, 
SR 429 Connector Road & US 441, Orange Avenue & US 441, Plymouth Sorrento Road & US 441, 
Boy Scout Boulevard & U&S 441, General Electric Road & Site Access, and Hermit Smith Road & 
Site Access.  Peterson Road connection requires additional right-of-way east of SR 429.  In exchange 
for the City vacating Fromm Road and Peterson Road, Mid-Florida Freezer will be obligated to donate 
an additional 30-foot width of land along Peterson Road, east of SR 429, to create a 50-foot wide right-
of-way. 
 
The project will generate 3,444 daily trips and 246 P.M. Peak Hour trips. It is estimated that 20% of 
the total traffic generated by this project will be truck traffic. The nature of the land use supports the 
assumption that most of the truck traffic will leave the site and access SR 429 from US 441 and SR 
429 Connector Road.  
 
The addition of project trips to the study roadways will not cause the Level of Service (LOS) to fall 
below the City’s adopted LOS standard. The addition of project traffic to the intersection of Hermit 
Smith Road and US 441 will cause the intersection to fail. The applicant is required to design and 
construct a dedicated right turn lane on Hermit Smith Road to allow for safe access to US 441. The 
addition of project traffic to the other study intersections is not project to cause failures in the future. 
 
The tenants of the Mid-Florida Logistics Park are unknown at this time, so trip generation is based on 
the best information currently available; however, it is possible that tenants occupying space at Mid-
Florida Logistics Park will exceed the trip generation used to conduct the analysis. As the site develops 
and becomes occupied, the applicant must reassess the trip generation. If it exceeds the projected trip 
generation used in the analysis, an updated study is required and additional mitigation for roadway and 
intersection failures caused by the project traffic. 
 
No new PUD recommendations are proposed.  The below conditions carry-over from the original City 
Council approval.  That the zoning classification of the following described property be designated as 
Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with the 
following Master Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 
 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be single-family residential uses. 
B. Terms of Expiration for this PUD shall be as follows: 

 
If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the City 
within three years, and site development has not commenced within four years after approval of 
these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the Master Plan provisions will expire. At such 
time, the City Council may: 
 

1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final Development 
Plan; 

 
2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of 

new Master Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or 
 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 8, 2019, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
23 of 22 

 

3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 
 

C.  Zoning Standards - The following uses are permitted within the PUD district: 
 

1. All permitted uses allowed under I-1 zoning district; 
 

2. The uses allowed by the “Developer’s Agreement for Development of Copart, Inc. Apopka 
Property,” as recorded as document number 20160275220 within the official records of 
Orange County, Florida, shall be available uses within this PUD if the Copart Developer’s 
Agreement is terminated with the mutual consent of City Council and the property owner 
subject to the Copart Developer’s Agreement; 
 

3. Long-term outdoor vehicle (bus, car, cab, and truck) storage and terminal use is permitted 
within the PUD as an accessory use if said vehicle parking is associated with an enclosed 
building having a minimum floor area of 10,000 square feet and located within the same 
Lot or abutting lots.  All vehicles stored outdoors must be operable.   
  

A. The following uses are Prohibited within the PUD district:  
 

1. Flea markets 
 

2. Day-care centers except when provided solely for on-site employees  
 

3. Churches 
 

4. Public or private schools (K-12th grade) except when located within a stand-alone building 
 

5. Community residential homes  
 

6. All prohibited uses for the I-1 zoning district 
 

B. Special Exceptions: As set forth by the I-1 zoning district except if listed as a permitted or 
prohibited uses above. 

 
The proposed amendment and use of the property is consistent with the proposed Industrial Future 
Land Use designation and is consistent with the Land Development Code, except for those which 
deviations are proposed to.   
 
Pursuant to Section 7 of the Joint Planning Area agreement, notification to Orange County was 
provided on December 5, 2018.  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment to the Planned Unit Development 
(PUD) Master Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code and 
recommends approval of the amendment to the Mid-Florida Logistics Park PUD Master Plan. 
 
Staff recommended the Planning Commission recommend approval the amendment to the Mid-Florida 
Logistics Park Planned Unit Development (PUD) Master Plan based on the findings and facts 
presented in the staff report and exhibits, and subject to City Council approving a revised development 
agreement. 
 
This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.  With no one wishing to speak, 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 8, 2019, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
24 of 22 

 

Chairperson Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   William Gusler made a motion to find the Mid-Florida Logistics PUD Master Plan 

and Preliminary Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 
Land Development Code, and recommend approval of the amendment to the Mid-
Florida Logistics Park Planned Unit Development (PUD) Master Plan based on the 
findings and facts presented in the staff report and exhibits, and subject to City 
Council approving a revised development agreement for the property owned by 
Mid-Florida Freezer Warehouses, Ltd; Florida Express Trucking, Inc.; and Eagles 
Landing At Ocoee, LLC and located on the west side of SR 429, south of General 
Electric Road, and east of Hermit Smith Road.  Motion seconded by John 
Sprinkle.  Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Linda Laurendeau, William 
Gusler, Robert Ryan, John Sprinkle, and Butch Stanley (6-0).  

 
OLD BUSINESS:  None. 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  James Hitt announced that the Land Development Code update would go for first 
reading to City Council on Wednesday, January 16, 2019 and February 6, 2019 for the second reading 
and adoption.  He thanked the Planning Commission for their assistance with the update. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 6:27 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
James Greene, Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
James K. Hitt, FRA-RA 
Community Development Director 

 



 

 

 
 CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: February 12, 2019 

 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 

X OTHER: Future Land Use Amendment  Vicinity Map 

    Future Land Use Map 

    Zoning Map 

    Aerial Map 
  

 

SUBJECT:  COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE –  FUTURE LAND USE 

AMENDMENT – CHS MANAGEMENT CORP 

   

REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL 

SCALE –  FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT: 

  FROM: “COUNTY” RURAL (FLU-IP) 

  TO: “CITY” MIXED USE 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

OWNER/APPLICANT: CHS Management Corp.  

  

LOCATION: East of Plymouth Sorrento Rd. & North of Ponkan Pines Drive 

 

PARCEL ID NUMBER: 19-20-28-0000-00-005 & 19-20-28-0000-00-031 

 

EXISTING USE: Single Family Home 

 

CURRENT ZONING:  “County” A-1 (ZIP) & A-R (ZIP) 

 

PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  13 Dwelling Units or 182,167 sq. ft. commercial space, or combination. 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” Mixed-CC (Note: this Future Land Use amendment request is being 

processed along with a request to change the zoning classification from 
“County” A-1 & A-R to “City” Mixed-CC 

 
TRACT SIZE:   6.97 +/- acres  

 

MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 

DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING:    2 Dwelling Units 

    PROPOSED:  13 Dwelling Units and/or 182,167 sq. ft. commercial space        
 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – CHS MANAGEMENT CORP. 

PAGE 2 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The subject parcels were annexed in the city on December 19, 2018 by 
Ordinance No. 2696. Presently, the subject parcels do not have a “City” future land use designation or a 
“City” zoning classification assigned. The applicant requests “Mixed Use” Future Land Use, with the 
compatible “Mixed-CC” zoning.  An abutting 32.3-acre parcel (parcel no. 19-20-28-0000-00-013) is also 
owned by the applicant, whose desire is to combine the three parcels into a single developable parcel. 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by 

the Future Land Use policies.   Planning & Zoning staff determines that the below policies support a 

Mixed Use FLUM designation at the subject site:  
 
Future Land Use Element 
 

1. Policy 3.1.r 
Mixed-Use 

 

The primary intent of the Mixed Use land use category is to allow a mixture of residential, office, 

commercial, industrial, recreation, institutional uses and public facilities uses to serve the 

residential and non-residential needs of special areas of the City. This mix of land uses may 

occur on a single parcel or multiple parcels in the form of: a permitted single use; a vertical 

combination of different permitted uses; or a horizontal mix of different permitted uses. The 

intensity of development within the mixed-use land use categories will vary depending on 

location and surrounding uses. Transit-oriented design elements shall be encouraged to promote 

multiple modes of transportation in the mixed use categories. The Land Development Code will 

establish zoning districts and/or zoning overlay areas with standards that define the appropriate 

location for various intensities/densities. The following maximum gross intensity/density 

standards shall not be exceeded.  

 

2.  Policy 3.5 

 

Residential development north of Ponkan Road and west of Rock Springs Road (Park Avenue) 

will be restricted to no more than two dwelling units per acre, unless otherwise authorized 

through the adopted Wekiva Parkway Interchange Plan. 

 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: School capacity determination must be completed with Orange 
County Public Schools prior to the adoption hearing for this Future Land Use Amendment application. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on November 7, 2018. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE:  
February 12, 2019 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

March 6, 2019 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1
st
 Reading 

March 20, 2019 – City Council (7:00 pm) – 2
nd

 Reading and Adoption  

 

DULY ADVERTISED:  

February 1, 2019 – Public Notice and Notification (Apopka Chief, letter to property owner) 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – CHS MANAGEMENT CORP. 

PAGE 3 

 
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee found the proposed amendment consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval 

of the proposed Future Land Use Designation of Mixed-Use for the properties owned by CHS 

Management Corp., and located east of Plymouth Sorrento Road and north of Ponkan Pines Drive.   
 
Planning Commission Recommended Motion: Find the proposed Future Land Use amendment 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, and 
recommend approval of the change of Future Land Use Designation from “County” Rural to “City” 
Mixed-Use for both parcels, subject to the findings of the Staff Report. 
 

Note: This item is considered legislative and establishes general policy.  The staff report and its 

findings are to be incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – CHS MANAGEMENT CORP. 

PAGE 4 

 
LAND USE REPORT 

 
I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) “City” Mixed-Use “City” Mixed-CC Single Family Home 

East (City) “City” Mixed-Use “City” Mixed-CC Woodlands 

South (City) “City” Mixed-Use and  

“County” Rural 

“City” Mixed-CC 

& “County” A-R 

Single Family Homes 

West (County) “County” Rural and  

“City” Mixed-Use 

“County” A-1 & 

“City” Mixed-CC 

Single Family Homes 

 
II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement on 
October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within the “North Central Area” of the JPA.  The proposed 
FLUM Amendment request for a change from “County” Rural to “City” Mixed-Use is consistent with the 
terms of the JPA (Second Amendment).  
 
 Transportation: The subject properties are accessed from Plymouth Sorrento Rd. 
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act: The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the adopted 
Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  The proposed amendment is consistent with the adopted 
mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been reviewed 
against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of Apopka's 
adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and storm water run-off through the following 
policies: 

 
 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are karst features in the vicinity of this property.   
Analysis of the character of the Property:  The current use of the properties is a single family home. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future land 
use designation for the property is Mixed Use. With 2.659 persons per household, the population for the 2 
subject parcels are estimated to increase by 34 persons.  
 
CALCULATIONS: 
ADOPTED: “County” Rural (1 du/10 ac) = 2 dwelling units  
PROPOSED: 13 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h =   34 persons  
  303,395 sq. ft. x 0.25 (FAR) = 182,167 sq. ft. commercial space 
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 
Comprehensive Plan.   
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: A habitat study is not 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – CHS MANAGEMENT CORP. 

PAGE 5 

 
required for developments less than ten (10) acres in size.   
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 
3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 

Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard: None; 90 GPD/1,000sf ; 81 
GPD/Capita  

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation: 486 GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:   19,134 GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes      
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:   90 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81  GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None  
 

 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard: ;  200 GPD/1,000 sf ; 174 
GPD/Capita 
 

If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 
  

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:    600 GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  42,716 GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes   
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  200 GPD / 1,000 sf 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 174 GPD / Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None 

 
8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area: Yes 

 
 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: City of Apopka 
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of 
Apopka  

 
3. Projected LOS under existing designation: 24 lbs/ day 

 
4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  864 lbs / day 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – CHS MANAGEMENT CORP. 

PAGE 6 

 
 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None 

 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
 
 Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number:  
 
 Permitting agency: St. John’s River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  24.141 MGD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696 MGD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site:   None 
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm   
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm     
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On site retention / detention ponds 
 

Recreation 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System ;  3 acre / 1000 
capita 

 
2. Projected facility under existing designation:  N/A  acres 

 
3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  N/A    acres 

 
4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – CHS MANAGEMENT CORP. 

PAGE 7 

 

 
 

CHS Management Corp 
6.97 +/- acres  

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: “County” Rural  
To: “City” Mixed-Use 

Parcel ID #: 19-20-28-0000-00-005 & 19-20-28-0000-00-031 
 

VICINITY MAP  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by:  Apopka Community Dev. Dept., November 2018 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – CHS MANAGEMENT CORP. 

PAGE 8 

 

 

 

 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – CHS MANAGEMENT CORP. 

PAGE 9 

 

 

 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by:  Apopka Community Dev. Dept., October 2018 

Prepared by:  Apopka Community Dev. Dept., December 2018 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – CHS MANAGEMENT CORP. 

PAGE 10 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Source: Orange County Property Appraiser Aerial, December 2018 

Prepared by:  Apopka Community Dev. Dept., December 2018 



 

 

 
 CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: February 12, 2019 
 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
X OTHER: Future Land Use Amendment  Vicinity Map 
    Future Land Use Map 
    Zoning Map 
    Adjacent Uses Map 

Concept Plan 
OAR SAS

1
 Summary 

  
 

SUBJECT:  COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
– EMERSON POINT PHASE II, LLC 

   
REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE SCALE – 

FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT: 
  FROM: COMMERCIAL (MAX. FAR 0.25) & RESIDENTIAL MEDIUM (0-10 

DU/AC) 
  TO: MIXED USE 

  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Emerson Point Phase II, LLC, c/o Mike Wright 
 
LOCATION: North of S.R. 414 & East of Marden Rd. 
 
PARCEL ID #(S): 21-21-28-0000-00-002, 21-21-28-0000-00-001, 21-21-28-0000-00-008 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
DEVELOPMENT  
POTENTIAL: Maximum of 1,044 Dwelling Units or 3,033,082 sq. ft. commercial space or 

combination of the two. 
 
CURRENT ZONING: C-1 (Commercial Retail), R-3 (Residential Multi-Family), and A-1 (ZIP)   
 
PROPOSED ZONING: TBD (PUD\PD or Mixed EC\Mixed East Shore) 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT UNDER EXISTING FLU: 190 Dwelling Units & 532,538 Sq. Ft. Commercial Space  
FLUM: PROPOSED FLU: Maximum of 1,044 Dwelling Units or 3,033,082 sq. ft. 

commercial space or combination of the two.  
 
TRACT SIZE:   69.63 +/- acres  
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

                                                 
1
 Ocoee Apopka Road Small Area Study 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – EMERSON POINT 

PAGE 2 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:   The western parcel was annexed in 1991 via Ordinance No. 694, the 

center parcel in 1993 via Ordinance No. 768, and the eastern parcel in 2019 via Ordinance No. 2701. The 

three parcels total to an estimated 69.63 acres. Pursuant to Florida law, properties ten acres or more are 

required to undergo review by State planning agencies. A request to assign a Future Land Use 

Designation of Mixed Use is compatible with the designations assigned to abutting properties.   

 

A road right-of-way at the southern tip of the property is proposed to be vacated, and City Council has a 

hearing schedule for the ROW vacate at its February 20, 2019 hearing.  If vacated, the ROW will be 

absorbed into the parcels to the north and south, which are part of this FLUM amendment application. 

 

Applicant has submitted a Concept Plan for the subject property to illustrate the developer’s proposed 

development interest.  The Concept Plan is for information purposes and does not represent approval or 

endorsement by the Development Review Committee.   As depicted in the Concept Plan, the applicant’s 

intent for the Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment is to develop a horizontal, mixed-use 

development with commercial uses along  

 

The subject property was included within the Ocoee-Apopka Road Small Area Study. Based on that study, 

the Mixed-EC (or Mixed East Shore –Gateway) or PUD zoning categories will be the most compatible 

with this site and compatible with Policy 3.1.r., Mixed Use, within the Future Land Use Element of the 

Comprehensive Plan. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the 

Mixed Use designation.  Comprehensive Plan. Chapter 1. Future Land Use. Policy 3.1.r. Mixed Use: 

 

The primary intent of the Mixed Use land use category is to allow a mixture of residential, office, 

commercial, industrial, recreation, institutional uses and public facilities uses to serve the 

residential and non-residential needs of special areas of the City. This mix of land uses may 

occur on a single parcel or multiple parcels in the form of: a permitted single use; a vertical 

combination of different permitted uses; or a horizontal mix of different permitted uses. The 

intensity of development within the mixed-use land use categories will vary depending on 

location and surrounding uses. Transit-oriented design elements shall be encouraged to promote 

multiple modes of transportation in the mixed use categories. 

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 

adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report), subject to 

zoning.  Based on the findings of the Land Use report, the proposed FLUM amendment is compatible 

with the surrounding and nearby land uses and the character of the general area. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  School Capacity determination must be addressed with Orange 

County Public Schools prior to adoption of the future land use amendment.  The applicant must provide a 

capacity enhancement agreement or a letter of capacity determination from OCPS prior to the City 

Council adoption hearing. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

February 12, 2019 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

February 20, 2019 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading & Transmittal 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

February 1, 2019 – Public Notice (Apopka Chief) and Notification (letters and posting) 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – EMERSON POINT 

PAGE 3 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommends transmittal of the change 

in Future Land Use from Commercial and Residential Medium to Mixed Use for the properties owned by 

Emerson Point Phase II, LLC. 

 

Recommended Motion:  Find the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 

compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommend transmittal of the Future Land Use 

Map designation from Commercial and Residential Medium to Mixed Use to the Florida Department of 

Economic Opportunity. 

 

Note: This item is considered legislative and establishes general policy.  The staff report and its 

findings are to be incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – EMERSON POINT 

PAGE 4 

 
LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Residential Medium Low & 

Residential Low 

R-2, R-3 Vacant & Lake Opal Estates 

Subdivision 

East (City) Residential Estates (0-1 DU/AC) R-3, R-1, 

R-1A 

Wheatley Manor & Owens 

Subdivision, and Single Family 

Houses  

South (City) Mixed Use R-3, C-1, 

Mixed-EC 

S.R. 414 & Hilltop Reserve 

Subdivision 

West (City & County) HDR and Commercial PUD, R-2 Vacant & Marden Meadows 

Apartments 

 

II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 
The applicant requested a Mixed Use Future Land Use Designation.   Policy 3.1.r of the Comprehensive 
Plan states that Mixed EC and PUD zoning categories of the Land Development Code are compatible 
with the Mixed Use Future Land Use Designation. If adopted, the proposed Land Development Code 
converts the Mixed EC zoning category to the Mixed East Shore-Gateway District.  In 2013 the City 
prepared the Ocoee Apopka Small Area Study which promotes planned development with a mixed uses.   
Currently, the property has a Commercial Future Land Use Designation assigned to the property.  A 
Mixed Use FLUM designation will promote better transition between the residential neighborhoods to the 
north and east, while accommodating commercial to the western end of the property.   Land to the west, 
west of Marden Road, is zoned for commercial uses, apartments to the northwest are constructed at 15 
units per acres, the Marden Garden apartments abut to the north, and single family neighborhoods occur 
to the east.  An interchange for S.R. 414 occurs within a few hundred feet of the subject property with 
S.R. 414 abutting to the south. 
 
 

Other Information:  
  

Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 

 
Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act:   The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 

adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  While located within the Wekiva River Basin 
Study Area, the subject property is not located within the Protection Area. The proposed amendment is 
consistent with the adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) 
amendment has been reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater 
resources.  The City of Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater 
run-off through the following policies: 
 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of 

Environmental Protection shows that karst features are within the vicinity of this property. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – EMERSON POINT 

PAGE 5 

 
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The subject parcels are heavily wooded, with Lake Opal 
located at the north-central end of the concept plan. The properties abut Marden Road to the west and S. 
Hawthorne Avenue to the east. The entrance to the proposed subdivision is located off Marden Road, 
while two emergency access points are located off of S. Hawthorne Avenue. County parcels to the north 
and south, with the “Low Medium Density Residential” Future Land Use have a maximum allowable 
residential density of 10 dwelling units per acre. An interchange to State Route 414 (Apopka Expressway) 
is located south-adjacent of the properties. Staff finds the proposed Residential Very Low Suburban 
Future Land Use to be compatible with the property, and within the vicinity.  
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future 
land use designation for the subject site is Mixed Use. An amendment to the Future Land Use of Mixed 
Use will generate an estimated population increase of 2,270 persons. Based on the housing element of the 
City's Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will increase the City’s future population, but a housing 
supply is needed to meet the growing population.  
 
CALCULATIONS: 
 
EXISTING: Residential Medium (0-10 DU/AC, 19.04 +/- AC)  
  190 D/U X 2.659 p/h = 505 persons 
 
PROPOSED: Mixed Use (0-15 DU/AC) 
  1,044 D/U x 2.659 p/h = 2,775 persons 
  Net Increase= 2,270 Persons 
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 
Comprehensive Plan.   
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 
Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments ten (10) acres or more in size.  This 
site is greater than ten acres.  A habitat study will be required at the time of a development plan 
application. 
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to 
Chapter 3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Potable Water, Reclaimed Water & Sanitary Sewer Analysis: The subject property is located 
within the City of Apopka service area for potable water, reclaimed water and sanitary service.    
 

 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None; 90 GPD/1,000sf ; 81 

GPD / Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation: 40,905 GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  183,870 GPD 

 

4. Capacity available:  Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation: 90 GPD/Capita 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – EMERSON POINT 

PAGE 6 

 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 81 GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: 

None 

 

 Potable Water Analysis 

 
1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard: None; 200 GPD/1,000sf ; 174 

GPD/Capita 

  

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka 

  

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:   101,000 GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation: 482,850 GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation: 200 GPD / 1,000 sf 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 174 GPD / Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None 

 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area: Yes     

 

 Solid Waste 

 

1. Facilities serving the site:  City of Apopka 

 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of 

Apopka 

 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation: 59 lbs/  day 

 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 28 lbs /  day 

 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None 

 

 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 

 

 Infrastructure Information 

 

 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3480200 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – EMERSON POINT 

PAGE 7 

 

 Permitting agency: St. John’s River Water Management District 

 

 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s): 24.141 MGD 

 

 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s): 33.696 MGD 

 

 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 

 

 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 

 

 Drainage Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: None               

 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm  

 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm 

 

4. Improvement/expansion: On site retention / detention ponds 

 

 Recreation 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System ;  3 acre / 1000 

capita 

 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:    1.52   acres 

 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:    6.81  acres 

 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None 
 
This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – EMERSON POINT 

PAGE 8 

 

Emerson Pointe Ph. 2, LLC 
69.63 +/- acres  

Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: Commercial and Residential Medium 

To: Mixed Use 
Parcel ID #s: 21-21-28-0000-00-002, 21-21-28-0000-00-001, 21-21-28-0000-00-008 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – EMERSON POINT 

PAGE 9 

 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – EMERSON POINT 

PAGE 10 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – EMERSON POINT 

PAGE 11 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 
 

 

 

 

 













 

 
 

CITY OF APOPKA 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: February 12, 2019 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER: Master Plan/PDP   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Kelly Park Form Based Code Area Map 

    Master Plan/PDP  
  

SUBJECT:  CHANGE OF ZONING, ASSIGNMENT OF KPC NEIGHBORHOOD 

OVERLAY DISTRICT, AND MASTER PLAN/PRELIMINARY 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN – SPRINGS RIDGE GARDENS SUBDIVISION 

 

PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 07-20-28-0000-00-011; 07-20-28-0000-00-048 

 

REQUEST: 
RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE CHANGE OF ZONING, OVERLAY 

DISTRICT, AND MASTER PLAN\PDP 

 FROM: “COUNTY” A-1 (ZIP) 

 
TO: “CITY” KPI-MU (KELLY PARK INTERCHANGE  MIXED 

USE) AND KPI NEIGHBORHOOD OVERLAY  
  
SUMMARY: 

 
OWNER/APPLICANT:  Landco Development Group, LLC 
 
LOCATION: 2309 and 2405 W. Kelly Park Road 
 
EXISTING USE: Vacant 
 
FLUM DESIGNATION:  Mixed Use Interchange 
 
CURRENT ZONING: Orange County A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: 124 single family homes 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use (KPI-MU) 
 
TRACT SIZE:    39.47 +/- acres 
 
 
 
 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

SPRINGS RIDGE GARDENS – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: The owner of the subject property is requesting a rezoning of 35 

acres of property from Orange County A-1 (ZIP) to Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use (KPI-MU), with a 

Neighborhood character zone to develop a single-family residential subdivision subject to the 

requirements of the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code. The subject property is comprised of two 

parcels and is located at 2309 and 2405 W. Kelly Park Road, approximately three-quarters of a mile east 

of the intersection of Kelly Park Road and Plymouth-Sorrento Road. The owner of the properties is 

Landco Development Group, LLC.   

 

Development Profile: 

 

No. of residential lots: 124 single family homes 

 

Minimum lot width: 55 

  

feet  

 

Minimum lot depth: 120 feet  

Minimum lot size: 6,600 square feet (FBC has no minimum lot size) 

Minimum house livable area: 1,600 square feet  

 

Setbacks:   

 Front: 20-feet 

 Rear: 20-feet 

 Side: 5-feet 

 Garage: Same as front 

Parking: Two space per house within the lot (enclosed or exterior; FBC does 

not require enclosed parking), on-street parking provided 

Proposed Density:                         3.14 du\ac 

Max. Density Allowed:                 5 du\acre 

 

In accordance with the requirements of the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, the owner has 

submitted a Master Plan in conjunction with the rezoning application detailing the development of 124 

single-family homes on approximately 35 acres. The property is located within the one-mile radius from 

the SR 429/Kelly Park Road interchange.   

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan proposes development of 

the property with a total of 124 single-family homes on 55-foot by 120-foot wide lots and a minimum 

living area of 1,600 square feet. There are no minimum and maximum lot size and living area 

requirements in the Form Based Code. Notes provided on the Master Plan indicate the project may be 

developed in multiple phases, with each phase determined upon submittal of the Final Development Plan. 

The Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan details design of the proposed subdivision in accordance 

with the requirements of the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, and the Neighborhood character 

zone, which primarily allows single-family homes as permitted uses. The surrounding properties consist 

of single-family residential and agricultural uses.  

 

Access to the site is proposed via Kelly Park Road. A dedication of a 15-foot wide strip for future right-

of-way needs for Kelly Park Road is detailed on the Master Plan.  Within this strip, a 12-foot wide bicycle 

trail will be constructed by the developer.   will Behind this strip, a tract  (Tracts C and E) are be reserved 

for recreation and open space to be owned and maintained by the homeowners association.. The master 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

SPRINGS RIDGE GARDENS – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

stormwater pond is located in the northeastern corner of the site. In accordance with the requirements of 

the Form Based Code, 20-percent of the total site area is required to remain as open space. The Master 

Plan/Preliminary Development Plan reserves 28-percent of the site as open space.  

 

Common recreation elements include a clubhouse with a pool, an internal trail system, and passive open 

space/recreation areas.   

 

The Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan details the design of the internal street system with public 

streets utilizing a walkable street design with pedestrian connections to the west via a proposed street 

connection and through the proposed multi-use trail along Kelly Park Road.    One roadway connection 

will be provided to allow cross-access to the property to the west at such time it develops. The developer 

will provide a 12-foot wide multi-purpose trail along the portion of the development abutting Kelly Park 

Road to help facilitate the construction of the regional trail system that is conceptually proposed within 

the Kelly Park Form Based Code area. 

 

DEVELOPMENT AND ZONING CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL:  That the zoning classification of 

the following described property be designated as Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use (KPI-MU), 

Neighborhood character zone, as defined in the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, and with the 

following provisions: 
 

1. Development of the property is subject to the requirements of the Kelly Park Interchange Form 

Based Code, Neighborhood character zone.  

 

2. The architectural design of the buildings must be consistent with Section K.2.g, and Appendix A 

of the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code.  

 

3. A 12-foot wide multi-purpose trail will be constructed along the portion of the development 

abutting Kelly Park Road to facilitate the construction of a regional trail system. (Policy 20.19, 

FLUE; Sec. Q, FBC).  The trail shall be placed in a tract that is dedicated to the City of Apopka. 

 

4. Perpetual easements dedicated to the City of Apopka shall be provided over the internal pedestrian 

pathways and trail networks to allow public access. 

 

5. A minimum living area of 1,600 square feet shall be provided for the proposed single family 

homes.  

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the 

Mixed-Use Interchange Future Land Use designation and is consistent with the Kelly Park Interchange 

Form Based Code.   

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: A School Capacity Enhancement Agreement has been approved by 

OCPS. The location is served by the following schools: Zellwood Elementary, Wolf Lake Middle, and 

Apopka High School.  No development activity shall occur on the subject property until the developer has 

obtained a school concurrency mitigation agreement or letter from OCPS.   

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: Pursuant to Section 7 of the Joint Planning Area agreement, 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

SPRINGS RIDGE GARDENS – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

Orange County was notified on November 5, 2018.   

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

February 12, 2019 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

March 6, 2019 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

March 20, 2019 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

January 25, 2019 – Public Notice; Letter, Poster 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed rezoning to Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use 

(KPI-MU), and assignment of a Neighborhood character zone consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 

and Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, and recommends approval of the Springs Ridge Gardens 

Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan. 

 

Recommended Motion:  Find the proposed Rezoning, Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code and Neighborhood Overlay 

District, and recommend to approve the rezoning of the subject parcels from Orange County A-1(ZIP) to 

Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use (KPI-MU), and to assign the KPC Neighborhood Overlay District, and 

to approve the Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan, based on the findings and facts presented in 

the staff report and exhibits. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 

incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

SPRINGS RIDGE GARDENS – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

ZONING REPORT 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North 

(County) 

Rural 1/2 P-D Rainbow Ridge PD/LUP, 

AG 

Vacant, agricultural uses 

East 

(County)(City)  

Rural A-1, A-1(ZIP) Agricultural uses, single-family uses 

South (City) Residential Very Low 

Suburban 

R-1AAA Agricultural uses 

West (County) Rural P-D Rainbow Ridge PD/LUP Vacant 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The property is accessed via Kelly Park Road. Internal streets are 

public and will be owned and maintained by the City of Apopka. 
Future land use designations and zoning categories assigned to 
properties to the north, south, east, and west are predominantly 
residential, and agricultural.    

 
COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use (KPI-MU) zoning 

is compatible with policies set forth in the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
ALLOWABLE 
USES:  Single-family residential uses as set forth within the Master Plan. 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

SPRINGS RIDGE GARDENS – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

 
Project: SPRINGS RIDGE GARDENS 

Owned by:  LANDCO DEVELOPMENT GROUP, LLC 

Location: 2309 and 2405 W. Kelly Park Road 

Parcel ID#s: 07-20-28-0000-00-048, 07-20-28-0000-00-011 

 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 
 

 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

SPRINGS RIDGE GARDENS – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

SPRINGS RIDGE GARDENS – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

SPRINGS RIDGE GARDENS – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 
 

 

Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based Code Area 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 



















































 

 

G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\VARIANCES\2019\VAR19-01 Perez\4 Planning Com Hearing - C 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: February 12, 2019 

 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER:  Variance  Aerial Map 

    Application 

    Plot Plan for screen room 
  

 

SUBJECT: VARIANCE – JOSE PEREZ - 2437 DODGE COURT 

 

REQUEST: APPROVE A VARIANCE OF THE APOPKA CODE OF ORDINANCES, 

PART III, LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE, ARTICLE VII, SECTION 

7.01.03(A), TO REDUCE THE REAR YARD SETBACK REQUIREMENT 

FROM TEN FEET TO SIX FEET. 
  
SUMMARY: 

OWNERS/APPLICANTS: Jose Guadalupe Perez-Reyes and Lisa Rose Mozzillo 

LOCATION:   2437 Dodge Court (Piedmont Lakes Estates Subdivision) 

PARCEL ID #:  13-21-28-6901-00-610 

FUTURE LAND USE: Residential Low 

ZONING:   R-1A (Residential Single-Family District) 

EXISTING USE:  Single Family Residential 

TRACT SIZE:   0.22 +/- acre 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

PEREZ – VARIANCE REQUEST 

PAGE 2 

 

VARIANCE REQUEST SUMMARY:  Applicant is requesting a variance from Section 7.01.03(A) –

Attached screen room, screen enclosure, and/or decks shall be restricted to the rear yard as accessory 

structure in accordance with the following: 

 

A. Rear and side yard setback shall be a minimum of ten feet, measured from the rear and side lot lines to 

the screen room or any portion thereof. 

 

 Applicant Request - Allow reduction of rear yard accessory setback requirement from ten feet to 

six feet. 

 

VARIANCE PROCESS:  Per Land Development Code Section 10.02.00, the Planning Commission 

must follow two steps to approve a variance: 

 

Step 1: Section 10.02.02.A, Limitations on Granting Variances. The Planning Commission “shall first 

determine whether the need for the proposed variance arises out of the physical surroundings, 

shape topographical conditions, or other physical or environment conditions that are unique to 

the specific property involved.” This is known as a physical hardship. If the Planning 

Commission makes this determination, then it must take action on the seven variance criteria 

set forth in Section 10.02.02.B. 

 

Step 2: Section 10.02.02.B, Required Findings.  Once a “physical hardship” has been determined, the 

Planning Commission shall not vary from the requirements of any provision of the LDC unless 

it makes a positive finding, based on substantial competent evidence, on the seven variance 

criteria.  

 

APPLICABLE CITY CODES:   
 

1. Section 7.01.03(A) – Attached screen room, screen enclosure, and/or decks shall be restricted to 

the rear yard as accessory structure.  Rear and side yard setback shall be a minimum of ten feet, 

measured from the rear and side lot lines to the screen room or any portion thereof. 

Variance Hardship Determination (Step 1):  The first step of the variance determination process is to 

determine if a hardship occurs pursuant to Section 10.02.02.A, “whether the need for the proposed 

variance arises out of the physical surroundings, shape topographical conditions, or other physical or 

environment conditions that are unique to the specific property involved.”  

 

Seven Variance Criteria Findings (Step 2): If the Planning Commission accepts the hardship in 

Paragraph A. above, the second step is to make a finding on the seven criteria below.  The Planning 

Commission must make a positive finding, based on substantial competent evidence, on each of the 

following seven criteria: 

1. There are practical difficulties in carrying out the strict letter of the regulation [in] that the 

requested variance relates to a hardship due to characteristics of the land and not solely on the 

needs of the owner.  

Applicant’s Response:  Screen room only. 

Staff’s Response:  No objection.  The lot has an odd shape that appears to have required the 

front of the house to be set back 35 feet from the front property line, leaving less room in the 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

PEREZ – VARIANCE REQUEST 

PAGE 3 

 

rear yard.  The screen room will not encroach is not any utility or drainage easement. 

2. The variance request is not based exclusively upon a desire to reduce the cost of developing the 

site. 

Applicant’s Response:  None. 

Staff’s Response:  No objection.  

3. The proposed variance will not substantially increase congestion on surrounding public streets. 

Applicant’s Response:  None 

Staff’s Response:  No objection. 

4. The proposed variance will not substantially diminish property values in, nor alter the essential 

character of, the area surrounding the site.  

Applicant’s Response:  Not that we know of. 

Staff’s Response:  City staff does not hold professional expertise to address property 

values.   

5. The effect of the proposed variance is in harmony with the general intent of this code and the 

specific intent of the relevant subject area(s) of the code.  

Applicant’s Response:  Correct. 

Staff Response:  No objection. 

6. Special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant.   

Applicant’s Response:  No. The house is set back from the property 22 feet from the 

back property line. 

Staff Response:  No objection. 

7. That the variance granted is the minimum variance which will make possible the reasonable use of 

the land, building or structure. The proposed variance will not create safety hazards and other 

detriments to the public.  

Applicant’s Response:  Yes, it is the minimum amount needed to get appropriate 

space to have wheelchair access, where a 48"-wide door is required. 

Staff Response:  No objection. 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

PEREZ – VARIANCE REQUEST 

PAGE 4 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

Planning Commission Role:   Based on the information provided by the applicant at the hearing for the 

variance requested, Planning Commission must first determine that sufficient information indicates 

“whether a need for the proposed variance arises out of the physical surroundings, shape topographical 

conditions, or other physical or environment conditions that are unique to the specific property involved.”  

If so, then the Planning Commission must find that sufficient information occurs to accept each of the 

seven variance criteria.   

 

The Planning Commission has the authority to approve, deny, or approve with conditions the requested 

variance. 

 

Action to be taken: 

 

1. Determine that sufficient information indicates a need for the proposed variance arising out of the 

physical surroundings, shape topographical conditions, or other physical or environment 

conditions that are unique to the property. 

 

2. Is a hardship is found, then to find the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, and to approve, deny, or approve 

with conditions the requested variance. 

 

Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 

incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

PEREZ – VARIANCE REQUEST 

PAGE 5 

 

Owner:  Jose Guadalupe Perez-Reyes and Lisa Rose Mozzillo 

Applicant:  Jose Perez 

Parcel ID Nos.:   13-21-28-6901-00-610 

Address:  2437 Dodge Court 

Total area:  0.22 acre(s) +/- 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

  

Subject Property 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

PEREZ – VARIANCE REQUEST 

PAGE 6 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 

 
 

 
 

Subject Property 



















 

 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: February 12, 2019 

 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: Special Exception  Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Proposed Site Plan 

    Existing Site Plan 

    Written Public Comments 
  

 

SUBJECT:  SPECIAL EXCEPTION – RENEWAL CHURCH 

   

REQUEST:  APPROVAL OF THE SPECIAL EXCEPTION REQUEST FOR 

RENEWAL CHURCH 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

OWNER/APPLICANT: Donald J. Sabiston 

 

LOCATION:   2335 Appy Lane 

 

PARCEL ID NUMBER: 18-20-28-0000-00-112 

 

LAND USE:   Residential Very Low Suburban 

 

ZONING:   Agriculture-Estates (AG-E) 

 

EXISTING USE:  Vacant, with a mobile home and wood shed. 

 

PROPOSED USE: Place of Worship  

    

TRACT SIZE:   4.96 +/- acres 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

RENEWAL CHURCH - DONALD SABISTON - SPECIAL EXCEPTION  

PAGE 2 

 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  On June 26, 2018, the Planning Commission approved a Special 

Exception to allow a place of worship, subject to the Special Exception Conditions of Use, at 2335 Appy 

Lane (the subject property).  

 

The applicant requests to amend the Special Exception Site Plan approved by the Planning Commission 

on June 26, 2018 to address: 

 

1. Replace the six-foot high brick or decorative wall along the east and west project line with a 

continuous hedge, planted at a height of 36 inches, and a split rail fence. 

No other conditions of approval have changed from when the original special exception request was 

approved on June 26, 2018. 

 

The proposed place of worship is intended to be constructed in two phases. Phase 1 calls for a 10,400 sq. 

ft. building, with a seating capacity of 250, and 2 employees. Phase 2 results in a total building square 

footage of 15,500 sq. ft., a total seating capacity of 475, and a total of 3 employees. The Parking Area is 

planned to be constructed, in its entirety, during the construction of Phase 1. 

 

The property is presently assigned a Future Land Use Designation of “Residential Very Low Suburban.” 

Institutional Uses, of five acres or less, are allowed as a Special Exception in the Comprehensive Plan, per 

Policy 3.1.C. 

 

A. Relationship to Adjacent Properties:    Zoning and existing land use assigned to adjacent and 

nearby properties appears in the attached exhibits.  The character of the area surrounding the 

subject property is described as follows:   

 

Direction Future Land Use 
Zonin

g 
Present Use 

North 

(City) 

Residential Very Low Suburban 
PUD 

Woodlands/HOA Tract 

East (City) Residential Very Low Suburban PUD Vacant Lands & 1 Single Family Home 

South 

(City) 

Residential Very Low Suburban & 

Institutional/Public Use 
PO/I 

Northwest Recreation Fields 

West (City) Residential Very Low Suburban AG-E Single Family Houses 

 

B. Special Exception Distance Separation Standard. “All special exception uses shall be located a 

minimum of 1,000 feet from any other existing like use in non-residential districts, and 1,500 feet 

in residential districts.” (Article II, Section 2.00.00, 5. Special Exceptions. B1). The proposed 

place of worship is more than 1,500 feet from any other place of worship.  

 

C. Special Exception Development Standards.  None of the below development standards have 

changed from the June 26, 2018 special exception approval by the Planning Commission.  Article 

II of the Land Development Code establishes development standards specific to special 

exceptions.  These standards are intended to reduce any impacts from the proposed special 

exception use on adjacent properties. After review of the Development Plan for the Special 

Exception, staff finds that the applicant has met the intent of the regulations stated in Article II, 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

RENEWAL CHURCH - DONALD SABISTON - SPECIAL EXCEPTION  

PAGE 3 

 

Section 2.02.01 General, (5), Special Exceptions.  

 

 

The parking requirement for this use is one space for each 3 fixed seats provided for patron use, 

plus 1 space per employee. With 161 parking spaces depicted on the development plan, the 

applicant meets the requirement for off-street parking. 

 

 15 feet wide buffer yards have been provided on the western and eastern boundary lines. Each 

buffer yard is proposed to contain a split-rail fence and hedge-line. The original Special Exception 

Site Plan depicted 6’ tall masonry walls in the western and eastern boundary lines. The west and 

east adjacent lands are currently used, or zoned for, residential development. While a buffer yard 

and wall were not provided on the northern boundary, the proposed conditions of this 

development, as well as the existing conditions of the north-adjacent parcel, counter the need for a 

buffer yard and wall. The northern area of the subject property is planned to have a conservation 

area with a depth longer than 50 feet. The north-adjacent parcel is a heavily wooded HOA tract 

belonging to the Orchid Estates Subdivision.  

 

 A lighting plan, landscape plan, sign plan, and architectural elevations will be provided during the 

Site Plan Approval Process (i.e. Preliminary Development Plan and/or Final Development Plan).   

 

C. Special Exception Conditions of Use.  (Underscore - New conditions) 

 

1. Day Cares or Schools functioning as a primary use (Monday through Friday) will require 

an amendment to the Special Exception. 

 

2. Hedges must be planted and maintained in the western and eastern bufferyards, from the 

front property line, to the rear property line. The hedges must be three feet in height at the 

time of planting and must create and maintain a solid, opaque screening measure for the 

parking lot.  A split rail fence will also be provided within the side bufferyards. 

 

3. The Final Development Plan shall include an outdoor illumination plan that demonstrates 

that outdoor lighting does not adversely encroach on to adjacent properties. 

 

4.. This Special Exception authorization expires if (a) the applicant fails to obtain a certificate 

of occupancy or a business tax receipt within five years from the date of the Special 

Exception approval; and (b) the Special Exception Use has vacated the parcel for more 

than 180 consecutive days.  The site shall development consistent with the Special 

Exception Site Plan. 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

January 25, 2019 - Public Hearing Notice 

 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

RENEWAL CHURCH - DONALD SABISTON - SPECIAL EXCEPTION  

PAGE 4 

  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the amendment to the Renewal Church 

Special  Exception Site Plan to allow a continuous hedge and split rail fence along the eastern and western 

landscape bufferyards,.and to assure that the final development plan demonstrate that outdoor illumination 

does not Adderley encroach on to abutting properties..  

 

Recommended Motion:   Approve the amendment to the Special Exception Site Plan to incorporate the 

two new conditions of use set forth in the Special Exception Conditions of Use. 

 

Planning Commission Role - Pursuant to the City of Apopka Code of Ordinances, Part III, Land 

Development, Article XI, Section 11.05.D.1 the Planning Commission has the authority to take final 

action on a special exception application.  Therefore, the Planning Commission may approve, deny or 

approve with conditions this application.  An applicant may appeal the Planning Commission action to the 

City Council. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 

incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

RENEWAL CHURCH - DONALD SABISTON - SPECIAL EXCEPTION  

PAGE 5 

 
 

Donald Sabiston/Renewal Church 

Special Exception Amendment 

Located on property assigned an Agriculture Estates Zoning Designation 

4.96 +/- Acres 

Parcel ID #: 18-20-28-0000-00-112 

 

VICINITY MAP  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

RENEWAL CHURCH - DONALD SABISTON - SPECIAL EXCEPTION  

PAGE 6 

 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

RENEWAL CHURCH - DONALD SABISTON - SPECIAL EXCEPTION  

PAGE 7 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 



Project

Consultants

Zoning Exception Submittal - 6/11/2018

PROJECT SITE

PROJECT SITE

FIELD OF FAME
2335 APPY LANE

Board Members

Mr. Bill Arrowsmith
Mr. Jorge Arce
Mr. Adrian Alvarez
Mr. Jason Henderson, Pastor

Mr. Matthew Owen

Mr. Mike Tolson

Mr. Robbie Redder
Mr. Don Sabiston

Sheet Title

COVER SHEET
BOUNDARY SURVEY

DS-1 DEVELOPMENT SITE PLAN

Drawing Index
KELLY PARK RD

W PONKAN RD

429

R
O

C
K

 S
P

R
IN

G
S

 R
D

APPY LANE

Number

P
ro

je
ct

re
n

e
w

a
l 

c
h

u
rc

h
R

e
v
is

io
n
s

2
3

3
5

 A
p

p
y
 L

a
n

e

Z
o

n
in

g
 E

x
c

e
p

ti
o

n
 S

u
b

m
it

ta
l 

- 
6

/1
1

/2
0

1
8

E
ng

in
ee

r 
of

 R
ec

or
d

Sheet Title

A
p

o
p

k
a

, 
F

lo
ri

d
a

S
E

 A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T
1

12
/3

/2
01

8

PROPOSED SITE PLAN





RETENTION

P
A

V
E

D
 P

A
R

K
IN

G

 X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X 

R/W

45' FRONT SETBACK

PROPERTY LINE

R/W

EXISTING WOOD
STRUCTURE TO

REMAIN

PROPERTY LINE

15' BUFFERYARD

35' SIDE SETBACK

PROPERTY LINE

15' BUFFERYARD

35' SIDE SETBACK

50' REAR SETBACK
PROPERTY LINE

P
A

V
E

D
 G

U
E

S
T

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

A
C

A
C

A
C

P
A

V
E

D
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
P

A
V

E
D

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

G
R

A
S

S
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
G

R
A

S
S

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

G
R

A
S

S
 P

A
R

K
IN

G

13
0'

-0
"

80'-0"30'-0" 30'-0"

17'-0"

20'-0"

15'-0"20'-0"

9'
-0

"

26'-0"
35'-0"

35'-0"

45
'-0

"

6
4

7
.8

'

6
5

0
.5

'

332.4'

333.1'

EXISTING
TWO-RAIL WOOD

FENCE TO REMAIN

5'
-0

"
11

'-0
"

EXISTING MOBILE HOME TO BE
USED AS CONSTRUCTION OFFICE
DURING CONSTRUCTION THEN
REMOVED FROM THE SITE.

17
0'

-0
"

12" PVC WATER MAIN

CURB CUT

8" SEWER FORCEMAIN
12" PVC RECLAIMED MAIN
12" PVC WATER MAIN

V
A

N
V

A
N

V
A

N
V

A
N

NO BUFFER
ORCHID ESTATES

CONSERVATION AREA

PHASE 1
OPEN CANOPY AREA
130'X30' (3,900 SF)

PHASE 1
BUILDING
130'X80' (10,400 SF)

PHASE 2
FUTURE BUILDING ADDITION
170'X30' (5,100 SF)

FLUM: PUD

FLUM: R-1-AAA FLUM: PUD

FLUM: PO/I

15' INGRESS/EGRESS
EASEMENT

CENTERLINE OF 30'
EASEMENT

PROPOSED
SPLIT-RAIL FENCE

AND HEDGE

PROPOSED
SPLIT-RAIL FENCE
AND HEDGE

THE WEST AND EAST PROPERTY LINES WILL HAVE
WOODEN, SPLIT RAIL FENCING AND A LANDSCAPING
HEDGE WITHIN THE BUFFER YARD TO PROVIDE
CONSISTENCY WITH THE SURROUNDING PROPERTIES
AND WITH THE OPEN, RURAL ENVIRONMENT.
THE HEDGE WILL PROVIDE AN OPAQUE SCREEN TO
BUFFER THE VISUAL AND AUDIBLE ACTIVITIES OF THE
CHURCH.

Address
Total Land Area
Section/Township/Range
Parcel ID
Future Land Use
Current Zoning
Proposed Zoning
Proposed Use

Maximum Building Height

People Calculations Phase 1 Phase 2
Sq Ft (Under Air) 10,400 15,500
Attendee Seating Provided 250 475
Part time employees 2 3
Total Onsite (Attendees + Employees) 252 478

Parking Calculations
Attendee Parking Required (1:3) 83 158
Employee Parking Required (1:1) 2 3

Total Spaces Required 85 161

Parking Spaces Provided
Handicap Provided (Paved) 7 7
Parking Provided (Paved) 74 74
Parking Provided (Grass) 80 80
Total Spaces Provided 161 161

Accessible Parking
Total Required 4 6
Total Provided 7 7
Van Accessible Required 1 1
Van Accessible Provided 4 4

AG-E
AG-E

7100 - Religious

35'

Res. Estates

Site Data Table

2335 Appy Lane
4.969 Acres m/l

18-20-28
18-20-28-0000-00-112

SCALE:

DEVELOPMENT SITE PLAN
1" = 50'-0"

DS-1

Number

P
ro

je
ct

re
n

e
w

a
l 

c
h

u
rc

h
R

e
v
is

io
n
s

2
3

3
5

 A
p

p
y
 L

a
n

e

Z
o

n
in

g
 E

x
c

e
p

ti
o

n
 S

u
b

m
it

ta
l 

- 
6

/1
1

/2
0

1
8

E
ng

in
ee

r 
of

 R
ec

or
d

Sheet Title

A
p

o
p

k
a

, 
F

lo
ri

d
a

S
E

 A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T
1

12
/3

/2
01

8



Project

Consultants

Zoning Exception Submittal - 6/11/2018

PROJECT SITE

PROJECT SITE

FIELD OF FAME
2335 APPY LANE

Board Members

Mr. Bill Arrowsmith
Mr. Jorge Arce
Mr. Adrian Alvarez
Mr. Jason Henderson, Pastor

Mr. Matthew Owen

Mr. Mike Tolson

Mr. Robbie Redder
Mr. Don Sabiston

Sheet Title

COVER SHEET
BOUNDARY SURVEY

DS-1 DEVELOPMENT SITE PLAN

Drawing Index
KELLY PARK RD

W PONKAN RD

429

R
O

C
K

 S
P

R
IN

G
S

 R
D

APPY LANE

Number

P
ro

je
ct

re
n

e
w

a
l 

c
h

u
rc

h
R

e
v
is

io
n
s

2
3

3
5

 A
p

p
y
 L

a
n

e

Z
o

n
in

g
 E

x
c

e
p

ti
o

n
 S

u
b

m
it

ta
l 

- 
6

/1
1

/2
0

1
8

E
ng

in
ee

r 
of

 R
ec

or
d

Sheet Title

A
p

o
p

k
a

, 
F

lo
ri

d
a

EXISTING SITE PLAN





RETENTION

P
A

V
E

D
 P

A
R

K
IN

G

 X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X  X 

R/W

45' FRONT SETBACK

PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING WELL TO
REMAIN FOR IRRIGATION

R/W

15' INGRESS/EGRESS
EASEMENT

CENTERLINE OF 30'
EASEMENT

PROPOSED 6' HIGH
MASONRY WALL

EXISTING WOOD
STRUCTURE TO

REMAIN

PROPOSED 6' HIGH
MASONRY WALL

PROPERTY LINE

15' BUFFERYARD

35' SIDE SETBACK

PROPERTY LINE

15' BUFFERYARD

35' SIDE SETBACK

EXISTING
TWO-RAIL WOOD

FENCE TO REMAIN 50' REAR SETBACK
PROPERTY LINE

FLUM: PUDFLUM: R-1AAA

FLUM: PUD

FLUM: PO/I

P
A

V
E

D
 G

U
E

S
T

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

A
C

A
C

A
C

P
A

V
E

D
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
P

A
V

E
D

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

G
R

A
S

S
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
G

R
A

S
S

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

G
R

A
S

S
 P

A
R

K
IN

G

13
0'

-0
"

80'-0"30'-0" 30'-0"

17'-0"

20'-0"

15'-0"20'-0"

9'
-0

"

26'-0"

286'-0"

50
'-0

"

35'-0"

35'-0"

45
'-0

"

6
4

7
.8

'

6
5

0
.5

'

332.4'

333.1'

EXISTING MOBILE HOME RELOCATED
AFTER CONSTRUCTION TO BE USED AS

PARSONAGE (RESIDENTAL OCCUPANCY)

5'
-0

"
11

'-0
"

EXISTING MOBILE HOME TO BE USED
AS CONSTRUCTION OFFICE DURING
CONSTRUCTION

17
0'

-0
"

12" PVC WATER MAIN

CURB CUT

LIFT STATION LOCATION

8" SEWER FORCEMAIN
12" PVC RECLAIMED MAIN
12" PVC WATER MAIN

V
A

N
V

A
N

V
A

N
V

A
N

NO BUFFER
ORCHID ESTATES

CONSERVATION AREA

PHASE 1
OPEN CANOPY AREA
130'X30' (3,900 SF)

PHASE 1
BUILDING
130'X80' (10,400 SF)

PHASE 2
FUTURE BUILDING ADDITION
170'X30' (5,100 SF)

Address
Total Land Area
Section/Township/Range
Parcel ID
Future Land Use
Current Zoning
Proposed Zoning
Proposed Use

Maximum Building Height

People Calculations Phase 1 Phase 2
Sq Ft (Under Air) 10,400 15,500
Attendee Seating Provided 248 475
Workers (1:20 attendees) 12 25
Total Onsite (Attendees + Workers) 260 500

Parking Calculations
Parking Required (1:3 total onsite) 167
Total Parking Spaces Provided 167

Parking Provided (Paved) 84
Parking Provided (Grass) 83

Accessible Parking
Total Required 6
Total Provided 7
Van Accessible Required 1
Van Accessible Provided 4

Res. Estates
AG-E
AG-E

7100 - Religious

35'

Site Data Table

2335 Appy Lane
4.969 Acres m/l

18-20-28
18-20-28-0000-00-112

SCALE:

SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN
1" = 50'-0"

DS-1

Number

P
ro

je
ct

re
n

e
w

a
l 

c
h

u
rc

h
R

e
v
is

io
n
s

2
3

3
5

 A
p

p
y
 L

a
n

e

Z
o

n
in

g
 E

x
c

e
p

ti
o

n
 S

u
b

m
it

ta
l 

- 
6

/1
1

/2
0

1
8

E
ng

in
ee

r 
of

 R
ec

or
d

Sheet Title

A
p

o
p

k
a

, 
F

lo
ri

d
a





 

 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: February 12, 2019 

 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: Special Exception  Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Aerial Map 

    Site Plan 

    Elevations 
  

 

SUBJECT:  SPECIAL EXCEPTION AND SITE PLAN – WASH CITY 

   

REQUEST:  APPROVAL OF THE SPECIAL EXCEPTION REQUEST AND SITE 

PLAN FOR WASH CITY 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

OWNER:  Felice Ladesernia Revocable Trust 

 

APPLICANT:  S. Brent Spain, Esquire 

  

LOCATION:   1860 & 1880 E. Semoran Blvd. 

 

PARCEL ID NUMBER: 12-21-28-8398-00-030 & 12-21-28-8398-00-020 

 

LAND USE:   Commercial  

 

ZONING:   Retail Commercial District (C-1) 

 

EXISTING USE:  Vacant 

 

PROPOSED USE: Car Wash 

    

TRACT SIZE:   2.04 acres +/-  

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

WASH CITY - SPECIAL EXCEPTION  

PAGE 2 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The property is presently assigned a Future Land Use Designation of 
“Commercial”. Within the C-1 (Retail Commercial District) zoning category, a car wash facility is a use 
that requires an approved Special Exception. The proposed car wash facility is comprised of 5,510 sq. ft. 
of building space, amounting to a floor area ratio (FAR) of .062. Vacuum Spaces and Employee parking 
spaces are located north of the car wash building. The development is proposed to be accessed from S.R. 
436, leading to a private driveway, defined as a private, cross access easement on the recorded 
“Summerset Wadarville Lot 2 Replat”. A 10’ bufferyard is proposed at the front property line, with 5 feet 
bufferyard required on the side lot lines. The applicant is proposing a 6’ wide bufferyard on the west side 
and a 7.5’ wide bufferyard on the east side.  
 
A. Relationship to Adjacent Properties:    Zoning and existing land use assigned to adjacent and 

nearby properties appears in the below exhibits.  The character of the area surrounding the subject 
property is described as follows:   

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Low Density Residential R-1 Wekiwa Manor Section 2 Single Family Res. 

East (City) Commercial C-1 Long John Silvers restaurant\Pep Boys Auto 

South (City) Residential High  R-3 Willow Lake Apartments 

West (City) Commercial C-1 Vacant Commercial Lot 

 

B. Special Exception Distance Separation Standard. “All special exception uses shall be located a 

minimum of 1,000 feet from any other existing like use in non-residential districts, and 1,500 feet 

in residential districts.” (Article II, Section 2.00.00, 5. Special Exceptions. B1). The proposed car 

wash is more than 1,500 feet from any other car wash businesses. 

 

C. Special Exception Development Standards.  Article II of the Land Development Code establishes 

development standards specific to special exceptions.  These standards are intended to reduce any 

impacts from the proposed special exception use on adjacent properties. After review of the 

Development Plan for the Special Exception, staff finds that the applicant has met the intent of the 

regulations stated in Article II, Section 2.02.01 General, (5), Special Exceptions.  

 

The parking requirement for this use is one space for each 200 sq. ft. of office plus 3 spaces per 

bay. 

 

 A lighting plan, landscape plan, and sign plan, will be provided during the Site Plan Approval 

Process (i.e. Preliminary Development Plan and/or Final Development Plan). 

 

 Hedges are proposed at the north, west, and east property lines while a 6’ masonry wall exists on 

the southern property line.  

 

C. Special Exception Conditions of Use.   

 

1. Hours of operation are limited to 6 am to 10 pm. 

 

2. Hedges and trees, in accordance with code, must be planted and maintained on the north, west, and 

east bufferyards. Hedges must 36 inches in height and on center at time of planting.  

 

3. The vacuum service area canopy shall have a hard roof, and all landscaping shall be maintained to 

screen the vacuum service area from adjacent properties and public roads. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

WASH CITY - SPECIAL EXCEPTION  

PAGE 3 

 

4. If the car wash business has vacated the parcel for more than 180 consecutive days, the property 

owner shall remove the equipment and canopy within the vacuum service area within thirty (30) 

days after receiving written notice from the City. 

 

5. This Special Exception authorization expires if (a) the applicant fails to obtain a certificate of 

occupancy or a business tax receipt within five years from the date of the Special Exception 

approval; and (b) the Special Exception Use has vacated the parcel for more than 180 consecutive 

days. 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

February 1, 2019 - Public Hearing Notice 

  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval for a Special Exception and Special 

Exception Site Plan to allow a car wash within the C-1 zoning district, subject to the Special Exception 

conditions within the staff report and the site plan. 

 

Recommended Motion:   Approve a Special Exception and Special Exception Site Plan to allow a car 

wash, subject to the Special Exception Conditions of Use, at 1860 and 1880 E. Semoran Blvd. 

 

Planning Commission Role - Pursuant to the City of Apopka Code of Ordinances, Part III, Land 

Development, Article XI, Section 11.05.D.1 the Planning Commission has the authority to take final 

action on a special exception application.  Therefore, the Planning Commission may approve, deny or 

approve with conditions this application.  An applicant may appeal the Planning Commission action to the 

City Council. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 

incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

WASH CITY - SPECIAL EXCEPTION  

PAGE 4 

 
 

WASH CITY 

SPECIAL EXCEPTION 

2.04 +/- Acres 

Parcel IDs #: 12-21-28-8398-00-030 & 12-21-28-8398-00-020 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

WASH CITY - SPECIAL EXCEPTION  

PAGE 5 

 
 

 

ADJACENT ZONING MAP 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

WASH CITY - SPECIAL EXCEPTION  

PAGE 6 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 













 

 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

 PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: February 12, 2019 

X SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: Plat  Plat 

    Final Development Plan 
  

 

SUBJECT:  PLAT – BRIDLE PATH RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION 

   

REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE PLAT FOR THE BRIDLE 

PATH KELLY PARK CROSSING FORM-BASED CODE 

SUBDIVISION 
  
SUMMARY: 

 
OWNER:    BB Bridle Path, LLC 
 
APPLICANT:    VHB – c/o Leah Fitzpatrick, P.E.  
 
LOCATION: West of Plymouth-Sorrento Road and east of SR 429, approximately  

one-half mile north of the intersection of Kelly Park Road and 
Plymouth-Sorrento Road 

 
PARCEL ID NUMBER:  12-20-27-0000-00-032 
 
EXISTING USE: Vacant, abandoned two story house and horse stables 
 
FLUM DESIGNATION:  Mixed-Use Interchange  
 
CURRENT ZONING: Mixed-Use Interchange 
 
OVERLAY DISTRICT: Kelly Park Form Based Code – Neighborhood District 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: 152 single family homes 
 
TRACT SIZE:    51 +/- acres 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

PLAT – BRIDLE PATH RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION 

PAGE 2 

 
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City, County) Rural A-1 (ZIP - City),  
A-1 (County) 

Single-family 
residential/woodlands 

East (County) Rural A-1 Plymouth-Sorrento Road,  
Sandhill Preserve 

South (City) Mixed-Use Interchange RCE-2 (ZIP) Equestrian track 

West (City) None SR 429 right-of-way  SR 429 

 
PROJECT INFORMATION: The applicant is requesting approval of a Plat for a 152 unit, single-family 
detached subdivision located east of SR 429 and west of Plymouth-Sorrento Road, approximately one-
half mile north of the intersection of Kelly Park Road and Plymouth-Sorrento Road. The property is 
located within the one-mile radius from the SR 429/Kelly Park Road interchange and is subject to the 
requirements of the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, including architectural standards for single 
family homes. 
 
Development Profile: 
 
Number of residential lots: 152 single family homes, detached 
Minimum lot width: 50 feet  
Minimum lot depth: 110 feet  
Minimum lot size: 5,500 square feet  
Minimum house livable area: 1,600 square feet  
 
Setbacks:   
 Front: Min. 15 feet – Max. 30 feet 
 Rear: Min. 20 feet 
 Side: Min. 5 feet 
 Garage: Same as front 
 
Amenities:   

 Pool house with cabana; on-street parking spaces 
 Concrete walking paths around stormwater ponds  
 Regional Trails:  one along Plymouth-Sorrento Road, and one internal along stormwater pond 

and wetland edges. 
 
Project Use: The Plat proposes development of the property with a total of 152 single-family homes with 
a minimum lot size of 50-feet by 110-feet and a minimum living area of 1,600 square feet. The property is 
located within the one-mile radius from the SR 429/Kelly Park Road interchange and is subject to the 
requirements of the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code. There are no minimum and maximum lot 
size and living area requirements in the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code. The Final 
Development Plan details design of the proposed subdivision in accordance with the requirements of the 
Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, and the Neighborhood character zone, which primarily allows 
single-family homes as permitted uses. The surrounding properties consist of single-family residential and 
agricultural uses.  
 
 
Access: Access to the site is proposed via Plymouth-Sorrento Road. A dedication of a 30-foot wide strip 
for future right-of-way needs for Plymouth-Sorrento Road is detailed on the Final Development Plan and 
Plat. Behind this strip, a 30-foot area is reserved for a landscape buffer along Plymouth-Sorrento Road. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

PLAT – BRIDLE PATH RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION 

PAGE 3 

 
Three roadway connections will be provided to allow cross-access to the properties to the north and south 
at such time they develop. The Final Development Plan details the design of the internal street system 
with public streets utilizing a walkable grid design, which is a fused grid design that includes varied 
street, sidewalk and pedestrian pathways throughout a development. The subdivision will consist of 
public roads and infrastructure that is owned and maintained by the City. A cul-de-sac is provided in the 
southwestern corner of the site, adjacent to the park and stormwater pond, and is provided to create an 
open space corridor along the stormwater pond system and wetland area adjacent to the cul-de-sac. The 
developer will provide a 12-foot wide multi-purpose trail along the portion of the development abutting 
Plymouth-Sorrento Road to help facilitate the construction of a regional trail system. 
 
Stormwater: Two stormwater retention ponds are located on the western portion of the site in tracts that 
are owned and maintained by the homeowners association.  Four foot wide concrete walking paths are 
provided around the perimeter of the ponds. 
 
Recreation/Open Space/Buffer: Common recreation elements include a clubhouse with a pool, preserved 
wetlands, upland buffers, and a park/stormwater facility. A 10-foot wide trail will be constructed within 
the development, and connections to the properties to the north and south will be provided to facilitate 
development of a regional trail system. The plat dedicates a public access easement over the internal trail 
system. The trail will be owned and maintained by the homeowners association. A wetland area exists in 
the northwest corner of the development. A spring is located within the wetland area. Per the 
Comprehensive Plan, a 300-foot buffer will be provided around the spring. Twenty percent of the total site 
area will remain as open space in accordance with the requirements of the Form Based Code. A 6-foot tall 
wall and a landscape buffer will be provided along the Plymouth-Sorrento Road frontage.  
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: The developer has obtained a school concurrency mitigation 
agreement with Orange County Public Schools to address school impacts generated by this residential 
development. The location is served by the following schools: Zellwood Elementary, Wolf Lake Middle, 
and Apopka High School.   
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The County was notified at the time of plat application for this 
property through the DRC agenda distribution.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
February 12, 2019 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
March 6, 2019 – City Council (1:30 pm)  
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Bridle Path Final Development Plan 
and Plat. 
 
Recommended Motion: Find the proposed Plat consistent with the Land Development Code and Final 
Development Plan, and recommend approval of the Bridle Path subdivision plat, subject to final review 
by the City Surveyor and City Engineer prior to recording the plat.   
 
Planning Commission role:  The role of the Planning Commission for this development application is to 
advise the City Council to approve or deny the Plat based on consistency with the Comprehensive Plan 
and Land Development Code.  
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 
incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

PLAT – BRIDLE PATH RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION 

PAGE 4 

 

Project: BRIDLE PATH 

Owned by:  BB Bridle Path, LLC 

Located: West of Plymouth-Sorrento Road and east of SR 429 

Parcel ID#s: 12-20-27-0000-00-032 

 

  VICINITY MAP 

 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

PLAT – BRIDLE PATH RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION 

PAGE 5 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

PLAT – BRIDLE PATH RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION 

PAGE 6 

 

 

 

KELLY PARK CROSSING FORM-BASED CODE AREA 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 Subject property  



BRIDLE PATH
BRIDLE PATH

A portion of land being in the East half of Section 12, Township 20 South, Range 27 East, Orange County, Florida and being more particularly described as follows:

Commence at the northeast corner of the northeast quarter of said Section 12; thence run along the East line of said northeast quarter, South 00° 01' 00” East, 1876.80 feet, thence leaving said East line run North 85° 36' 15” West, 30.09 feet to a point on the West

Right of Way line for Plymouth Sorrento Road, per Deed Book 402, Page 136, Public Records of Orange County, Florida, said point also being the POINT OF BEGINNING; thence run along said West Right of Way line, South 00° 01' 00" East, 776.34 feet to a point on

the South line of said northeast quarter; thence continue along said West Right of Way line, South 00° 09' 58" West, 154.49 feet; thence leaving said West Right of Way line run, South 89° 11' 53" West, 2091.56 feet to a point on the easterly Right of Way line of State

Road 429 (Wekiva Parkway), as shown on the Central Florida Expressway Authority Right of Way Map, from Project Number 429-203, said point being on a non-tangent curve, concave to the East, having a radius of 3300.00 feet, a central angle of 027° 09' 28", a

chord bearing of North 16° 13' 21" East and a chord distance of 1549.57 feet; thence run along said easterly Right of Way line and arc of said curve 1564.18 feet to a point of non-tangency; thence leaving said easterly Right of Way line run, North 89° 21' 40" East,

339.02 feet; thence run, South 00° 14' 16" West, 429.96 feet; thence run, South 85° 36' 15" East, 1325.37 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Said portion of land contains 51.091 Acres more or less.

A PORTION OF THE EAST HALF OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 20 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST
CITY OF APOPKA, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA

225 E. Robinson Street
Suite 300
Orlando, FL 32801
407.839.4006
Certificate of Authorization
Number FL #7153

SITE LOCATION

1. THE BEARING BASIS FOR THIS SURVEY IS ASSUMED NORTH AND RELATED TO THE EAST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 12,
TOWNSHIP 20 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST AS CALCULATED FROM COORDINATE DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CERTIFIED CORNER RECORD 47860 AND
CERTIFIED CORNER RECORD 47870, BEING SOUTH 00° 01' 00" EAST. NAD83 DATUM.

2. PURSUANT TO F.S. CHAPTER 177.091(28), ALL PLATTED UTILITY EASEMENTS SHALL ALSO BE EASEMENTS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION,
MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION OF CABLE TELEVISION SERVICES; PROVIDED, HOWEVER, NO SUCH CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE
AND OPERATION OF CABLE TELEVISION SERVICES SHALL INTERFERE WITH THE FACILITIES AND SERVICES OF AN ELECTRIC, TELEPHONE, GAS, OR OTHER
PUBLIC UTILITY.  IN THE EVENT A CABLE TELEVISION COMPANY DAMAGES THE FACILITIES OF A PUBLIC UTILITY, IT SHALL BE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR
THE DAMAGES.  THE ABOVE SHALL NOT APPLY TO ANY PRIVATE EASEMENTS, IF ANY, GRANTED TO OR OBTAINED BY A PARTICULAR ELECTRIC,
TELEPHONE, GAS OR OTHER PUBLIC UTILITY.  CABLE TELEVISION SERVICES CONSTRUCTION SHALL COMPLY WITH THE NATIONAL ELECTRICAL SAFETY
CODE AS ADOPTED BY THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION.

3. TRACTS SW-1 AND SW-2 SHALL SERVE AS STORM WATER RETENTION/DETENTION TRACTS TO BE OWNED AND MAINTAINED BY THE BRIDLE PATH
HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., A FLORIDA NON-PROFIT CORPORATION, OR ITS SUCCESSORS OR ASSIGNS.  A PERPETUAL, NON-EXCLUSIVE
EASEMENT FOR ACCESS OVER TRACTS SW-1 AND SW-2 IS HEREBY GRANTED TO THE CITY OF APOPKA.

4. TRACTS OS-1, OS-2, OS-3, OS-4, OS-5, OS-6, OS-7, OS-8, OS-9, OS-10, OS-11, OS-12 AND OS-13 SHALL SERVE AS OPEN SPACE/LANDSCAPE TRACTS TO
BE OWNED AND MAINTAINED BY THE BRIDLE PATH HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., A FLORIDA NON-PROFIT CORPORATION, OR ITS SUCCESSORS
OR ASSIGNS.

5. TRACTS A-1 AND A-2 SHALL SERVE AS A RECREATION/AMENITY TRACT TO BE OWNED AND MAINTAINED BY THE BRIDLE PATH HOMEOWNERS
ASSOCIATION, INC., A FLORIDA NON-PROFIT CORPORATION, OR ITS SUCCESSORS OR ASSIGNS.

6. THERE IS HEREBY GRANTED AND DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF APOPKA, FOR THE PERPETUAL USE OF THE PUBLIC, A NON-EXCLUSIVE PUBLIC ACCESS
MULTI-USE TRAIL EASEMENT OVER TRACTS RT-1,  RT-2, RT-3 AND RT-4, AS WELL AS THE AREA DESIGNATED AS A 4 FOOT TRAIL.  EACH TRAIL AND
TRACT WILL BE OWNED AND MAINTAINED BY THE BRIDLE PATH HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., A FLORIDA NON-PROFIT CORPORATION, OR ITS
SUCCESSORS OR ASSIGNS.

7. TRACT LS-1 (LIFT STATION) IS HEREBY DEDICATED IN FEE SIMPLE TO THE CITY OF APOPKA WITHOUT ANY RESTRICTION WHATSOEVER. CITY
OWNERSHIP OF SAID TRACT AND ANY IMPROVEMENTS THEREON VESTS UPON APPROVAL OF THE PLAT BY THE APOPKA PLANNING COMMISSION
AND CITY COUNCIL OF APOPKA. RECORDING OF THIS PLAT SHALL ACT AS CONVEYANCE TO THE CITY OF APOPKA AND NO FURTHER INSTRUMENT
SHALL BE NECESSARY TO VEST FEE SIMPLE TITLE.

8. A PERPETUAL, NON-EXCLUSIVE UTILITY AND ACCESS EASEMENT, WHICH SURROUNDS TRACT LS-1, IS HEREBY GRANTED TO THE CITY OF APOPKA

9. A PERPETUAL, NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE AND ACCESS OVER TRACTS DE-1 AND DE-2 IS HEREBY GRANTED TO THE CITY OF APOPKA.

10. THERE IS HEREBY GRANTED AND DEDICATED FOR THE PERPETUAL USE OF THE PUBLIC FOR UTILITY PURPOSES, A NON-EXCLUSIVE TEN FOOT UTILITY
EASEMENT LOCATED ADJACENT TO ALL ROADWAYS.

11. TRACT CA-1, CONSERVATION AREA, TO BE OWNED AND MAINTAINED BY THE BRIDLE PATH HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., A FLORIDA
NON-PROFIT CORPORATION, OR ITS SUCCESSORS OR ASSIGNS



S 89°11'53" W
666.24'

R=
33

00
.0

0'
∆=

01
0°

39
'3

9"

CH
B=

N
24

°2
8'

16
"

E

CH
D=

61
3.

13
'

L=
61

4.
02

'

N 89°21'40" E
339.02'

S 
00

°1
4'

16
" W

42
9.

96
'

NOT PLATTED

ST
AT

E 
RO

AD
 4

29
 (W

EK
IV

A 
PA

RK
W

AY
)

PE
R 

TH
E 

CE
N

TR
AL

 F
LO

RI
DA

 E
XP

RE
SS

W
AY

AU
TH

O
RI

TY
 R

IG
HT

 O
F 

W
AY

 M
AP

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

. 4
29

-2
03

PL
YM

O
UT

H
 S

O
RR

EN
TO

 R
O

AD
PE

R 
 D

EE
D

 B
O

O
K 

40
2,

 P
AG

E 
13

6

S 85°36'15" E
1295.28'EA

ST
ER

LY
RI

GH
T

O
F

W
A

Y
O

F
ST

A
TE

RO
AD

42
9

P.N.T.

P.N.T.

W
ES

T 
RI

G
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 L

IN
E

HORSESHOE LOOP(TRACT R-2, PUBLIC ROADWAY)

GALLOPING DRIVE
(TRACT R-1, PUBLIC ROADWAY)

PALOMINO PLACE
(TRACT R-3, PUBLIC ROADWAY)

PALOMINO PLACE

(TRACT R-3, PUBLIC ROADWAY)

G
A

LL
O

PI
N

G
 D

RI
VE

(T
RA

CT
 R

-1
, P

UB
LI

C 
RO

AD
W

AY
)

H
O

RS
ES

H
O

E 
LO

O
P

(T
RA

CT
 R

-2
, P

UB
LI

C 
RO

AD
W

AY
)

G
O

LD
EN

 M
A

N
E 

LA
N

E
(T

RA
CT

 R
-5

, P
UB

LI
C 

RO
AD

W
AY

)

H
U

N
TE

R 
JU

M
PE

R 
LA

N
E

(T
RA

CT
 R

-6
, P

UB
LI

C 
RO

AD
W

AY
)

SW
IF

T 
CA

N
TE

R
LA

N
E

(T
RA

CT
 R

-7
, P

UB
LI

C 
RO

AD
W

AY
)

SA
D

D
LE

 H
O

RN
 L

A
N

E
(T

RA
CT

 R
-4

, P
UB

LI
C 

RO
AD

W
AY

)

CONSERVATION
AREA

TRACT CA-1

TRACT OS-9
OPEN SPACE

TRACT OS-2
OPEN SPACE

TR
AC

T 
O

S-
1 

O
PE

N
 S

PA
CE

TR
AC

T 
O

S-
3 

  O
PE

N
 S

PA
CE

TRACT OS-3    OPEN SPACETRACT OS-5   OPEN SPACE

TR
AC

T 
O

S-
5

O
PE

N
 S

PA
CE

TR
AC

T 
O

S-
5 

  O
PE

N
 S

PA
CE

TR
AC

T O
S-

6

OPE
N SP

AC
E

TRACT SW-2
STORMWATER

POND

TRACT SW-1
STORMWATER

POND

TRACT OS-5   OPEN SPACE

TRACT A-1AMENITY AREA

TR
AC

T 
A-

2
AM

EN
ITY

 A
RE

A

TRACT OS-7
OPEN SPACE

TRACT OS-8
OPEN SPACE

TR
AC

T 
O

S-
10

   
O

PE
N

 S
PA

CE

TRACT LS-1
LIFT STATION

EA
ST

 L
IN

E 
O

F 
TH

E
N

O
RT

H
EA

ST
 Q

UA
RT

ER
 O

F
SE

CT
IO

N
 1

2,
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
 2

0
SO

UT
H

, R
AN

G
E 

27
 E

AS
T

TR
AC

T 
RO

W
-1

RI
G

H
T 

O
F 

W
AY

 D
ED

IC
AT

IO
N

TR
AC

T 
RO

W
-1

RI
G

H
T 

O
F 

W
AY

 D
ED

IC
AT

IO
N

N 85°36'15" W     30.09'

S 
00

°2
1'

58
" W

26
58

.0
1'

S 
00

°2
1'

58
" W

26
91

.6
0'

S 
00

°0
1'

00
" E

26
50

.4
1'

SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF
SEC. 12, TWP. 20 SOUTH, RNG. 27 EAST
FND. 6"X6" CMON WITH 3/4" IRON PIPE, NO ID.
C.C.R.# 101924

NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE
NORTHEAST QUARTER OF
SEC. 12, TWP. 20 SOUTH, RNG. 27 EAST
FND. 4"X4" CMON, NO ID.
C.C.R.# 47859

SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE
SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF
SEC. 12, TWP. 20 SOUTH, RNG. 27 EAST
POSITION BASED ON C.C.R.# 47869
AND S.R. 429 RIGHT OF WAY MAPS

SOUTHEAST CORNER OF
THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF

SEC. 12, TWP. 20 SOUTH, RNG. 27 EAST
POSITION BASED ON C.C.R.# 47870

AND S.R. 429 RIGHT OF WAY MAP

NORTHEAST CORNER
OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER

OF SEC. 12, TWP. 20 SOUTH, RNG. 27 EAST
FND. 1/2" IRON ROD IN WELL BOX, NO ID.

C.C.R.# 47860

S 88°20'47" W
2716.11'

N 89°21'12" E
2687.89'

S 
00

°0
1'

00
" E

   
  1

87
6.

80
'

CENTER OF SECTION
NOTHING FOUND, NOTHING SET

NOT PLATTED

NOT PLATTED

NOT PLATTED

NOT PLATTED

SOUTHEAST CORNER
OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF
SEC. 12, TWP. 20 SOUTH, RNG. 27 EAST
FND. 1/2" IRON ROD IN WELL BOX, NO ID.
C.C.R.# 47863

N 85°36'15" W     30.09'

S 
00

°0
1'

00
" E

   
   

77
6.

34
'

S 00°09'58" W
154.49'

S 89°11'53" W
1395.32'

R=
33

00
.0

0'
∆=

0 1
6 °

29
'4

9"
CH

B=
N

10
°5

3'
32

"
E

CH
D

=
9 4

6 .
88

'
L=

95
0.

16
'

R=
33

00
.0

0'
∆=

01
0°

39
'3

9"

CH
B=

N
24

°2
8'

16
"

E

CH
D=

61
3.

13
'

L=
61

4.
02

'

POINT OF COMMENCEMENT

POINT OF BEGINNING

N 89°11'53" E
2687.08'

N 89°11'53" E
2705.73'

S 
00

°0
9'

58
" W

26
51

.0
5'

S 00°09'58" W
154.49'

S 
00

°0
1'

00
" E

   
77

9.
06

'

SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF
SEC. 12, TWP. 20 SOUTH, RNG. 27 EAST

N 89°11'53" W     30.00'

TRACT RT-1
RECREATION TRAIL

TRACT RT-2
RECREATION TRAIL

TRACT OS-11
OPEN SPACE

4.00' TRAIL
EASEMENT

4.00' TRAIL
EASEMENT TR

AC
T 

RT
-3

 R
EC

RE
AT

IO
N

AL
 T

RA
CT

TR
AC

T 
RT

-4
 R

EC
RE

AT
IO

N
AL

 T
RA

CT

TR
AC

T 
O

S-
4

O
PE

N
 S

PA
CE

TRACT OS-12   OPEN SPACETRACT OS-13   OPEN SPACE

PA
LO

M
IN

O
 P

LA
CE

(T
RA

CT
 R

-8
, P

UB
LI

C 
RO

AD
W

AY
)

225 E. Robinson Street
Suite 300
Orlando, FL 32801
407.839.4006
Certificate of Authorization
Number FL #7153

BRIDLE PATH
A PORTION OF THE EAST HALF OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 20 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST

CITY OF APOPKA, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA

N

120 60 0 120

1 : 120 U.S. SURVEY FEET

C.C.R. = CERTIFIED CORNER REPORT
CMON = CONCRETE MONUMENT
FND. = FOUND
ID. = IDENTIFICATION
LB = LICENSED BUSINESS
LS = LICENSED SURVEYOR
P.B. = PLAT BOOK
PG. = PAGE
P.N.T. = POINT OF NON-TANGENCY CURVE
RNG. = RANGE
SEC. = SECTION
S.R. = STATE ROAD
TWP. = TOWNSHIP

= SET 4" X 4" CMON WITH NAIL & DISC
    "VHB PRM LB 7153"



25
.00

'
25

.00
'

P.C. P.I.P.T.

P.I.

P.I.

P.I.

P.I.

P.I.

P.I.

P.C.
P.C.C.

P.C.

P.T.

N 89°59'10" W     549.93'

S 
00

°0
0'

50
" W

35
6.

99
'

S 72°25'08" W

134.19'

N 09°03'48" W
52.98'

N
 0

4°
24

'4
7"

 E
11

5.
66

'

N 85°36'15" W
879.54'

C1

R=
10

00
.0

0'
Δ=

13
°2

8'
35

"
CH

B=
N

0 2
°1

9 '
31

"
W

CH
D

=
23

4.
66

'
L=

23
5.

21
'

C2
C3

C4C5

C7

HORSESHOE LOOP(TRACT R-2, PUBLIC ROADWAY)
TRACT LIMIT

H
U

N
TE

R 
JU

M
PE

R 
LA

N
E

(T
RA

CT
 R

-6
, P

UB
LI

C 
RO

AD
W

AY
)

PA
LO

M
IN

O
 P

LA
CE

(T
RA

CT
 R

-8
, P

UB
LI

C 
RO

AD
W

AY
)

SA
D

D
LE

 H
O

RN
 L

A
N

E
(T

RA
CT

 R
-4

, P
UB

LI
C 

RO
AD

W
AY

)

TRACT OS-2   OPEN SPACE

TR
AC

T 
O

S-
1 

  O
PE

N
 S

PA
CE

TR
AC

T 
O

S-
3 

  O
PE

N
 S

PA
CE S 

00
°0

1'
00

" E
   

77
9.

06
'

POINT OF BEGINNING

EA
ST

 L
IN

E 
O

F 
TH

E 
N

O
RT

H
EA

ST
 Q

UA
RT

ER
 O

F 
SE

CT
IO

N
 1

2,
TO

W
N

SH
IP

 2
0 

SO
UT

H
, R

AN
G

E 
27

 E
AS

T

TR
AC

T 
RO

W
-1

RI
G

H
T 

O
F 

W
AY

 D
ED

IC
AT

IO
N

S 
00

°0
1'

00
" E

   
77

9.
06

'

TRACT LIMIT

TRACT LIMIT

TRACT LIMIT

TRACT LIMIT

TRACT LIMIT

S 85°36'15" E   1295.28'

N 89°59'10" W
175.23'

TRACT OS-11 OPEN SPACE

29
0.

85
'

28
8.

91
'

15
0.

44
'

640.34'

239.20'

84.70' 290.00'

NORTHEAST CORNER
OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER

OF SEC. 12, TWP. 20 SOUTH, RNG. 27 EAST
FND. 1/2" IRON ROD IN WELL BOX, NO ID.

C.C.R.# 47860

POINT OF COMMENCEMENT

S 
00

°0
1'

00
" E

   
26

50
.4

1'

S 
00

°0
1'

00
" E

   
  1

87
6.

80
'

N
 0

0°
00

'5
0"

 E
73

0.
20

'
N

 0
0°

00
'5

0"
 E

73
0.

20
'

PL
YM

OU
TH

 SO
RR

EN
TO

 R
OA

D
PE

R 
 D

EE
D 

BO
OK

 4
02

, P
AG

E 
13

6

NOT PLATTED

N
 0

0°
00

'5
0"

 E
   

  7
30

.2
0'

TR
AC

T 
RT

-3
 R

EC
RE

AT
IO

N
AL

 T
RA

IL

GALLOPING DRIVE
(TRACT R-1, PUBLIC ROADWAY)

CURVE TABLE

NUMBER RADIUS DELTA CHORD BEARING CHORD LENGTH

CURVE TABLE

NUMBER RADIUS DELTA CHORD BEARING CHORD LENGTH

LINE TABLE

LINE # BEARING LENGTH

225 E. Robinson Street
Suite 300
Orlando, FL 32801
407.839.4006
Certificate of Authorization
Number FL #7153

BRIDLE PATH
A PORTION OF THE EAST HALF OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 20 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST

CITY OF APOPKA, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA
N

50 25 0 50

1 : 50 U.S. SURVEY FEET

M  A  T  C  H   L  I  N  E
S  E  E     S  H  E  E  T    F  O  U  R

M
 A

 T
 C

 H
  

L 
I 

N
 E

S 
E 

E 
  

 S
 H

 E
 E

 T
  

 F
IV

E

CCR = CERTIFIED CORNER RECORD
CHB = CURVE CHORD BEARING
CHD = CURVE CHORD DISTANCE
CMON = CONCRETE MONUMENT
D.E. = DRAINAGE EASEMENT
L = CURVE LENGTH
LB = LICENSED BUSINESS  
P.C. = POINT OF CURVATURE
P.C.C. = POINT OF COMPOUND CURVATURE
PCP = PERMANENT CONTROL POINT
P.I. = POINT OF INTERSECTION
PRM = PERMANENT REFERENCE MONUMENT
P.T. = POINT OF TANGENCY
R = CURVE RADIUS
RNG. = RANGE
SEC. = SECTION
TWP. = TOWNSHIP
U.E. = UTILITY EASEMENT
Δ = CURVE DELTA ANGLE

= SET MAG NAIL AND DISC "PCP LB 7153"
= SET 4" X 4" CMON WITH NAIL & DISC "VHB PRM LB 7153"



P.C. P.I.P.T.

P.I.
P.I.

P.I.
P.I. P.I.

P.I.

P.I.

P.I.

P.C.
P.C.C.

P.C.

P.C.

P.C.

P.C.

P.T.

P.T.

N 89°59'10" W     549.93'

S 
00

°0
0'

50
" W

35
6.

99
'

S 
00

°4
6'

03
" E

   
  1

55
.4

0'

S 89°13'57" W
564.15'

N
 1

3°
40

'0
1"

 E
29

2.
66

'

S 72°25'08" W

134.19'

N 09°03'48" W
52.98'

N 74°03'18" W76.53'

C1

R=
10

00
.0

0'
Δ

=
13

°2
8'

35
"

CH
CH

D
=

23
4.

66
'

L=CH

C2
C3

C4C5

C6 C7

C8C10

C13

C14

25.00' Δ=30°49'40" CHB= N 75°21'13" W

CHD=598.03' L=605.31'
PALOMINO PLACE

(TRACT R-3, PUBLIC ROADWAY)

G
O

LD
EN

 M
A

N
E 

LA
N

E
(T

RA
CT

 R
-5

, P
UB

LI
C 

RO
AD

W
AY

)

H
U

N
TE

R 
JU

M
PE

R 
LA

N
E

(T
RA

CT
 R

-6
, P

UB
LI

C 
RO

AD
W

AY
)

SW
IF

T 
CA

N
TE

R 
LA

N
E

(T
RA

CT
 R

-7
, P

UB
LI

C 
RO

AD
W

AY
)

SA
D

D
LE

 H
O

RN
 L

A
N

E
(T

RA
CT

 R
-4

, P
UB

LI
C 

RO
AD

W
AY

)

TRACT LIMIT

TRACT OS-2   OPEN SPACE

TR
AC

T 
O

S-
3 

  O
PE

N
 S

PA
CE

TRACT OS-3   OPEN SPACE
TRACT OS-12   OPEN SPACE

S 
00

°0
1'

00
" E

   
77

9.
06

'

SOUTHEAST CORNER
OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF
SEC. 12, TWP. 20 SOUTH, RNG. 27 EAST
FND. 1/2" IRON ROD IN WELL BOX, NO ID.
C.C.R.# 47863

TR
AC

T 
RO

W
-1

RI
G

H
T 

O
F 

W
AY

 D
ED

IC
AT

IO
N

TRACT LIMIT

TRACT LIMIT

TRACT LIMIT

TRACT LIMIT

TRACT LIMIT

TRACT LIMIT

TRACT LIMIT

S 
00

°0
9'

58
" W

15
4.

49
'

S 89°11'53" W
641.24'S 89°11'53" W

1420.32'

N 89°59'10" W
175.23'

225.91'178.31'159.93'

28
8.

91
'

84.70' 290.00'

S 
00

°0
1'

00
" E

   
26

50
.4

1'

N
 0

0°
00

'5
0"

 E
73

0.
20

'
N

 0
0°

00
'5

0"
 E

73
0.

20
'

PL
YM

OU
TH

 SO
RR

EN
TO

 R
OA

D
PE

R 
 D

EE
D 

BO
OK

 4
02

, P
AG

E 
13

6

NOT PLATTEDNOT PLATTED

N
 0

0°
00

'5
0"

 E
   

  7
30

.2
0'

TR
AC

T 
RT

-4
 R

EC
RE

AT
IO

N
AL

 T
RA

IL

GALLOPING DRIVE
(TRACT R-1, PUBLIC ROADWAY)

CURVE TABLE

NUMBER RADIUS DELTA CHORD BEARING CHORD LENGTH

CURVE TABLE

NUMBER RADIUS DELTA CHORD BEARING CHORD LENGTH

CURVE TABLE

NUMBER RADIUS DELTA CHORD BEARING CHORD LENGTH

CURVE TABLE

NUMBER RADIUS DELTA CHORD BEARING CHORD LENGTH

CURVE TABLE

NUMBER RADIUS DELTA CHORD BEARING CHORD LENGTH

225 E. Robinson Street
Suite 300
Orlando, FL 32801
407.839.4006
Certificate of Authorization
Number FL #7153

BRIDLE PATH
A PORTION OF THE EAST HALF OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 20 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST

CITY OF APOPKA, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA
N

50 25 0 50

1 : 50 U.S. SURVEY FEET

M  A  T  C  H   L  I  N  E
S  E  E     S  H  E  E  T    T  H  R  E  E

M
 A

 T
 C

 H
  

L 
I 

N
 E

S 
E 

E 
  

 S
 H

 E
 E

 T
  

 F
IV

E

CCR = CERTIFIED CORNER RECORD
CHB = CURVE CHORD BEARING
CHD = CURVE CHORD DISTANCE
CMON = CONCRETE MONUMENT
D.E. = DRAINAGE EASEMENT
L = CURVE LENGTH
LB = LICENSED BUSINESS  
P.C. = POINT OF CURVATURE
P.C.C. = POINT OF COMPOUND CURVATURE
PCP = PERMANENT CONTROL POINT
P.I. = POINT OF INTERSECTION
PRM = PERMANENT REFERENCE MONUMENT
P.T. = POINT OF TANGENCY
R = CURVE RADIUS
RNG. = RANGE
SEC. = SECTION
TWP. = TOWNSHIP
U.E. = UTILITY EASEMENT
Δ = CURVE DELTA ANGLE

= SET MAG NAIL AND DISC "PCP LB 7153"
= SET 4" X 4" CMON WITH NAIL & DISC "VHB PRM LB 7153"



P.I.

P.I.

P.I.

P.I.

P.C.

P.C.

P.C.C.

P.C.

P.C.C.

P.T.

P.T.

P.I.

N
 1

3°
40

'0
1"

 E
29

2.
66

'

N 74°03'18" W76.53'

N 58°55'37" W
97.42'

R=
32

45
.00

' Δ
=1

3°
23

'26
" C

HB
=

S
09

°2
4'3

8"
W

CH
D=

75
6.6

7'
L=

75
8.4

0'

R=
12

00
.00

' Δ
=1

4°
25

'45
" C

HB
=

S
19

°4
4'2

4"
W

CH
D=

30
1.4

0'
L=

30
2.2

1'

C5
C6 C7

C8

C9

C10

C11

C12

C14

C15
R=1125.00' Δ=30°49'40" CHB= N 75°21'13" W

CHD=598.03' L=605.31'

S 30°03'36" W
33.00'

R.P.
50.00' RADIUS

GALLOPING DRIVE

(TRACT R-1, PUBLIC ROADWAY)

PALOMINO PLACE

(TRACT R-3, PUBLIC ROADWAY)

G
A

LL
O

PI
N

G
 D

RI
VE

(T
RA

CT
 R

-1
, P

UB
LI

C 
RO

AD
W

AY
)

H
O

RS
ES

H
O

E 
LO

O
P

(T
RA

CT
 R

-2
, P

UB
LI

C 
RO

AD
W

AY
)

G
O

LD
EN

 M
A

N
E 

LA
N

E
(T

RA
CT

 R
-5

, P
UB

LI
C 

RO
AD

W
AY

)

TRACT LIMIT

TRACT OS-5   OPEN SPACE

TRACT OS-12   OPEN SPACE

TR
AC

T 
O

S-
5 

  O
PE

N
 S

PA
CE

TR
AC

T 
OS

-6
   

OP
EN

 SP
AC

E

TR
AC

T 
O

S-
5 

  O
PE

N
 S

PA
CE

TRACT SW-2
STORMWATER POND

TRACT SW-1
STORMWATER POND

TRACT OS-5   OPEN SPACE

TRACT OS-4
OPEN SPACE

TRACT A-1
AMENITY AREA

TR
AC

T 
A-

2
AM

EN
ITY

 A
RE

A

TR
AC

T 
O

S-
10

   
O

PE
N

 S
PA

CE

TR
AC

T 
O

S-
10

   
O

PE
N

 S
PA

CE

TRACT LS-1
LIFT STATION

TRACT LIMIT

TRACT LIMIT

TRACT LIMIT

SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SEC. 12, TWP. 20 SOUTH, RNG. 27 EAST

TRACT RT-1
RECREATIONAL

TRAIL

TRACT RT-2
RECREATIONAL

TRAIL

TRACT RT-2
RECREATIONAL TRAIL

R=
33

00
∆=

01
6°

29
CH

B=
N

10
°5

3
CH

D=
94

6.8
L=

95
0.0

9'

R=
33

00
.0

0'
∆=

01
6°

29
'4

5"
CH

B=
N

10
°5

3'3
0"

E
CH

D=
94

6.8
2'

L=
95

0.0
9'

S 89°11'53" W
1420.32'

N 89°11'53" E    2705.73'

R=1025.00' Δ=27°19'09" CHB= N 72°35'11" W

CHD=484.12' L=488.74'

239.20'

P.C.C.

TA
TE

 R
OA

D 
42

9 (
W

EK
IV

A 
PA

RK
W

AY
)

PE
R 

TH
E C

EN
TR

AL
 FL

OR
ID

A 
EX

PR
ES

SW
AY

AU
TH

OR
ITY

 R
IG

HT
 O

F W
AY

 M
AP

PR
OJ

EC
T N

O.
 42

9-
20

3

NOT PLATTEDNOT PLATTED

TRACT OS-5
OPEN SPACE

4.00' RECREATIONAL TRAIL
EASEMENT

(SEE SHEET 7 OF 7 FOR LINE
AND CURVE DATA)

4.00' RECREATIONAL TRAIL
EASEMENT

SEE SHEET 7

4.0' RECREATIONAL TRAIL
EASEMENT

(SEE SHEET 7 OF 7 FOR LINE
AND CURVE DATA)

(SEE SHEET 7 OF 7 FOR LINE
AND CURVE DATA)

TRACT OS-13   OPEN SPACE

TRACT OS-6   OPEN SPACE

CURVE TABLE
NUMBERRADIUS DELTA CHORD BEARINGCHORDLENGTH

CURVE TABLE
NUMBERRADIUS DELTA CHORD BEARINGCHORDLENGTH

225 E. Robinson Street
Suite 300
Orlando, FL 32801
407.839.4006
Certificate of Authorization
Number FL #7153

BRIDLE PATH
A PORTION OF THE EAST HALF OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 20 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST

CITY OF APOPKA, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA
N

50 25 0 50

1 : 50 U.S. SURVEY FEET

M A T C H  L I N E
S E E    S H E E T   S I X

M
 A

 T
 C

 H
  

L 
I 

N
 E

S 
E 

E 
  

 S
 H

 E
 E

 T
  

 F
 O

 U
 R

CCR = CERTIFIED CORNER RECORD
CHB = CURVE CHORD BEARING
CHD = CURVE CHORD DISTANCE
CMON = CONCRETE MONUMENT
D.E. = DRAINAGE EASEMENT
L = CURVE LENGTH
LB = LICENSED BUSINESS  
P.C. = POINT OF CURVATURE
P.C.C. = POINT OF COMPOUND CURVATURE
PCP = PERMANENT CONTROL POINT
P.I. = POINT OF INTERSECTION
PRM = PERMANENT REFERENCE MONUMENT
P.T. = POINT OF TANGENCY
R = CURVE RADIUS
RNG. = RANGE
SEC. = SECTION
TWP. = TOWNSHIP
U.E. = UTILITY EASEMENT
Δ = CURVE DELTA ANGLE

= SET MAG NAIL AND DISC "PCP LB 7153"
= SET 4" X 4" CMON WITH NAIL & DISC "VHB PRM LB 7153"



P.I.

P.I.
P.I.

P.I.

P.C.
P.C.C.

P.C.

P.C.

P.C.C.

P.C.

P.C.

P.T.

P.C.C.

P.T.

P.T.

S 72°25'08" W

134.19'

N 09°03'48" W
52.98'

N 74°03'18" W76.53'

N 58°55'37" W
97.42'

N
 0

4°
24

'4
7"

 E
11

5.
66

'

=
75

8.
40

'

R=
10

00
.0

0'
Δ=

13
°2

8'
35

"
CH

B=
N

02
°1

9 '
3 1

"
W

CH
D

=
23

4.
66

'
L=

23
5.

21
'

R=
12

00
.0

0'
Δ=

14
°2

5'
45

"
CH

B=
S

19
°4

4'
24

"
W

CH
D=

30
1.4

0'
L=

30
2.

21
'

C2
C3

C4C5

C6 C7

C8

C9

C10

C11

C12

GALLOPING DRIVE

(TRACT R-1, PUBLIC ROADWAY)

G
A

LL
O

PI
N

G
 D

RI
VE

(T
RA

CT
 R

-1
, P

UB
LI

C 
RO

AD
W

AY
)

H
O

RS
ES

H
O

E 
LO

O
P

(T
RA

CT
 R

-2
, P

UB
LI

C 
RO

AD
W

AY
)

SA
D

D
LE

 H
O

RN
 L

A
N

E
(T

RA
CT

 R
-4

, P
UB

LI
C 

RO
AD

W
AY

)

CONSERVATION AREA
TRACT CA-1

TRACT LIMIT

TRACT OS-9
OPEN SPACE

TR
AC

T 
OS

-6
   

OP
EN

 SP
AC

E

TR
AC

T 
O

S-
5 

  O
PE

N
 S

PA
CE

TRACT SW-2
STORMWATER POND

TRACT OS-5   OPEN SPACE

TRACT OS-7
OPEN SPACE

TRACT A-1AMENITY AREA

TR
AC

T 
A-

2
AM

EN
ITY

 A
RE

A

TRACT OS-8
OPEN SPACE

TR
AC

T 
O

S-
10

   
O

PE
N

 S
PA

CE

TRACT LIMIT

TRACT LIMIT

TRACT LIMIT

R=
33

00
.0

0'
∆=

01
0°

39
'4

3"

CH
B=

N
24

°2
8'

14
"

E

CH
D=

61
3.

20
'

L=
61

4.
08

'

TRACT RT-1
RECREATIONAL

TRAIL

TRACT RT-2
RECREATIONAL

TRAIL

S 85°36'15" E   1295.28'

R=
33

00
.0

0'
∆=

01
6°

29
'4

5"
CH

B=
N

10
°5

3'
30

"
E

CH
D=

94
6.

82
'

L=
95

0.
09

'

N 89°21'40" E    339.02'

S 
00

°1
4'

16
" W

42
9.

96
'

R=1025.00' Δ=27°19'09" CHB= N 72°35'11" W

CHD=484.12' L=488.74'

239.20'

P.C.C.

TA
TE

 RO
AD

 42
9 (

W
EK

IVA
 PA

RK
W

AY
)

PE
R T

HE
 C

EN
TR

AL
 FL

OR
ID

A 
EX

PR
ES

SW
AY

AU
TH

OR
ITY

 RI
GH

T O
F W

AY
 M

AP

PR
OJ

EC
T N

O.
 42

9-
20

3

NOT PLATTED

NOT PLATTED

NO
T 

PL
AT

TE
D

TRACT OS-5
OPEN SPACE

4.00' RECREATIONAL TRAIL
EASEMENT

CURVE TABLE

NUMBER RADIUS DELTA CHORD BEARING CHORD LENGTH

CURVE TABLE

NUMBER RADIUS DELTA CHORD BEARING CHORD LENGTH

225 E. Robinson Street
Suite 300
Orlando, FL 32801
407.839.4006
Certificate of Authorization
Number FL #7153

BRIDLE PATH
A PORTION OF THE EAST HALF OF SECTION 12,

TOWNSHIP 20 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST
CITY OF APOPKA, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA

N

50 25 0 50

1 : 50 U.S. SURVEY FEET CCR = CERTIFIED CORNER RECORD
CHB = CURVE CHORD BEARING
CHD = CURVE CHORD DISTANCE
CMON = CONCRETE MONUMENT
D.E. = DRAINAGE EASEMENT
L = CURVE LENGTH
LB = LICENSED BUSINESS  
P.C. = POINT OF CURVATURE
P.C.C. = POINT OF COMPOUND CURVATURE
PCP = PERMANENT CONTROL POINT
P.I. = POINT OF INTERSECTION
PRM = PERMANENT REFERENCE MONUMENT
P.T. = POINT OF TANGENCY
R = CURVE RADIUS
RNG. = RANGE
SEC. = SECTION
TWP. = TOWNSHIP
U.E. = UTILITY EASEMENT
Δ = CURVE DELTA ANGLE

= SET MAG NAIL AND DISC "PCP LB 7153"
= SET 4" X 4" CMON WITH NAIL & DISC "VHB PRM LB 7153"

M  A  T  C  H   L  I  N  E
S  E  E     S  H  E  E  T    F  I  V  E

M
 A

 T
 C

 H
  

L 
I 

N
 E

S 
E 

E 
  

 S
 H

 E
 E

 T
  

 T
H

R
EE



P.I.

P.I.

P.C.

P.C.C.

P.T.

P.I.

N 58°55'37" W
97.42'

R=
32

45
.00

' Δ
=1

3°
23

'26
" C

HB
=

S
09

°2
4'3

8"
W

CH
D=

75
6.6

7'
L=

75
8.4

0'

R=
12

00
.00

' Δ
=1

4°
25

'45
" C

HB
=

S
19

°4
4'2

4"
W

CH
D=

30
1.4

0'
L=

30
2.2

1'

C9

C10

C11

C15
R=1125.00' Δ=3CHD=

S 30°03'36" W
33.00'

R.P.
50.00' RADIUS

GALLOPING DRIVE

(TRACT R-1, PUBLIC ROADWAY)

PALOMINO PLACE

(TRACT R-3, PUBLIC ROADWAY)

G
A

LL
O

PI
N

G
 D

RI
VE

(T
RA

CT
 R

-1
, P

UB
LI

C 
RO

AD
W

AY
)

H
O

RS
ES

H
O

E 
LO

O
P

TRACT OS-5   OPEN SPACE

TR
AC

T 
O

S-
5 

  O
PE

N
 S

PA
CE

TR
AC

T 
OS

-6
   

OP
EN

 SP
AC

E

TR
AC

T 
O

S-
5 

  O
PE

N
 S

PA
CE

TRACT SW-2
STORMWATER POND

TRACT SW-1
STORMWATER POND

TRACT OS-5   OPEN SPACE

TRACT OS-4
OPEN SPACE

TRACT A-1
AMENITY AREA

TR
AC

T 
A-

2
AM

EN
ITY

 A
RE

A

TR
AC

T 
O

S-
10

   
O

PE
N

 S
PA

CE

TR
AC

T 
O

S-
10

   
O

PE
N

 S
PA

CE

TRACT LS-1
LIFT STATION

TRACT LIMIT

SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SEC. 12, TWP. 20 SOUTH, RNG. 27 EAST

TRACT RT-1
RECREATIONAL

TRAIL

TRACT RT-2
RECREATIONAL

TRAIL

TRACT RT-2
RECREATIONAL TRAIL

R=
33

0
∆=

01
6°

2
CH

B=
N

10
°5

CH
D=

94
6

L=
95

0.0
9

R=
33

00
.00

'
∆=

01
6°

29
'4

5"
CH

B=
N

10
°5

3'3
0"

E
CH

D=
94

6.8
2'

L=
95

0.0
9'

N 89°11'53" E    2705.73'

R=1025.00' Δ=27°19'09" CHB= N 72°35'11" W

CHD=484.12' L=488.74'P.C.C.

TA
TE

 R
OA

D 
42

9 (
W

EK
IV

A 
PA

RK
W

AY
)

PE
R 

TH
E C

EN
TR

AL
 FL

OR
ID

A 
EX

PR
ES

SW
AY

AU
TH

OR
ITY

 R
IG

HT
 O

F W
AY

 M
AP

PR
OJ

EC
T N

O.
 42

9-
20

3

NOT PLATTED

TRACT OS-5
OPEN SPACE

4.00' RECREATIONAL TRAIL
EASEMENT

(SEE SHEET 7 OF 7 FOR LINE
AND CURVE DATA)

4.00' RECREATIONAL TRAIL
EASEMENT

4.0' RECREATIONAL TRAIL
EASEMENT

(SEE SHEET 7 OF 7 FOR LINE
AND CURVE DATA)

(SEE SHEET 7 OF 7 FOR LINE
AND CURVE DATA)

TRACT OS-13   OPEN SPACE

TRACT OS-6   OPEN SPACE

CURVE TABLE
NUMBERRADIUS DELTA CHORD BEARINGCHORDLENGTH

CURVE TABLE
NUMBERRADIUS DELTA CHORD BEARINGCHORDLENGTH

TRACT OS-4
OPEN SPACE

TRACT LS-1
LIFT STATION

UTILITY AND ACCESS
EASEMENT

Δ

Δ

PALOMINO PLACE

(TRACT R-3, PUBLIC ROADWAY)

225 E. Robinson Street
Suite 300
Orlando, FL 32801
407.839.4006
Certificate of Authorization
Number FL #7153

BRIDLE PATH
A PORTION OF THE EAST HALF OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 20 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST

CITY OF APOPKA, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA
N

50 25 0 50

1 : 50 U.S. SURVEY FEET

CHB = CHORD BEARING
CHD = CHORD DISTANCE
L = LENGTH
R = RADIUS
Δ = CENTRAL ANGLE
U.E. = UTILITY EASEMENT



Galloping Drive

Sa
dd

le
 H

or
n 

La
ne

Horseshoe Loop

Palomino Place

G
ol

de
n 

M
an

e 
La

ne

H
or

se
sh

oe
 L

oo
p

H
un

te
r J

um
pe

r L
an

e

Sw
ift

 C
an

te
r L

an
e

G
al

lo
pi

ng
 D

riv
e

Pa
lo

m
in

o 
Pl

ac
e

126

127

128

123

124

125

120

121

122

119

109
110

111112113114

132 133 134 135 136 137

129
130 131

105
104

103
102

101

108 107
106

68
67

66
65

72
71

70
69

83

82

81

80

79 88

87

86

85

84 93

92

91

90

89

141140139138 145144143142

148

147

146

152

151

150

149

36

37

38

39

40

61
60

59
58

57

32

33

34

35

31

30

29

64

63

62

25

26

27

28

18192021222324

1314151617

89101112

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Open Space
OS-9

0.78 ac.

Open Space
OS-7

0.67 ac.

Open Space
OS-10

0.68 ac.

Open Space
OS-11
0.07 ac.

115

116

117

118

4950515253545556

4847464544434241

949596979899100

78
7776

757473

Open Space
OS-2
0.03 ac.

Recreation Trail
RT-4
0.13 ac.

Right of Way
ROW-1
0.64 ac.

Open Space
OS-3

0.49 ac.

Recreation Trail
RT-3
0.11 ac.

Open Space
OS-1
0.19 ac.

Open Space
OS-13

0.33 ac.

Open Space
OS-12

0.24 ac.

Recreation Trail
RT-2

0.21 ac.

Open Space
OS-4

0.39 ac.

Open Space
OS-6

0.34 ac.

Open Space
OS-8

1.90 ac.

Amenity Area
A-1

0.53 ac.

Recreation Trail
RT-1

0.09 ac.
Amenity Area

A-2
0.27 ac.

Lift Station
LS-1

0.03 ac.

PEDESTRIAN
ACCESS TO OPEN

SPACE

SW-1

SW-2

PRESERVE LIMITS

EXISTING
WETLAND (TYP.)

EXISTING UPLAND BUFFER-
25' AVG./15' MIN. (TYP.)

OWNER: DAVID & CHARLOTTE BAKLE
PARCEL ID: 12-20-27-0000-00-072

OWNER: CORINNE EVERLY FAMILY TURST
AND LARRY EVERLY FAMILY TRUST
PARCEL ID: 12-20-27-0000-00-051

OWNER: CENTRAL FLORIDA
EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

PARCEL ID: 12-20-27-0000-00-034

OWNER: ORLANDO BELTWAY ASSOCIATES
PARCEL ID: 12-20-27-0000-00-100

ST
AT

E 
RO

AD
 4

29
 (W

EK
IV

A 
PA

RK
W

AY
)

PE
R 

TH
E 

CE
N

TR
AL

 F
LO

RI
DA

 E
XP

RE
SS

W
AY

AU
TH

O
RI

TY
 R

IG
HT

 O
F 

W
AY

 M
AP

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

. 4
29

-2
03

PL
YM

O
UT

H
 S

O
RR

EN
TO

 R
O

AD
PE

R 
 D

EE
D

 B
O

O
K 

40
2,

 P
AG

E 
13

6

PROPOSED MAIL KIOSK
LOCATION

CABANA/
POOL

20' DE-1

20' DE-1

Open Space
OS-5
1.31 ac.

Conservation
Area

Tract CA-1

PROJECT BOUNDARY

PRESERVED WETLAND

UPLAND BUFFER

BLOCK ID

LEGEND

Project Number

Drawing Number

Drawing Title

Issued for

Checked byDesigned by

Appvd.DateRevisionNo.

vh
b.
co
m

Date

DATE: Jan. 30, 2019

225 E. Robinson Street
Suite 300
Orlando, FL 32801
407.839.4006
Certificate of Authorization
Number FL #3932

Bridle Path Mixed KPI

City of Apopka, Florida

Construction Plan
Approval
Vertical Datum NAVD 1988

Sept. 11, 2018

62799.01

CLG LNF

Rev. per City of Apopka & Orange Co Comments 01/15/20192

Rev. per City of Apopka & SJRWMD comments 12/11/20181

Rev. per City of Apopka Comments 01/30/20193

0 60 120 240 Feet

Master Site Plan &
Site Data

C1.05
FUTURE

DEVELOPMENT



 

 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

 PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: February 12, 2019 

X SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: Plat  Aerial Map 

    Plat 
  

 

SUBJECT:  PLAT – MID-FLORIDA LOGISTICS PARK INDUSTRIAL SUBDIVISION 

   

REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE PLAT FOR THE MID-FLORIDA 

LOGISTICS PARK INDUSTRIAL SUBDIVISION  
  
SUMMARY: 

 
OWNERS:    Mid-Florida Freezer Warehouses LTD, Florida Express Trucking, Inc., 

Eagles Landing at Ocoee, LLC.  
 
APPLICANT:    Dave Schmitt Engineering, Inc. c/o Dave Schmitt, P.E.  
 
LOCATION: West side of SR 429, south of General Electric Road, and east of Hermit 

Smith Road  
 
PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 01-21-27-0000-00-060; 06-21-28-7172-12-020; 06-21-28-7172-12-041; 

06-21-28-7172-12-060; 01-21-27-0000-00-030; 06-21-28-7172-13-000; 
12-21-27-0000-00-010; 12-21-27-0000-00-018; 12-21-27-0000-00-015; 
12-21-27-0000-00-017; 12-21-27-0000-00-021 

 
EXISTING USE: Vacant 
 
FLUM DESIGNATION: Industrial  
 
ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD) 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: 2,342,566 square feet industrial buildings; developed in multiple phases 
 
TRACT SIZE:    189.00 +/- acres 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

MID-FLORIDA LOGISTICS PARK – PLAT 

PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Industrial (max FAR 0.60) I-1 Transport/freight uses, Copart  

East (City) None assigned  N/A SR 429 right-of-way  

South (County) Orange County Rural  AG Vacant property 

West (City) Orange County Rural  AG Lake Apopka Restoration Area 

 

PROJECT INFORMATION: The applicant is requesting approval of a Plat for a five (5) lot industrial 

subdivision located west of SR 429, south of General Electric Road and east of Hermit Smith Road. The plat 

is consistent with the PUD Master Plan, Preliminary Development Plan, and Preliminary Development Plan 

which details the development of the property as a 2,342,566 square foot industrial subdivision.  

 

Project Use: The Plat proposes the creation of a five industrial lot subdivision on 188.893 acres of property. 

The surrounding properties consist primarily of industrial uses. The plat is consistent with the approved lot 

sizes in the Mid-Florida Logistics Park PUD Master Plan, Preliminary Development Plan, and Preliminary 

Development Plan.  

 

Access: Access to the site is proposed via an ingress/egress point on Hermit Smith Road, two ingress/egress 

points on General Electric Road, and a yet to be constructed road that is dedicated to the public that is referred 

to as Shelby Industrial Drive, which is proposed to be constructed in a north-south configuration. An 

unimproved platted right-of-way known as Peterson Road currently bisects the property from east to west. 

This right-of-way will be vacated via the recording of the plat, and the plat details the right-of-way of Peterson 

Road being relocated to the south to allow access to the property owners located to the south of the subdivision. 

The new right-of-way of Peterson Road is proposed at 80-feet in width on the plat, and will be dedicated to 

the public. Shelby Industrial Drive will terminate at Lot 5, and will intersect with Peterson Road, which is 

proposed to run in an east-west direction. Peterson Road will extend to the east and will cross under SR 429, 

which will facilitate roadway connections to properties located on the east side of SR 429. The plat details the 

dedication of 25-feet of public right-of-way to the east of Lot 5 to allow future access to the properties to the 

south. In addition, three railroad spurs are proposed to lead into Lots 1, 2, and 3. The railroad spurs will be 

located along the right-of-way of Shelby Industrial Drive, and will be in 40-foot easements that are owned and 

maintained by the property owners association.  

  

Stormwater: Consistent with the PUD Master Plan, Preliminary Development Plan, and Preliminary 

Development Plan, four stormwater retention areas are proposed within the subdivision that are in tracts that 

are owned and maintained by a property owners association.  

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The County was notified at the time of plat application for this 

property through the DRC agenda distribution.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

February 12, 2019 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

February 20, 2019 – City Council (7:00 pm)  

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

MID-FLORIDA LOGISTICS PARK – PLAT 

PAGE 3 

 
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Mid-Florida Logistics Park Final Plat, 

finding it consistent with the Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan. 

 

Recommended Motion: Find the proposed Final Plat consistent with the Land Development Code and PUD 

Master Plan, Preliminary Development Plan, and Preliminary Site Plan, and recommend approval of the Mid-

Florida Logistics Park subdivision plat, subject to final review by the City Surveyor and City Engineer prior 

to recording the plat.   

 

Planning Commission role:  The role of the Planning Commission for this development application is to 

advise the City Council to approve or deny the Final Plat based on consistency with the Comprehensive Plan 

and Land Development Code, and the PUD Master Plan, Preliminary Development Plan, and Preliminary Site 

Plan.  

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

MID-FLORIDA LOGISTICS PARK – PLAT 

PAGE 4 

 

 
Project: MID-FLORIDA LOGISTICS PARK  

Owned by:  Mid-Florida Freezer Warehouses, LTD, Eagles Landing at Ocoee, LLC 

Located: East side of Hermit Smith Road, South of General Electric Road, west of SR 429 

Parcel ID#s: 01-21-27-0000-00-060; 06-21-28-7172-12-020; 06-21-28-7172-12-041;  

06-21-28-7172-12-060; 01-21-27-0000-00-030; 06-21-28-7172-13-000;  

12-21-27-0000-00-010; 12-21-27-0000-00-018; 12-21-27-0000-00-015;  

12-21-27-0000-00-017; 12-21-27-0000-00-021 

 

 

  VICINITY MAP 

 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

MID-FLORIDA LOGISTICS PARK – PLAT 

PAGE 5 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 























 

 

G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\SITE PLANS\2019\Gateway Plaza PDP and Master Plan\4 Planning Com Hearing - C 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

 PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: February 12, 2019 

X SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER:  Final Development Plan  Aerial Map 

    Final Development Plan 

    Ordinance No. 2630 
  

 

SUBJECT:  GATEWAY PLAZA – MASTER PLAN/PRELIMINARY 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

   

REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE MASTER PLAN/PRELIMINARY 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR GATEWAY PLAZA 
  
SUMMARY: 

 
OWNER/APPLICANT: VBRO Enterprises LLC c/o Ashish Kapadia 

ENGINEER:   Burkett Engineering, Inc. c/o William E. Burkett, P.E. 

LOCATION: 2006, 2014, 2022, 2030 and 2038 Rock Springs Road; 41 East Lester Road 

PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 28-20-28-0000-00-018, 28-20-28-0220-00-010, 28-20-28-0220-00-020, 28- 
20-28-0220-00-030, 28-20-28-0220-00-040 and 28-20-28-0220-00-050 

 
FUTURE LAND USE: Commercial 

ZONING: PUD (Planned Unit Development) 

EXISTING USE: Vacant 

PROPOSED USE(S): General Business/Restaurant/Multitenant Commercial Center 

TRACT SIZE:   3.36 +/- acres; 146,476 +/- square feet  

BUILDING SIZE:  32,430 square feet 

FLOOR AREA RATIO Proposed 0.22; Maximum 0.25 

   
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 
GATEWAY PLAZA – MASTER PLAN/PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE 2 

 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North 
(County) 

Low Density Residential County A-1 Single Family Residence 

East (County) ROW ROW Rock Springs Road 

South 
(County) 

ROW ROW Lester Road 

West (County) Low Density Residential County A-1 Single Family Residence 

 

PROJECT SUMMARY:  The Gateway Plaza Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan is a site plan 
proposing a four buildings for a total of 32,430 square feet of general business, restaurant and commercial 
uses on a total of 3.36 acres.  Buildings 1, 2 and 4 have proposed uses of general commercial businesses.  
Building 1, on the northwest corner of Rock Springs Road and Lester Road, is intended for restaurant use 
with an outdoor seating area/patio.  Two additional patios are placed Building 2, adjacent to Rock Springs 
Road.  This project is subject to the standards set forth in PUD Ordinance No. 2630.  
 
The minimum setbacks applicable to this project are: 
 

Setback Min. Standard 

Front 
50’ from Centerline of ROW/ 

10’from the property line 
Side 10’ 
Rear 10’ 

 
PARKING:  A total of 179 parking spaces are proposed including six ADA-compliant and van accessible 
spaces while 173 are required. 

ACCESS:  Access to the site will be provided on both Rock Springs Road and Lester Road.  The access 
on Rock Springs Road will be a full access driveway located approximately 300 feet north of Lester Road.  
The access on Lester Road will be a full access driveway located approximately 300 feet west of Lester 
Road. 
 
TRANSPORTATION IMPACTS:  A Transportation Impact Analysis (TIA) was conducted for this 
project to assess its impacts on the surrounding roadway segments and intersections within a one-mile 
radius of the project per the City’s adopted TIA methodology.  The study evaluated the project assuming 
33,600 square feet of development that includes a mixture of retail development and restaurants.  
Roadways analyzed in the study included segments of Rock Springs Road, Lester Road, Vick Road and 
Welch Road.  Intersections analyzed were Rock Springs Road and Ponkan Road; Rock Springs Road and 
Lester Road; Rock Springs Road and Welch Road; Vick Road and Lester Road; and the site entrances on 
Rock Springs Road and Lester Road. Right and left turn lane warrant studies for both site entrances were 
also conducted. 

The project will generate 5,738 daily and 300 P.M. Peak Hour Net New trips.  The addition of these 
project trips to the study roadways will not cause the Level of Service (LOS) to fall below the City’s 
adopted LOS standard.  

Right and left turn warrant analyses were conducted for the site entrances on Rock Springs Road and 
Lester Road.  These analyses concluded that a right turn deceleration lanes are not warranted at either site 
entrance or a left turn deceleration lane is not warranted at the Lester Road site entrance.  Rock Springs 
Road is a five lane segment adjacent to the project and the center lane serves as a left turn lane. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 
GATEWAY PLAZA – MASTER PLAN/PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE 3 

 
The study intersections were analyzed with and without the addition of project traffic.  The intersection of 
Vick Road and Lester Road will experience additional delay and the overall conditions will degrade from 
“D”, the City’s adopted Level of Service standard, to “E”.  To address the impacts of this project, the 
applicant is required to construct a northbound left turn lane on Vick Road.  Design and engineering 
of the intersection improvement and construction schedule for the intersection improvement will be 
determined at the time of the Final Development Plan application. 

STORMWATER:  The stormwater management system includes an on-site retention area, on the 
northern most portion of the site.  The stormwater pond design meets the City’s Land Development. 
 
LANDSCAPING/BUFFER:  
   

a. Along Rock Springs Road and Lester Road – A ten-foot wide landscape buffer with a mixture of 
Live Oaks. Magnolias, Elms, Crepe Mytles and Cabbage Palms adjacent to the right-of-ways. 
 

b. North boundary line abutting residential zoning districts – A six-foot-high masonry wall within a 
ten-foot landscaped bufferyard.that includes Elms and Magnolias. 
 

c. Internal Parking Areas –Elms and Live Oaks are sprinkled on the parking landscape islands, with 
one tree per island. 
 

d. Retention/Stormwater Pond – Elms, Lives Oaks and Magnolias are placed on the perimeter. 
 

e. Monument Sign – A landscaped island shall be provided around the base of the sign at least ten 
feet in width to include shrubs three feet on center and at least 36 inches tall at time of planting. 

 
CONDITION OF APPROVAL:  Developer shall construct a northbound left turn lane on Vick Road at 
Lester Road.  Design and engineering of the intersection improvement, and construction schedule for the 
intersection improvement will be determined at the time of the Final Development Plan application 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The County was notified at the time of the site plan review for 
this property through the DRC agenda distribution.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
February 12, 2019 - Planning Commission, 5:30 p.m. 
March 6, 2019 - City Council, 1:30 p.m.  
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Gateway Plaza Master 
Plan/Preliminary Development Plan subject to Ordinance No. 2630 and the findings of this staff report. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on March 7, 2018, adopted Ordinance No. 2630, changing the zoning to 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) for the Gateway Plaza.  
 
Recommended Motion:  Find the Gateway Plaza Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code, and recommend approval of the Master 
Plan/Preliminary Development Plan, subject to Ordinance No. 2630 subject to the Conditions of Approval 
and findings of this staff report.  
 
Planning Commission Role: To advise the City Council to approve, deny, or approve with conditions 
based on consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 
GATEWAY PLAZA – MASTER PLAN/PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE 4 

 
incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 
GATEWAY PLAZA – MASTER PLAN/PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE 5 

 

Project Name: Gateway Plaza Master Plan/PDP 

Owner:   VBRO Enterprises, LLC 

Engineer:  William E. Burkett, P.E. 
Parcel I.D. Nos.:    28-20-28-0000-00-018, 28-20-28-0220-00-010, 28-20-28-0220-00-020, 28- 20-28- 
   0220-00-030, 28-20-28-0220-00-040 and 28-20-28-0220-00-050 
Addresses:  2006, 2014, 2022, 2030 and 2038 Rock Springs Road; 41 East Lester Road 

Total Acreage:  3.36 +/- acres 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

  
 

Subject 

Properties 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 
GATEWAY PLAZA – MASTER PLAN/PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE 6 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 
 

 

 
  

Subject Properties 



































ORDINANCE NO. 2630

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE

ZONING FROM " COUNTY" A- 1 AGRICULTURE TO " CITY" PLANNED

UNIT DEVELOPMENT ( COMMERCIAL) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY

GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF EAST LESTER ROAD AND WEST OF

NORTH ROCK SPRINGS ROAD, COMPRISING 3. 36 ACRES MORE OR

LESS, AND OWNED BY VBRO ENTERPRISES LLC; PROVIDING FOR

DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of
the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; 
and

WHEREAS, the City ofApopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as identified
in Section I of this ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the proposed Planned Unit Development ( PUD/ Commercial) zoning has been
found to be consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land
Development Code, 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 

Section I. That the zoning classification of the following described property be designated as
Planned Unit Development ( PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with the

following Master Pian provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 

PUD DEVEOPMENT AND ZONING CONDITIONS: That the zoning classification of the

following described property be designated as Planned Unit Development ( PUD), as defined in the

Apopka Land Development Code, and with the following Master Plan provisions subject to the
following zoning provisions: 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be: 

1. All permitted uses listed in the PO/ I (Professional Office/ Institutional) and CN ( Commercial
Neighborhood) district, except those listed as prohibited below in Paragraph B.. 

2. Restaurants, with or without outdoor seating, including fast -casual restaurants. 
Fast -casual restaurant is defined as an establishment whose principal business is the sale of
food or beverage that is made to order, for consumption within the building, or off the
premises as carryout orders. The principal method of operation includes, but is not limited to, 

the following characteristics: food or beverages may be served in non -disposable container; 
Limited table service may be available. Order and pay at the counter. The food is made fresh
and is either brought to the table by a server or the customer is called back to the counter. 
Price points are generally higher than fast food. Food is perceived to be higher quality and
healthier than food from standard fast food restaurants. May have drive- through service as
allowed by the development design standard in Paragraph C. 

3. Adult day care, not to exceed 7, 000 square feet net floor area. 
4. Retail businesses, except those listed as prohibited, 



ORDINANCE NO. 2630

PAGE 2

5. Banks

6. Coffee Shops

7. Other uses which are similar and compatible to the uses permitted herein which adhere to the

intent of the district and which are not prohibited as specified in this code. Use determination

shall be based upon the community development director' s recommendation. 

B. The uses prohibited within the PUD district shall be: 

1. Tobacco Store

2. Laundromat businesses

3. Medical Marijuana Dispensary
4. Veterinary and pet grooming facilities
5. Motorized Vehicle Service Stations

6. New or used motorized vehicle sales

7. Plumbing Shops
8. Appliance Stores

9. Tattoo/ Piercing Parlors
10. Adult entertainment as defined in section 10- 98 of the Apopka Municipal Code

11. Auto title loan, paycheck advance facilities, and other " personal credit institutions" 

12. Pawn shops. 

13. Employment agencies. 

14. Modular, mobile and pre -fab home display and sales. 
15. Mini -warehouse and self -storage facilities. 

16. Outside storage of supplies, materials, equipment, merchandise, and activities. 

17. Motorized Truck stops or terminal as defined by this code. 
18. Flea markets ( indoor and outdoor). 

19. Motorized automotive and transportation related businesses including new and used retail

automotive part stores, mechanic shops, new and used car sales, boat sales, vehicle rental, etc. 

20. Bail bonds businesses. 

21. Blood banks, blood donor stations, plasmapheresis facilities, or other similar bio -donating

uses; provided however, that this prohibition shall not include the practice of the following

duly licensed professionals: physicians, dentists, orthodontists or pharmacists, or other health
care practitioners, which may perform incidental bio -donating functions and procedures; 
provided, further, however, that this prohibition shall not apply to bonafide blood drives and
similar events conducted by non- profit blood banks for a non- commercial purpose. 

22. Soup kitchens; provided however, that this prohibition shall not apply to the bona
fide charitable activities of bona fide churches, synagogues, mosques and other places of

worship that are occupied and in operation on the effective date of this ordinance. 
23. Outdoor parks and recreational areas. 

24. Bowling alleys, skating rinks, billiard parlors and similar amusement centers. 
25. Assisted Living Facilities. 

C. Development Design Standards for this PUD, in addition to the Development Design Standards

set forth in the Land Development Code ( LDC) shall be as follows: 



ORDINANCE NO. 2630

PAGE 3

1. Drive through restaurants shall be limited to one drive aisle and no more than one menu

board. 

2. Drive through establishments without food and beverage sales are limited to two service

drive aisles. 

3. The development must have a unified architectural theme. 

4. The development shall have a plaza or prominent architectural feature at the corner of Rock

Springs. Road and Lester Road. Examples include: statue, fountain, corner entrance, clock

tower) 

5. Outdoor seating encouraged at restaurant( s). 
6. The development must have at least two separate buildings, each building shall have a

footprint not greater than 15, 000 square feet floor area. 

7. Driveways must be at least 50 feet away from the southeastern corner of the development. 
8. Building frontage along Rock Springs Road and Lester Road must resemble store fronts with

windows and either faux or real entrances. 

9. If any conflict occurs between the above design standards and the LDC, the above standards
shall apply. 

D. Terms of Expiration for this PUD shall be as follows: 

If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the City
within three years, and site development has not commenced within four years after approval of

these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the Master Plan provisions will expire. At such time, 

the City Council may: 

1. Permit a single six- month extension for submittal of the required Final Development Plan; 

2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of new
Master Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or

3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

E. The requisite Master Plan shall be submitted with or as part of the Preliminary Development Plan
application. 

Section II. That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated
in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby Planned Unit Development (PUD/CN), as defined in the
Apopka Land Development Code.. 

Legal Description: 

Lots 1- 5: Lying in Section 28, Township 20 South, range 28 East, and Apopka North
7/ 11 Lot 1- 5 recorded in Plat Book 7, Page, of the Public Records of Orange County, 
Florida. ( Parcel Numbers 28- 20- 28- 0220- 00- 010, 28- 20- 28- 0220- 00- 020, 28- 20- 28- 

0220- 00- 030, 28- 20- 28- 0220- 00- 040, 28- 20- 28- 0220- 00- 050); and

41 E. Lester Road: Commence at the Southeast corner of Section 28, Township 20

South, Range 28 East, Orange County, Florida; thence run South 87 degrees 59 minutes
49 seconds West along the South line of said Section 28 for a distance of 270. 00 feet to
a point; thence run North 01 degrees 45 minutes 16 seconds West for a distance of 30. 00



ORDINANCE NO. 2630

PAGE 4

feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; thence run South 87 degrees 59 minutes 49

seconds West, along the North line of West Lester Road, a distance of 180. 00 feet to a
point; thence run South 01 degrees 45 minutes 16 West for a distance of 190. 00 feet to

a point; thence run North 80 degrees 05 minutes 34 seconds East for a distance of 182. 05

feet to a point; thence run South 01 degrees 45 minutes 16 seconds East for a distance

of 215 feet to the POINT OF BEGIINNING and close; being a point on the North Right
of Way of West Lester Road. All of said Parcel lies in Southeast quarter of said Section
28. 

Contains: 3. 36 +/- Acres

Section III. That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the
City of Apopka, Florida. 

Section IV. That the Community Development Director, or the Director' s designee, is hereby
authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, Florida, to
include said designation. 

Section V. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves to
be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force
or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

Section VI. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

Section VII. That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption of Ordinance No. 2629

READ FIRST TIME: February 21, 2018

READ SECOND TIME
ANTM ATNIPTFT)• March 7 ?. 01 R

ATTEST: 

Li6da Goff,Ctfy1

DULY ADVERTISED: January 26, 2018 and February 23, 2018































































 

 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

 PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: February 12, 2019 

X SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER:  Preliminary Development Plan  Aerial Map 

    Preliminary Development Plan 

    Master Plan 
  

 

SUBJECT:  PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN – LEGACY HILLS 

SUBDIVISION 

   

REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE PRELIMINARY 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR LEGACY HILLS SUBDIVISION. 
  
SUMMARY: 

 
OWNER/APPLICANT: JEL Land Development, LLC c/o Dustin Lucas 
   
PROJECT ENGINEER: GTC Engineering Corporation c/o Claude L. Cassagnol, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: South of Schopke Road and West of Schopke Lester Road 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant land 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Residential Low (Max. 5 du/ac)  
 
ZONING:   PUD (Planned Unit Development) District 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: Single-Family Residential Subdivision (48 Lots; min. 7,500 sq. ft. lot area, 

60 ft. min. lot width; lot size varies as set forth in the PUD Master Plan) 
 
PROPOSED DENSITY:         2.78 du/ac 
 
TRACT SIZE:   19.6 +/- acres 
 
DEVELOPABLE AREA: 17.24 +/- acres 
 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN – LEGACY HILLS 

PAGE 2 

 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Future Land Use – In Progress PD (ZIP) Fisher Plantation Subdivision 

East (City) Residential Low R-1A Partnership Hills and Ariane  Hills 

Residential Subdivisions 

South (City) Residential Low R-1A Lake Standish & Woodlands 

West (County) Low Density Residential A-1 Single Family Homes 

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: This Preliminary Development Plan is in accordance with the PUD 

(Planned Unit Development) Zoning and Master Plan approved by the City Council on August 1, 2018 via 

Ordinance No. 2660. A 48 lot single-family subdivision is proposed, with lot widths ranging from 60 to 

85 feet wide. The 60’ wide lots are reserved for the interior of the subdivision and along the western 

boundary. Lots with larger lot widths are proposed to abut existing subdivisions such as Fisher Plantation, 

Partnership Hills, and Ariane Hills.   

 

A 10 feet landscape/wall buffer is proposed on the western and northern boundary lines of Legacy Hills, 

while a 5.37 acre retention/conservation area is proposed at the southern end of the subdivision. In 

addition, tracts for a playground and a picnic area are provided on the Preliminary Development Plan. The 

surrounding properties consist primarily of single-family, residential, subdivisions, including Partnership 

Hills and Ariane Hills to the East, Fisher Plantation to the North, vacant woodlands to the south, and 

single family homes to the west.  

 

Lot Width Table: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Proposed Setbacks: 
 

Setback 
Min. 

Standard 

Front* 25’ 

Side 7.5’ 

Rear 25’ 

Corner 25’ 

 

*Front-entry garage must be setback 30 feet. 
 
ACCESS: The access point for the subdivision, known as “Legacy Hills”, is proposed off of Schopke 
Road. 
 
STORMWATER: The stormwater management system includes an on-site retention area, located on the 
southern portion of the project area.  
 

Typical Lot 

Width 
Number of units 

Percentage of 

development 

60-feet 32 66.7% 

70-feet 10 20.8% 

85-feet 6 12.5% 

Total 48            100% 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN – LEGACY HILLS 

PAGE 3 

 
 
RECREATION: Tract E, located at the Southwestern end of the subdivision is dedicated for recreation. 
Playground equipment is proposed on Tract E. A passive recreation area is also provided in Tract B just to 
the south of the entrance to the community. 
 
BUFFER(S)/LANDSCAPING: Highrise Oaks, Live Oaks, Southern Magnolias, and Bald Cypresses are 

proposed throughout the subdivision. Each lot shall have two, 3’’ DBH shade trees at time of individual 

construction. An irrigation plan is required with the submittal of a Final Development Plan. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: School concurrency shall be required at Final Development Plan 

approval, and no development activity can occur until such time that a concurrency mitigation agreement 

has been approved by OCPS. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The County was notified of the public hearings on January 4, 

2019 and through the Development Review Committee meeting notifications. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

February 12, 2019 – Planning Commission, 5:30 p.m. 

March 6, 2019 – City Council, 1:30 p.m.  
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

The Development Review Committee recommends finds the Legacy Hills PDP to be consistent with the 

approved Master Plan and Land Development Code, and recommends approval of the Legacy Hills 

Subdivision – Preliminary Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

Recommended Motion:   Finds the Legacy Hills PDP to be consistent with the approved Master Plan 

and with the Land Development Code, and recommend approval of the Legacy Hills Subdivision – 

Preliminary Development Plan, subject to the findings of the staff report. 

 

Planning Commission Role:  The role of the Planning Commission for this development application is to 

advise the City Council to approve or deny based on consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Land 

Development Code.     

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 

incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN – LEGACY HILLS 

PAGE 4 

 

Project Name: Legacy Hills Subdivision – Preliminary Development Plan 

Property Owner: JEL Land Development, LLC 

Applicant:    GTC Engineering Corporation c/o Claude L. Cassagnol, P.E. 

Total Site Area:  19.67 +/- acres 

Parcel ID #s:  06-21-28-7172-19-030 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN – LEGACY HILLS 

PAGE 5 

 
 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 
 



 
 

G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\SUBDIVISION PLANS\2019\Ponkan Reserve PDP\4 Planning Com Hearing 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

 PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: February 12, 2019 

X SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER:  Preliminary Development Plan  Aerial Map 

    Preliminary Dev. Plan 
  

 

SUBJECT:  PONKAN RESERVE RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION –  PRELIMINARY 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

   

REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT 

PLAN FOR PONKAN RESERVE SUBDIVISION 
  
SUMMARY: 

 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Ponkan Reserve South, LLC, c/o Chuck Hiott, P.E. 

ENGINEER:   BESH, Inc., c/o Charles Hiott, P.E. 

LOCATION: 318 and 326 West Ponkan Road 

PARCEL ID #s:  28-20-28-0000-00-006 and 28-20-28-0000-00-062 

FUTURE LAND USE: Residential Low Suburban (up to 3.5 du\ac) 

ZONING: R-1AA (Residential Single-Family District) 

EXISTING USE: Vacant 

PROPOSED USE: 14 Single Family Residential Lots (Min. 12,500 sq. ft.) 

TRACT SIZE:   7.49 +/- acres 

PROPOSED DENSITY: 1.87 du\ac 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 
PONKAN RESERVE SUBDIVISION – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE 2 

 
 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City)  Mixed Use Mixed -EC 
Hillside at Wekiva Residential 

Community 

East (City) Residential Low Suburban R-1AA Single Family Home 

South (City) Residential Low Suburban R-1AA Vacant-Grazing\Paulucci Acres 

West (City) Residential Low Suburban R-1AA Single Family Home 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY:  The Ponkan Reserve Subdivision – Preliminary Development Plan proposes 
the development of 14 single family residential lots.  The minimum typical lot width is 95 feet with a 
typical lot size of 13,500 square feet.    The required minimum living area for a house in this zoning 
district is 1,700 sq. ft. square feet as set forth in Chapter 2 of the Land Development Code for single-
family lots located within the R-1AA zoning.  The minimum setbacks applicable to this project are: 

Setback 
Min. 

Standard 

Front* 25’ 

Side 10’ 

Rear 20’ 

Corner 25’ 

*Front-entry garage must be setback 30 feet. 

ACCESS:  Ingress/egress access points for the development will be via full access onto Ponkan Road. 

TRANSPORTATION:  Per Code, a transportation impact analysis (TIA) was not required for this 

development as it generates under 400 daily trips. 

STORMWATER: The stormwater management system includes an on-site retention area and located on 
the southern portion of the project site.  The stormwater pond design meets the City’s Land Development 
Code requirements. 

RECREATION:  The applicant proposes a total of 1.67 acres to be open space/recreation.  1.27 of the 
open space area will also service as retention area.  There is no requirement to provide a pocket park for 
those subdivisions with less than 20 units.  Additionally, the applicant is dedicating 20-foot wide for 
right-of-way, approximately 0.16 acre in size, to the City adjacent to and on its entire frontage on Ponkan 
Road. 

BUFFER(S)/LANDSCAPING:   As required by the Land Development Code, three canopy-type trees 

shall be planted on each single family lot such as Live Oak and Red Maple trees.  River Birch trees and 

Live Oak trees will be planted within Tract A Recreation/Retention Area.  A six-foot high wall will be 

located adjacent to Ponkan Road within a 10-foot wide landscaped buffer that includes Live Oak and 

Foxtail Palms. 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  A school concurrency mitigation agreement has been executed and a 

copy of the letter from Orange County Public Schools (OCPS) has been supplied to Staff. 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The County was notified at the time of the plat for this property 

through the DRC agenda distribution. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 
PONKAN RESERVE SUBDIVISION – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE 3 

 
 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

February 12, 2019 – Planning Commission, 5:30 p.m. 

March 6, 2019 – City Council, 1:30 p.m.  
   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Ponkan Reserve Subdivision 

Preliminary Development Plan subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

Planning Commission:   Find the Ponkan Reserve Subdivision Preliminary Development Plan consistent 

with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code, and recommend approval of the Ponkan 

Reserve Subdivision Preliminary Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report. 
 

Planning Commission Role: To advise the City Council to approve, deny, or approve with conditions 

based on consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code.     
 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 

incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 
PONKAN RESERVE SUBDIVISION – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE 4 

 

Project Name: Ponkan Reserve Subdivision – Preliminary Development Plan 

Property Owner: Ponkan Reserve South, LLC 

Applicant:    BESH Inc. c/o Charles Hiott, P.E. 

Total Site Area: 7.31 +/- acres 

Parcel ID #s:  28-20-28-0000-00-006 and 28-20-28-0000-00-062 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

  

Subject Properties 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 
PONKAN RESERVE SUBDIVISION – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE 5 

 
 

AERIAL MAP 

 
 

   
 
 

Subject Properties 





















































 

 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

 PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: February 12, 2019 

X SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: Final Development Plan/Plat   Final Development Plan 

    and Plat 
  

 

SUBJECT:  FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PLAT – OAK POINTE SOUTH 

RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION 

   

REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND 

PLAT FOR THE OAK POINTE SOUTH RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION 

  
SUMMARY: 

 
OWNER:    Thompson Hills Estates, LLC 
 
APPLICANT:    Evans Engineering, c/o David Evans, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: East of SR 429, north of McCormick Road 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBERS:  29-21-28-0000-00-00-038, 33-21-28-0000-00-004, 33-21-28-0000-

  00-030, 29-21-28-0000-00-016, 29-21-28-0000-00-011, 29-21-28- 

  0000-00-037, 29-21-28-0000-00-033 
 
EXISTING USE: Vacant, abandoned single-family homes 
 
FLUM DESIGNATIONS:  Commercial, Low Density Residential   
 
CURRENT ZONING: PUD (Planned Unit Development)  
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: 238 total units (118 single family homes, 120 townhome units) 
 
TRACT SIZE:    69.38 +/- acres total PUD, residential portion 60.50 +/- acres  
 

 

 

 

 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

OAK POINTE SOUTH – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PLAT  

PAGE 2 

 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

North (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Northwest Water Reclamation 

Facility 

East (City) Low Density Residential (0-5 du/ac) R-2 Apopka Woods subdivision 

South (City) Commercial (max 0.25 FAR) C-1 Vacant commercial/McCormick 

Rd 

West  SR 429 right-of-way  Not assigned SR 429 right-of-way   

North (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Northwest Water Reclamation 

Facility 

 

PROJECT INFORMATION: The applicant is requesting approval of a Final Development Plan and Plat 

for a 238 unit residential development that consists of 118 single family homes and 120 townhome units on 

69.38 acres. The property is zoned Planned Unit Development, and a PUD Master Plan was approved for 

the development in 2017. Of the 69.38 acres, 8.88 acres are reserved for commercial uses and are not subject 

to this application. The total residential portion of the PUD is 60.50 acres. The subject property is located 

east of State Road 429 and north of McCormick Road.  

 

Located to the east of the site is Apopka Woods a 76 lot, single family residential neighborhood. Typical 

lots within Apopka Woods have a minimum width of 70 feet and a minimum land area of 7,500 square feet. 

The Orange County Northwest Reclamation Water Facility is located on portions of the northern and 

northwest boundaries of the property. Directly to the south of Oak Pointe is a private gated residential 

community located in the City of Ocoee; McCormick Woods, with typical lot sizes of 70 x 125 (8,750 

square feet). As detailed in the approved PUD Master Plan, typical lot widths for the single-family units are 

70-feet, with a lot area of 8,400 square feet provided. Consistent with the approved PUD Master Plan, 

minimum living areas are 1,500 square feet for the single-family units, and 1,350 square feet for the 

townhome units.  

 

Project Use: The Final Development Plan and Plat details the construction of a subdivision that consists of 

120 townhomes and 118 single family homes within a gated community with private streets. One master 

homeowners association will serve both the single family homes and townhomes. Consistent with the 

approved PUD Master Plan, single family lots typically have a minimum width of 70-feet and a minimum 

lot area of 8,400 square feet, a minimum livable area of 1,500 square feet, and a minimum two-car enclosed 

garage.  A small percentage of single family lots (6.8% totaling 8 lots) have a minimum typical lot width of 

65-feet and a minimum lot area of 7,800 square feet, and a minimum house livable area of 1,500 square 

feet and a minimum two-car enclosed garage. No three-car garages are permitted Townhomes will have a 

minimum lot width of 23-feet and a minimum lot area of 2,530 square feet. All townhome units offer a one-

car enclosed garage. No two-car enclosed garages are proposed by the developer. Seventy-five (75) units 

have a one-car driveway; 31 units have a two-car driveway.   

 

Access: Access to the Oak Pointe community will occur through a road connection to McCormick Road 

and a future road connection to Ocoee-Apopka Road that is located to the north of the townhome portion 

of the site.  A gate will be located at both the northern and southern entrances. An emergency gate will be 

located on the eastern boundary, adjacent to Rory Oak Lane, connecting to Pelock Drive within the Apopka 

Woods community.   

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

OAK POINTE SOUTH – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PLAT  

PAGE 3 

 

Stormwater: Three stormwater retention ponds are located within the project boundaries that are in tracts 

that are owned and maintained by the homeowners association. Two ponds are located between the single-

family and the townhome portion of the development. One retention pond is located within the townhome 

area.  

 

Recreation/Open Space/Buffer: Consistent with the PUD Master Plan, two parks are provided and will be 

accessible to all residents. A community swimming pool and a cabana with a parking lot will be provided 

adjacent to lots 45 and 52. A second community park provides outdoor recreation and includes a fenced-in 

dog park. Perimeter buffers include a ten foot buffer with a six-foot high brick wall along the western 

property line adjacent to SR 429, a ten foot buffer next to the Apopka Woods community with an existing 

six-foot high vinyl fence, and a ten foot buffer with a six foot tall opaque vinyl fence adjacent to the Orange 

County Northwest Reclamation facility. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: The developer has obtained a school concurrency mitigation 

agreement with Orange County Public Schools to address school impacts generated by this residential 

development. The location is served by the following schools: Wheatley Elementary, Piedmont Lakes 

Middle, and Wekiva High School.   

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The County was notified at the time of plat application for this 

property through the DRC agenda distribution.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

February 12, 2019 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

March 6, 2019 – City Council (1:30 pm)  
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Oak Pointe South Final Development 

Plan and Plat. 

 

Recommended Motion: Find the proposed Final Development Plan and Plat consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan, the Land Development Code, and approved PUD Master Plan, and recommend 

approval of the Oak Pointe South Final Development Plan and Plat, subject to final review by the City 

Surveyor and City Engineer prior to recording the plat.   

 

Planning Commission role:  The role of the Planning Commission for this development application is to 

advise the City Council to approve or deny the Plat based on consistency with the Comprehensive Plan, 

Land Development Code, and approved PUD Master Plan.  

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

OAK POINTE SOUTH – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PLAT  

PAGE 4 

 

Project: Oak Pointe South  

Owned by:  Thompson Hills Estates, LLC 

Located: East of SR 429 and north of McCormick Road 

Parcel ID#s: 29-21-28-0000-00-00-038, 33-21-28-0000-00-004, 33-21-28-0000-00-030,  

  29-21-28-0000-00-016, 29-21-28-0000-00-011, 29-21-28-0000-00-037,  

  29-21-28-0000-00-033 

 
  

   

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 

OAK POINTE SOUTH – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PLAT  

PAGE 5 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES  

 

 

 

 

 

























































































































































 

 

G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\SITE PLANS\2019\Ramirez Car Sales FDP\4 Planning Com Hearing - C 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

 PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: February 12, 2019 

X SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER:  Final Development Plan  Aerial Map 

    Final Development Plan 

    Building Elevation 
  

 

SUBJECT:  RAMIREZ CAR SALES – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

   

REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT 

PLAN FOR RAMIREZ CAR SALES 
  
SUMMARY: 

 
OWNERS/APPLICANTS: Francisco Ramirez & Juana Nuesi 

ENGINEER:   Ken Ehlers, P.E. 

LOCATION: 124 West Main Street 

PARCEL ID #:  09-21-28-6778-00-090 

FUTURE LAND USE: Commercial 

ZONING: C-3 (Wholesale Commercial District) 

EXISTING USE: Vacant 

PROPOSED USE: Automotive Sales and Repair 

TRACT SIZE:   0.51 +/- acre; 22,060 +/- square feet  

BUILDING SIZE:  1,960 square feet 

FLOOR AREA RATIO Proposed 0.19; Maximum 0.25 

 

 

 

   
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 
RAMIREZ CAR SALES – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Public Right-of-Way (ROW) ROW U.S. 441/Main Street 

East (City) ROW ROW U.S. 441/Main Street 

South (City) Commercial C-3 Self-Storage Facility 

West (City) Commercial C-3 Veterinary Clinic 

 

PROJECT SUMMARY:  The Ramirez Car Sales Final Development Plan is a site plan proposing a 

1,960 square feet, one-story building for automotive sales and repair use.  Two garage bays are located in 

the rear of the building for oil and lube services, which will be performed indoor.  Outdoor repair is 

prohibited. 

The minimum setbacks applicable to this project are: 

 

Setback Min. Standard 

Front* 
50’ from ROW or 

10’from the property line 

Side 10’ 

Rear 15’ 

 

ACCESS/PARKING:  Ingress/egress access will be via U.S. 441/Main Street.  A total of 25 parking 

spaces are proposed.  Three parking spaces, including one ADA-compliant parking space, two spaces for 

employees and 20 spaces for inventory are proposed.   

 

STORMWATER: There is no increase of the impervious area (from the previous buildings), therefore, 

there is no requirement for a stormwater treatment.  

 

LANDSCAPING/BUFFER:    

a. Along U.S. 441 – A ten-foot wide landscape buffer with a mixture of yaupon holly, juniper, 

and two live oak trees with ground cover and a 36" tall viburnum hedge. 

b. Internal Parking Areas – One elm tree is provided for each parking landscape island, with a 

minimum island width of eight-feet (measured from inside curb to inside curb) and matches 

the length of adjacent parking stalls. 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The County was notified at the time of the site plan for this 

property through the DRC agenda distribution.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

February 12, 2019 - Planning Commission, 5:30 p.m. 

March 6, 2019 - City Council, 1:30 p.m.  

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 
RAMIREZ CAR SALES – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE 3 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the Final Development Plan consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code recommends approval of the Ramirez Car Sales Final 

Development Plan subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

Planning Commission:   Find the Ramirez Car Sales Final Development Plan consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code, and recommend approval of the Ramirez Car Sales 

Final Development, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

Planning Commission Role: To advise the City Council to approve, deny, or approve with conditions 

based on consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code.     

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 

incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 
RAMIREZ CAR SALES – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE 4 

 

Project Name: Ramirez Final Development Plan 

Owners:   Francisco Ramirez & Juana Nuesi 

Engineer:  Ken Ehlers, P.E. 
Parcel I.D. No.:    09-21-28-6778-00-090 
Address:  124 West Main Street 

Total Acreage:  0.51 +/- acre 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 
 

 

 

Subject Property 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 
RAMIREZ CAR SALES – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE 5 

 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 

 

Subject Property 



























































 

 

G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\SITE PLANS\2019\Zaxby's FDP\4 Planning Com Hearing - C 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

 PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: February 12, 2019 

X SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER:  Final Development Plan  Aerial Map 

    Final Development Plan 
  

 

SUBJECT:  ZAXBY'S RESTAURANT – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

   

REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT 

PLAN FOR ZAXBY'S RESTAURANT 
  
SUMMARY: 

 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Fletcher MCO, LLC, c/o Kevin Pomet 

ENGINEER:   CHW, Inc., c/o Travis Hastay, P.E. 

LOCATION: 920, 928, and 936 East Semoran Boulevard 

PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 11-21-28-0750-00-050; 11-21-28-0750-00-060; 11-21-28-0750-00-070 

FUTURE LAND USE: Commercial 

ZONING: C-1 (Retail Commercial District) 

EXISTING USE: Vacant 

PROPOSED USE: Restaurant 

TRACT SIZE:   1.26 +/- acres; 54,143 +/- square feet  

BUILDING SIZE:  3,113 square feet 

FLOOR AREA RATIO Proposed 0.06; Maximum 0.25 

 

 

 

 

    
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 
ZAXBY'S RESTAURANT – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North Public Right-of-Way (ROW) ROW S.R. 436/Semoran Boulevard 

East (City) Commercial C-2 (General 

Commercial District) 

Auto Repair 

South (City) Commercial C-2 Surface Parking 

West ROW ROW Sheeler Road 

 

PROJECT SUMMARY:  The Zaxby's Restaurant Final Development Plan is a site plan proposing a 

building for restaurant use that is 3,113 square feet in size on a total of 1.26 acres.  The site layout is 

designed to accommodate a single drive-through lane that can stack of up to 17 cars, which is higher than 

the number of cars that can be stacked per the Code minimum drive-through aisle length of 120 feet 

(accommodating up to eight cars).  Applicant requested a longer drive-through aisle to avoid cars lining 

up within the Semoran Boulevard.   However, to accommodate additional stacking, the drive-through 

window has to face Semoran Boulevard. With the Development Design Guidelines discouraging drive-

through windows at the front of the building, additional landscaping has been placed within the front 

buffer yard to provide additional screening of the drive-aisle and service window.  Also, a canopy covers 

the drive-through window to augment the architectural appearance of the building. 

 

The minimum setbacks applicable to this project are: 

 

Setback Min. Standard 

Front 
50’ from Centerline of ROW/ 

10’from the property line 

Side 10’ 

Rear 10’ 
 
PARKING:  A total of 29 parking spaces are proposed and as required by Code including two ADA-
compliant spaces. 

ACCESS: 

Full access to the site will be provided on S.R. 436/Semoran Boulevard.  As part of their efforts to support 

connectivity, a cross access easement has been produced that allows access between the project parcels, as 

well as, the western and southern parcels.  The cross access easement allows for a secondary access on 

and from Sheeler Road.   

 

TRANSPORTATION IMPACTS:  A transportation impact analysis (TIA) was conducted for this 

project to assess its impacts on the surrounding roadway segments and intersections within a one-mile 

radius of the project per the City’s adopted TIA methodology.  Included in the analysis were segments of 

U.S. 441, S.R. 436, CR 424 (Alabama Avenue/Apopka Boulevard), Sheeler Avenue, Roger Williams 

Road, Thompson Road, and Votaw Road.  The intersection of S.R. 436 and Sheeler Road and the site 

entrances located on S.R. 436 and Sheeler Avenue were also included in the study. 

The project will generate 1,460 daily trips and 50 P.M. Peak Hour net new trips.  The analysis 
demonstrates sufficient capacity exists on the study roadways segments and study intersections to 
accommodate the addition of trips generated by this project.  All study roadway segments and 
intersections will continue to operate at or above the City’s adopted Level of Service. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 
ZAXBY'S RESTAURANT – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE 3 

 
STORMWATER:  The stormwater management system includes an on-site underground retention area 
to the east of the building.  The stormwater pond design meets the City’s Land Development. 
 
LANDSCAPING/BUFFER:  Live oaks are planted on each landscaped Parking Island and the building 

entrance.  Sabal Palms are sprinkled around the building.  The landscaped area intended to screen the 

drive-through window also includes Sabal Palms and Viburnum hedges that shall be at least 36 inches in 

height at the time of planting.  A landscaped island shall be provided around the base of the monument 

sign at least ten feet in width to include shrubs three feet on center and at least 36 inches tall at time of 

planting. 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The County was notified at the time of the site plan review for 

this property through the DRC agenda distribution.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

February 12, 2019 - Planning Commission, 5:30 p.m. 

March 6, 2019 - City Council, 1:30 p.m.  
 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Zaxby's Restaurant Final 

Development Plan subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

Planning Commission:   Find the Zaxby's Restaurant Final Development Plan consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code, and recommend approval of the Final Development 

Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report.   

 

Planning Commission Role: To advise the City Council to approve, deny, or approve with conditions 

based on consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 

incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 
ZAXBY'S RESTAURANT – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE 4 

 

Project Name: Zaxby's Restaurant FDP 

Owner:   Fletcher MCO, LLC c/o Kevin Pomet 

Engineer:  CHW, Inc. c/o Travis Hastay, P.E. 
Parcel I.D. Nos.:    11-21-28-0750-00-050, 11-21-28-0750-00-060 and  11-21-28-0750-00-070 
Addresses:   920, 928, and 936 East Sermoran Boulevard 

Total Acreage:  1.26 +/- acres 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

  
  

Subject 

Properties 



PLANNING COMMISSION – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 
ZAXBY'S RESTAURANT – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE 5 

 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 
 

 

 

  

Subject Properties 
































































	Top
	1 02-12-19 - PC - Minutes - 01-08-19
	PC 01-08-19 Minutes.docx

	1. 02-12-19 - PC - Public Hearing - Comp Plan Small Scale FLUM - CHS Management Corp.
	1 CHS Mgmt FLU PC 2-12-2019 - C.docx

	2. 02-12-19 - PC - Public Hearing - Comp Plan Large Scale FLUM - Emerson Point Phase II
	1 Emerson Point FLU PC 2-12-2019 - C.docx
	2 Applicant Conceptual Plan.pdf
	3 OAR SAS Executive Summary.pdf

	3. 02-12-19 - PC - Public Hearing - Change of Zoning - Springs Ridge Gardens Subdivision
	1 Spring Ridge Gardens RZ MP PDPD - PC 01 08 19.docx
	2 Springs Ridge Gardens MP_PDP.pdf

	4. 02-12-19 - PC - Public Hearing - Variance - Perez-Reyes
	1 Perez - Variance -PC 02.12.19.docx
	2 VAR19-01 Perez - Application.pdf
	3 VAR19-01 Perez - Site Plan.pdf

	5. 02-12-19 - PC - Public Hearing -Special Exception - ReNewAl Church
	1 Renewal Church SPX PC 2-12-2019 - C.docx
	2 Proposed Site Plan.pdf
	3 Existing Site Plan.pdf
	4 Public Comment.pdf

	6. 02-12-19 - PC - Public Hearing - Special Exception - Wash City
	1 Wash City SPX 436 PC 2-12-2019 - C.docx
	2 Site Plan.pdf
	3 Wash City Elevations.pdf

	1. 02-12-19 - PC - Site Plan - Plat - Bridle Path Residential Subdivision
	1 Bridle Path FDP plat CC 02 12 19.docx
	2 Bridle Path - Plat.pdf
	3 FDP Bridle Path.pdf

	2. 02-12-19 - PC - Site Plan - Plat - Mid-Florida Logistics Park
	1 Mid-Florida Logisitics Park plat PC 02 12 19.pdf
	2 Mid-Final Plat.pdf

	3. 02-12-19 - PC - Site Plan - Master Plan; Preliminary Development Plan - Gateway Plaza
	1 Gateway Plaza Master Plan-PDP - PC - 2.12.2019.docx
	2 Gateway Plaza Master Plan-PDP 1.31.2019.pdf
	3 Ord 2630 Signed.pdf

	4. 02-12-19 - PC - Site Plan - Preliminary Development Plan - Legacy Hills
	2 Legacy Hills PDP.pdf
	3 Legacy Hills Approved  Master Plan.pdf
	1 Legacy Hills PDP PC 2-12-2019 - C.docx

	5. 02-12-19 - PC - Site Plan - Preliminary Development Plan - Ponkan Reserve Res. Subdivision
	1 Ponkan Reserve PDP PC 2.12.2019.docx
	2 Ponkan Reserve Full Set - Revised 1.9.2019.pdf

	6. 02-12-19 - PC - Site Plan - Final Development Plan/Plat - Oak Pointe South
	1 Oak Pointe South FDP Plat PC 02 12 19.pdf
	2 Oak Pointe South FDP.pdf
	3 Oak Pointe South Plat.pdf

	7. 02-12-19 - PC - Site Plan - Final Development Plan - Ramirez Car Sales
	1 Ramirez Car Sales FDP - PC - 2-12-2019.docx
	2 Ramirez Car Sales FDP 1-17-2019.pdf

	8. 02-12-19 - PC - Site Plan - Final Development Plan - Zaxby&apos;s Restaurant
	1 Zaxby&amp;#39;s FDP - PC - 2-12-2019.docx
	2 Zaxby&amp;#39;s Apopka - Resubmittal 2.4.2019.pdf

	Bottom

